
BOARD MEETING AGENDA
Monday, November 24, 2014
Regular Meeting - 7:00 P.M.

Directors
Manny Fernandez
Tom Handley
Pat Kite
Anjali Lathi
Jennifer Toy

Officers
Paul R. Eldredge
General Manager/
District Engineer

David M. O’Hara
Attorney 

1. Call to Order.

2. Pledge of Allegiance.
  

3. Roll Call.

Motion 4. Approve Minutes of the Meeting of November 10, 2014.

Information 5. Monthly Operations Report for October 2014 (to be reviewed by the Budget & Finance 
Committee). 

6. Written Communications.

7. Oral Communications.
The public may provide oral comments at regular and special Board meetings; however, whenever possible, written statements are preferred (to be received 
at the Union Sanitary District office at least one working day prior to the meeting).  This portion of the agenda is where a member of the public may 
address and ask questions of the Board relating to any matter within the Board’s jurisdiction that is not on the agenda.  If the subject relates to an agenda 
item, the speaker should address the Board at the time the item is considered.  Oral comments are limited to three minutes per individuals, with a maximum 
of 30 minutes per subject.  Speaker’s cards will be available in the Boardroom and are to be completed prior to discussion.

Motion 8. Authorize the General Manager to Execute an Agreement with Nicholas J. Peros, P.E. 
for the creation of a SCADA Master Plan and SCADA Standards (to be reviewed by 
the Budget & Finance Committee).

Motion 9. Authorize the General Manager to Execute Change Order No. 57 with D.W. Nicholson 
Corporation for the Cogeneration Project (to be reviewed by the Construction 
Committee).

Motion 10. Resolution No. _____, Accepting the Construction of the Sodium Hypochlorite Tank A 
and B Replacement Project from Anderson Pacific Engineering Construction, Inc. and 
Authorizing the Attorney for the District to Record a Notice of Completion. (to be 
reviewed by the Construction Committee).

Page 1 of 184



Motion 11. Resolution No. ______, Accepting the Construction of the Jarvis Avenue Sanitary 
Sewer Replacement Project from D’Arcy & Harty Construction, Inc. and Authorizing 
the Attorney for the District to Record a Notice of Completion (to be reviewed by the 
Construction Committee).

Information  12.    Information Items:
a. Check Register.
b. Report on the EBDA Commission Meeting of November 20, 2014.

Information  13. Committee Meeting Reports. (No Board action is taken at Committee meetings):  
a. Construction Committee – scheduled for Thursday, 11/20/14 at 8:45 a.m.
b. Budget & Finance Committee – scheduled for Thursday, 11/20/14 at 4:30 p.m.
c. Legal/Community Affairs Committee – will not meet.
d. Personnel Committee – will not meet.

Information  14.  General Manager’s Report. (Information on recent issues of interest to the Board).

Information       15. Other Business:
a. Comments and questions. Directors can share information relating to District 

business and are welcome to request information from staff.
b. Scheduling matters for future consideration.  

16. Adjournment - The Board will adjourn to the next Regular Meeting in the Boardroom 
on Monday, December 8, 2014 at 7:00 p.m.

The Public may provide oral comments at regular and special Board meetings; however, whenever possible, written statements are preferred (to be received at the 
Union Sanitary District at least one working day prior to the meeting).

If the subject relates to an agenda item, the speaker should address the Board at the time the item is considered.  If the subject is within the Board’s jurisdiction but not 
on the agenda, the speaker will be heard at the time “Oral Communications” is calendared.  Oral comments are limited to three minutes per individual, with a maximum 
of 30 minutes per subject.  Speaker’s cards will be available in the Boardroom and are to be completed prior to discussion of the agenda item.

The facilities at the District Offices are wheelchair accessible.  Any attendee requiring special accommodations at the meeting should contact the General Manager’s 
office at (510) 477-7503 at least 24 hours in advance of the meeting.

THE PUBLIC IS INVITED TO ATTEND

Page 2 of 184



NOTICE OF       All meetings will be held in 
COMMITTEE MEETING     the General Manager’s Office 

BOARD MEETING OF NOVEMBER 24, 2014 

Committee Membership: 
Budget and Finance Directors Anjali Lathi and Tom Handley (Alt. – Pat Kite) 
Construction Committee Directors Pat Kite and Jennifer Toy (Alt. – Manny Fernandez) 
Legal/Community Affairs Directors Pat Kite and Tom Handley (Alt. –Anjali Lathi) 
Legislative Committee Directors Manny Fernandez and Jennifer Toy (Alt–Tom Handley) 
Personnel Committee Directors Manny Fernandez and Anjali Lathi (Alt. – Jennifer Toy) 
Audit Committee Directors Manny Fernandez and Tom Handley (Alt. Jennifer Toy) 

Construction Committee, Thursday, November 20, 2014 at 8:45 a.m. 

9. Authorize the General Manager to Execute Change Order No. 57 with D.W. 
Nicholson Corporation for the Cogeneration Project. 

10. Resolution No. ____, Accepting the Construction of the Sodium Hypochlorite Tank 
A and B Replacement Project from Anderson Pacific Engineering Construction, Inc. 
and Authorizing the Attorney for the District to Record a Notice of Completion. 

11. Resolution No. ____, Accepting the Construction of the Jarvis Avenue Sanitary 
Sewer Replacement Project from D’Arcy & Harty Construction, Inc. and Authorizing 
the Attorney for the District to Record a Notice of Completion. 

Budget & Finance Committee, Thursday, November 20, 2014 at 4:30 p.m. 

5. Monthly Operations Report for October 2014. 

8. Authorize the General Manger to Execute an Agreement with Nicholas J. Peros, 
P.E. for the creation of a SCADA Master Plan and SCADA Standards. 

Committee meetings may include teleconference participation by one or more Directors. 
(Gov. Code Section 11123) 

Committee Meetings are open to the public. Only written comments will be considered. No action will be taken.

Page 3 of 184



MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE
BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF
UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

November 10, 2014

CALL TO ORDER.

President Fernandez called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m.

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE.

ROLL CALL.

PRESENT: Manny Fernandez, President
  Jennifer Toy, Vice President
  Tom Handley, Secretary
  Pat Kite, Director
  Anjali Lathi, Director

STAFF: Paul Eldredge, General Manager/District Engineer
  Dave O’Hara, District Counsel
  Rich Cortés, Business Services Manager
  Andy Morrison, Collection Services Manager
  Dave Livingston, Treatment & Disposal Services Manager
  Sami Ghossain, Technical Services Manager
  Robert Simonich, Fabrication, Maintenance, and Construction Manager
  James Schofield, Collection Services Coach
  Rufus Tai, Senior Database Administrator/Developer
  Laurie Brenner, Organizational Performance Program Manager
  José Rodriguez, Lead Collection Service Worker

Regina McEvoy, Assistant to the GM/Board Secretary
  
APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES OF OCTOBER 27, 2014.

It was moved by Director Handley, seconded by Director Lathi, to Approve the Minutes of the 
Board of Director’s Meeting held October 27, 2014.  Motion carried unanimously.

QUARTERLY BALANCED SCORECARD PERIOD ENDING SEPTEMBER, 2014. 

The Budget and Finance Committee reviewed this item.  

a. Districtwide Balanced Scorecard Measures - Laurie Brenner, Organizational Performance 
Program Manager, reported the following: Two injuries were reported during the first 
quarter of FY 15.  The average FTE on Limited Duty was 0.93 for the quarter, exceeding 
the target of less than 0.5.  Limited Duty cost to date is $11,575, which is approximately 
50% of the annual target. The Workers Compensation Experience Modifier (X-Mod) is 
above target at 1.16, as reported at the end of FY 14. The target number of individual 
competency assessments for the Collections Services team rose from 27 in FY 14 to 52 in 

Page 4 of 184



FY 15, of which 8% were completed in Q1. The public relation program met 100% of 
planned activities and completed 20% of all activities. The Capital Improvement Projects 
(CIP) team completed 100% of priority milestone projects. The Executive Team increased 
regional projects with financial benefit from two to three for FY 15. For community outreach, 
there were 3 plant tours in Q1, and the District continues to support ROP and Solano 
College.

b. Collection Services (CS) Process Scorecard - Andy Morrison, Collection Services Manager, 
reported the following:  Collection Services ensures wastewater is kept in the gravity system 
from the point of entry by the customer, until it is received and processed at the transport 
system and the treatment plant.  To achieve the goal of Sanitary Sewer Overflow (SSO) 
prevention/reduction, there are five processes:  System Management; Pipe Assessment; 
Control Roots; Control Fats, Oils, and Grease (FOG); and Service Requests. CS 
employees are updated monthly on their performance.  

WRITTEN COMMUNICATIONS.

There were no written communications.

ORAL COMMUNICATIONS.

There were no oral communications.

AUTHORIZE THE GENERAL MANAGER TO EXECUTE AN AGREEMENT WITH KRONOS 
FOR PURCHASE AND IMPLEMENTATION OF A TIME AND ATTENDANCE SYSTEM.

The Budget & Finance Committee reviewed this item.  Rufus Tai, Senior Database 
Administrator/Developer, stated the District’s current time and attendance system will be 
unsupported by Microsoft in the summer of 2015.  The FY15 Information Services Renewal 
and Replacement budget included $200,000 for purchase and implementation of a time and 
attendance system. A request for proposals (RFP) was sent to seven firms, and three 
responses were received:  Kronos Incorporated; Tyler; and Integrated Time.  The proposals 
were evaluated by the Project Team, and Kronos Incorporated and Integrated Time were 
invited to interview and demonstrate their systems.  Kronos Incorporated was selected based 
on proposal, price, and experience.

It was moved by Director Lathi, seconded by Director Handley, to Authorize the General 
Manager to Execute an Agreement with Kronos for Purchase and Implementation of a Time 
and Attendance System.  Motion carried unanimously.

APPROVED A MOTION TO CANCEL THE DECEMBER 22, 2014 BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
MEETING. 

It was moved by Director Kite, seconded by Director Lathi, to Cancel the December 22, 2014 
Board of Directors Meeting.  Motion carried unanimously.

Page 5 of 184



BOARD MEMBER COMPENSATION FOR 2015. 

The Budget & Finance Committee reviewed this item. Paul Eldredge stated the California 
Health and Safety Code allows for an increase in Board Member compensation of up to 5% 
per year.  Ordinance #44 states Board Member compensation may be increased by the amount 
of increase of the classified employees’ wages for the year, and states the matter would be 
reviewed by the Board prior to implementation.  Board Members have voted not to increase 
their meeting stipend since 2003.  The Budget & Finance Committee recommended Board 
Member compensation remain at $212.10 per day of service.

It was moved by Director Kite, seconded by Director Toy, not to increase Board Member 
Compensation for 2015. Motion carried unanimously.

INFORMATION ITEMS:

Check Register. All questions were answered to the Board’s satisfaction.

Board Expenditures, 1st Quarter, FY15. The Budget & Finance Committee reviewed this 
item.  The Board had no questions.

COMMITTEE MEETING REPORTS:

The Budget & Finance Committee met.

GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT:  

Paul Eldredge reported the following:
Alameda County Water District (ACWD) is publishing a book, and requested Union 
Sanitary District participate as a sponsor.  The request is inconsistent with District 
guidelines, and would require a Board discussion.  The request was received close to 
the deadline for finalizing the book and has since passed. 
Staff recently received a letter from Safety-Kleen and will issue a response this week.
The General Manager met with Newark City Manager John Becker to discuss the 
matter.  The City of Newark’s experiences with Safety-Kleen are consistent with the 
District’s.
The District received a public records request from a Ms. Sarah Morgan.  Ms. Morgan 
requested information regarding rate increases presented at the June 23, 2014, Board 
meeting. 
The Cogeneration project passed its five day test, and additional testing will continue.
The General Manager will meet with Fremont City Manager Fred Diaz this week.
The General Manager recently met with Republic Services General Manager Kris 
Branschweig regarding potential partnership opportunities.
The Plant will be shut down on Wednesday night for six hours to facilitate the 
replacement of 20 year old return activity sludge (RAS) seals on the RAS gates.
The General Manager, and ACWD General Manager Walt Wadlow, will provide a 
presentation entitled “Water In and Water Out” at the League of Women Voters (LOWV) 
meeting in Fremont on Monday, November 17, 2014.  

Page 6 of 184



OTHER BUSINESS:

Director Kite reported she attended the Treatment Plant Overview Presentation provided by 
Dave Drake in the Boardroom on October 28, 2014.

ADJOURNMENT:

The meeting adjourned at 7:43 p.m. to the next Regular Meeting in the Boardroom on Monday, 
November 24, 2014.

SUBMITTED:     ATTEST:

_________________________   __________________________
REGINA McEVOY     TOM HANDLEY
SECRETARY TO THE BOARD   SECRETARY

APPROVED:

__________________________
MANNY FERNANDEZ
PRESIDENT

Adopted this 24th day of November, 2014

Page 7 of 184



 

Directors
Manny Fernandez
Tom Handley
Pat Kite
Anjali Lathi
Jennifer Toy

Officers
Paul R. Eldredge
General Manager/ 
District Engineer

David M. O’Hara
Attorney

DATE: November 17, 2014

MEMO TO: Board of Directors - Union Sanitary District

FROM: Paul R. Eldredge, General Manager/District Engineer

SUBJECT: Agenda Item No. 5 - Meeting of November 24, 2014 
Information Item: Monthly Operations Report for October, 2014 

Background

Attached is the October 2014 Operations Report.  Staff is available to answer 
questions regarding information contained in the report.

Table of Contents

General Manager/Administration   Paul Eldredge GM   
Business Services     Rich Cortés  BS   
Collection Services     Andy Morrison CS   
Technical Support     Sami Ghossain TS   
Treatment and Disposal Services/FMC  Dave Livingston T&D  
Fabrication, Maintenance, and Construction Robert Simonich FMC

Recommendation

File Report.  

 

Page 8 of 184



GENERAL MANAGER’S SUMMARY

Below is a summary of major activities that occurred at the District during October 2014. 

ODOR COMPLAINTS: There were nine odor complaints received in the month of October.  Seven 
from Fremont, two from Newark, and one from Union City.  All complaints were investigated, and 
no odor was found in nine of the complaints.  Upon investigation of one complaint in Fremont, a 
dye test revealed a very small leak from the sewer main into the storm drain.  USD crews used 
three trenchless point repairs in the sewer main to stop the leak and cleaned up the storm drain 

SAFETY: We had one minor injury.  A knee strain while an employee was walking up stairs at 
the Newark pump station. No lost time and the employee is back at full duty.  We have two 
employees off work for previous injuries.  One had a shoulder injury that required additional care 
and we are waiting for him to return to work.  The other is had a neck injury and is requiring 
additional care.  His return date is unknown.  We had a debrief of the incident of unusual 
wastewater at the Boyce lift station.  Breakdowns in communication were identified as some of 
the largest problems.  We have an Industrial Hygienist looking into the exposure to our employees 
during this incident.  We had a near miss while cleaning piping and flooded digester 5.  The 
contractor working on digester 5 had to remove people from the space until the area was cleaned 
up.  We have also installed another AED (automated external defibrillator) in the treatment 
plant.  We now have an AED at the front and back of the plant.  This will shorten the response 
time if it is needed in an emergency.

FABRICATION, MAINTENANCE, AND CONSTRUCTION (FMC):  During the month of October 
FMC continued to support multiple CIP projects, starting with dedicating two mechanics for the 
commissioning of the new Co Gen engines, and provided support on the Newark Pump Station
bypass project, this work required two mechanics to be staffed at the Newark Pump Station 
around the clock for the lining of the influent line. While all of this was occurring FMC also rebuilt 
#1 Centrifuge in the dewatering building and retrofitted all of the lighting with LED fixtures in the 
covered storage area. FMC also began preparing for the repair of the west force main to head 
works valve seat. Other accomplishments include completion of 84 corrective maintenance work 
orders throughout the plant and completion of all scheduled preventive maintenance.

FINANCIAL:   
Staff received training on the new sewer service charge rate model.
The annual State Controller’s Report of financial transactions was submitted to the State.
The District received $648,000 in SRF proceeds for the Thickener Project.

COLLECTION SYSTEM:
Cleaned 82,891’ of sewer mains – target
Televised 74,346’ of sewer mains – slightly ahead of target
Responded to 44 Service Requests
Completed 30 sewer main repairs
Hosted the Vendor Fair for MSA (Maintenance Superintendents Association)

PLANT OPERATIONS:
The plant effluent remained in compliance with all NPDES permit requirements.
Staff attended a symposium on nutrients sponsored by BACWA.

GM-1 
Page 9 of 184



Staff continued to seek for information about the fate of the Ebola virus in wastewater and 
the proper precautions that District employees need to take.
Continued work on the Hayward Marsh Alternatives Study with RMC consultants. 

PROJECTS: Updates of selected projects:
Cogeneration Project – Contractor completed the first phase of the operational test of 
the cogeneration equipment and the digester gas conditioning equipment.  After the test 
is completed and accepted, isolation and abandonment of old gas conditioning systems 
will begin.
Thickener Control Building Improvements Project – Installation of underslab conduits for 
the new Thickener Electrical Building.  Concrete slab construction is next.
Jarvis Avenue SS Replacement – The project is nearly complete.  Punchlinst work and 
closeout are next.  
Upper Hetch Hetchy SS Rehabilitation – Street restoration and site improvements are in 
progress.  The last CIPP lining site (Willow Street in Newark), is planned in November.  
Project should be complete by the end of December.

STAFFING & PERSONNEL:   
Recruitments and Selection

Troy Gaskins joined the District as a Painter
Other

The HRA brought several documents for Board signature, all relating to the 
requirements of the Publicly Available Pay Schedule.
The CalPERS audit was completed.  The auditor will now work on his preliminary 
findings, which he will present to the District for comment and correction.
The HRA and General Manager are working on succession planning for HR staff.
HR participated in the Employee Recognition BBQ.

G.M. ACTIVITIES: For the month of October, the GM was involved in the following:
Toured the Hayward Marsh with the Board in early October.
The Employee Appreciation BBQ was held October 14, 2014.  
Attended the MSA Vendor Equipment & Trade Show hosted by USD.
I met with Alex Ameri from the City of Hayward to discuss opportunities for regional 
projects and continued cooperation between our respective agencies.
Did a presentation to the Union City Lions Club on an overview of the District.
Held interviews for the Collection System and Treatment and Disposal workgroup 
manager positions.
Attended the State of the State forum in Fremont, hosted by the Chamber of 
Commerce of Fremont, Newark, and Union City.
Met with the General Manager from the Contra Costa Water District to discuss 
matters of mutual interest.
Met with the General Manager of the Dublin-San Ramon Services District 
(DSRSD) to discuss industry trends and issues.
Met with the incoming General Manager of the Alameda County Water District 
(ACWD) to get to know one another a little better and to continue USD’s and 
ACWD’s productive and positive working relationship.

GM-1 
Page 10 of 184



ODOR REPORT
October 2014

During the recording period from October 01, 2014 through October 31, 2014, there were nine 
odor related service requests received by the District.
City:  Fremont

1. Complaint Details:
Date: 10/1/2014 Time:  9:15 am
Location: DIEGO DR Reported By: Arlene Ohm
Wind (from): N/A Wind Speed: N/A mph
Temperature:  70 Degrees F Weather: Fair

Response and Follow-up:
Inspected USD main and storm drain inlet due to a complaint from resident about a bad odor. 
We dye tested sewer main with a TV camera in the storm drain. We found a very small leak 
from the sewer main into the storm drain.  USD crews used three trenchless point repairs in the 
sewer main to stop the leak and cleaned up the storm drain.

2. Complaint Details:
Date: 10/2/2014 Time:  8:25 pm
Location: FREMONT BL Reported By: Hilary
Wind (from): West Wind Speed: 1 mph
Temperature:  75 Degrees F Weather: Clear

Response and Follow-up:
Inspected USD manholes and storm drain inlets in the area.  We found no odors coming   
from our mains or drain inlets. We did detect a smell coming from a roll away dumpster in front of the 
property

3. Complaint Details:
Date: 10/8/2014 Time:  8:08 pm
Location: GRANVILLE DR Reported By: Rob Culbertson
Wind (from): East Wind Speed: 9 mph
Temperature:  68 Degrees F Weather: Clear

Response and Follow-up:
Inspected USD manholes and storm drain inlets.  We did not detect any odor.  We relayed our 
findings to the complainant and told him to call us back should the odor return.

  
 4. Complaint Details:

Date: 10/8/2014 Time:  10:04 pm
Location: PERALTA BL Reported By: Lin Hall
Wind (from): N/A Wind Speed: 5 mph
Temperature:  64 Degrees F Weather: Clear

Response and Follow-up:
Inspected USD manholes and storm drain inlets.  No odor was detected.  I checked the 
grease trap and when I opened it, the complainant said that may be the source of the odor.  
We let the complainant know that he should inform his management and that I would pass on 
our findings to our Environmental Compliance Team. 

Page 11 of 184



City:  Fremont
  
 5. Complaint Details:

Date: 10/9/2014 Time:  12:05 am
Location: RIDGEWOOD DR Reported By: Ashoka Upadhya
Wind (from): N/A Wind Speed: 5 mph
Temperature:  64 Degrees F Weather: Clear

Response and Follow-up:
Inspected USD manholes and storm drain inlets.  We found no odor from our manholes.  
We did detect a very strong smell of a dead animal on the complainant's street.  We told him he 
could try talking with the Ardenwood Farm property people because it seemed like 
the smell of the dead animal may be on their property.

6. Complaint Details:
Date: 10/21/2014 Time:  3:40 pm
Location: MONTROSE AV Reported By: N/A
Wind (from): N/A Wind Speed: 5 mph
Temperature:  73 Degrees F Weather: Warm

Response and Follow-up:
Inspected USD manholes and storm drain inlets in the area.  We found no odors in the area. 
We told them to call us back should the odor return.

  
7. Complaint Details:

Date: 10/31/2014 Time:  1:30 pm
Location: BLACOW RD Reported By: Sandy Leonardt
Wind (from): North West Wind Speed: 9 mph
Temperature:  59 Degrees F Weather: Rain & Showers

Response and Follow-up:
Inspected USD manholes and drain inlets in the surrounding area.  We used a gas detector  
to locate any odors and no odors detected.  We relayed our findings to Mrs. Leonardt 
and gave her a USD brochure.  We told her to call us back should the odor return and to note the 
time of day.

Page 12 of 184



City:  Newark
  

8. Complaint Details:
Date: 10/6/2014 Time:  3:45 pm
Location: LA SALLE AV Reported By: Diana Farias
Wind (from): North West Wind Speed: 9 mph
Temperature:  89 Degrees F Weather: Hot

Response and Follow-up:
Inspected the sewer manholes, storm drain inlets and surrounding areas using our gas detector.
We did not find any odors.  We gave the complainant a USD brochure and told her to call us back 
should the odor return.

  
 9. Complaint Details:

Date: 10/8/2014 Time:  7:15 pm
Location: DAIRY AV Reported By: Janette Johnson
Wind (from): North Wind Speed: 5 mph
Temperature:  68 Degrees F Weather: Clear

Response and Follow-up:
Inspected USD manholes, storm manholes and drain inlets and found no odors outside 
of the residence.  We did detect a musty mildew odor inside the house.  The homeowner did call 
the Fire Department and they did not find any odors.  We told her to air out the house 
and run water in all sinks and showers.  We told her to call us back should the odor return.

City:  Union City

10. Complaint Details:
Date: 10/4/2014 Time:  9:45 pm
Location: COMPTON CT Reported By: Chelsea
Wind (from): N/A Wind Speed: 5 mph
Temperature: 85 Degrees F Weather: Clear

Response and Follow-up:
Inspected USD manholes and storm drain inlets and found no odors.  We gave the 
complainant a brochure and told them to call us back should the odor return.

Page 13 of 184



#

^

#

^

!

#

!

#

!

#

^

#^

#

#

#

#
#

#

!

!

#

!

#

^

Fremont
Newark

Union City

Location of Odor Reports
November 2013 to October 2014

.0 1 2 3 4 50.5
Miles

Legend
Odor Complaints: October 2014

Odor Complaints: Nov. 2013 to Sep. 2014
No odor found (6)

Odor found, not related to USD (3)

Odor found, USD resolved (4)

No odor found (8)

#

!

^

#

! Odor found, not related to USD (3)

^ Odor found, USD resolved (1)

5. Odor found, not related to USD
4. Odor found, not related to USD

8. No odor found

6. No odor found

10. No odor found
2. Odor found, not related to USD

9. No odor found

7. No odor found

3. No odor found

1. Odor found, USD resolved

Page 14 of 184



H
O
U
R
S
 
W
O
R
K
E
D
 
A
N
D
 
L
E
A
V
E
 
T
I
M
E
 
B
Y
 
W
O
R
K
 
G
R
O
U
P

J
u
n
e
 
2
8
,
 
2
0
1
4
 
t
o
 
O
c
t
o
b
e
r
 
3
1
,
 
2
0
1
4

R
eg

.
To

ta
l

H
is

to
ric

al
 F

Y
14

D
IV

IS
IO

N
H

ou
rs

Lt
 D

ut
y

O
/T

Le
av

es
*

S
ic

k
S

TD
W

C
S

ic
k

S
TD

W
C

A
v
e
r
a
g
e
 
N
u
m
b
e
r
 

o
f
 
E
m
p
l
o
y
e
e
s

G
e
n
e
r
a
l
 
M
a
n
a
g
e
r
 
S
t
a
f
f

1,
70

4
13

53
6

10
85

1
3
0

24
%

0.
4%

1.
7%

B
u
s
i
n
e
s
s
 
S
e
r
v
i
c
e
s

14
,2

79
7

2,
12

2
21

5
60

4
14

13
%

1.
3%

1.
6%

0.
5%

C
u
r
r
e
n
t
 
N
u
m
b
e
r
 
o
f

V
a
c
a
n
t
 
P
o
s
i
t
i
o
n
s
 
(
1
)

T
e
c
h
n
i
c
a
l
 
S
e
r
v
i
c
e
s

18
,7

26
56

2,
07

3
36

2
1,

03
9

23
8

4
10

%
1.

7%
3.

4%
0.

8%

C
o
l
l
e
c
t
i
o
n
 
S
e
r
v
i
c
e
s

17
,9

50
2,

17
6

3,
73

0
1,

08
9

10
9

41
1,

79
1

71
8

1
17

%
5.

0%
0.

5%
0.

2%
2.

5%
0.

4%
0.

2%
H
o
u
r
s
 
W
o
r
k
e
d
 
P
e
r

W
e
e
k
 
P
e
r
 
E
m
p
l
o
y
e
e
 
(
2
)

T
r
e
a
t
m
e
n
t
 
&
 
D
i
s
p
o
s
a
l

15
,2

74
38

9
1,

77
0

65
1,

34
4

40
8

3
6
.
1
2

10
%

0.
4%

2.
0%

0.
3%

F
M
C

13
,3

51
76

9
2,

28
5

54
2

17
0

1,
01

9
74

10
7

P
r
o
j
e
c
t
e
d
 
A
v
e
r
a
g
e

15
%

3.
5%

1.
1%

3.
1%

0.
2%

0.
1%

A
n
n
u
a
l
 
S
i
c
k
 
L
e
a
v
e

P
e
r
 
E
m
p
l
o
y
e
e
 
(
3
)

T
o
t
a
l
s

81
,2

83
3,

40
9

12
,5

17
2,

28
3

10
9

21
1

5,
88

2
1,

45
2

10
8

5
0
.
6
3

%
86

.7
%

3.
6%

13
.3

%
2.

4%
0.

1%
0.

2%
2.

4%
0.

5%
1.

3%

(
1
)
 
 
C
u
r
r
e
n
t
 
v
a
c
a
n
c
i
e
s
 
i
n
c
l
u
d
e
:
 
B
u
s
i
n
e
s
s
 
S
e
r
v
i
c
e
s
 
(
0
)
,
 
C
o
l
l
e
c
t
i
o
n
s
 
(
1
)
,
 
F
M
C
 
(
0
)
,
 
T
&
D
 
(
1
)
,
 
T
S
 
(
2
)

 

(
2
)
 
 
A
n
 
e
m
p
l
o
y
e
e
 
u
s
i
n
g
 
3
 
w
e
e
k
s
 
v
a
c
a
t
i
o
n
,
 
1
1
 
h
o
l
i
d
a
y
s
,
 
2
 
H
E
C
 
d
a
y
s
 
a
n
d
 
4
0
 
h
o
u
r
s
 
o
f
 
s
i
c
k
 
l
e
a
v
e
 
w
i
l
l
 
w
o
r
k
 
a
n
 
a
v
e
r
a
g
e
 
o
f
 
3
4
.
9
 
h
o
u
r
s
 
p
e
r
 
w
e
e
k
 
o
v
e
r
 
t
h
e
 
c
o
u
r
s
e
 
o
f
 
a
 
y
e
a
r
.
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
W
i
t
h
 
f
o
u
r
 
w
e
e
k
s
 
v
a
c
a
t
i
o
n
,
 
3
4
.
2
 
h
o
u
r
s
 
p
e
r
 
w
e
e
k
.

(
3
)
 
 
T
a
r
g
e
t
 
g
o
a
l
 
f
o
r
 
s
i
c
k
 
l
e
a
v
e
 
i
n
c
e
n
t
i
v
e
 
p
r
o
g
r
a
m
 
i
s
 
4
7
 
h
o
u
r
s
 
p
e
r
 
e
m
p
l
o
y
e
e
 
p
e
r
 
y
e
a
r
.

P
ag

e 
15

 o
f 1

84



Accomplishments

IT replaced firewall. 
IT setup Skype for District interviews. 
IT upgraded all client PCs to Internet Explorer 11. 
IT implemented a new version of Plant GIS. 
IT implemented the Eden-to-Hansen interface. 
IT upgraded Hansen to latest build. 
The Organizational Performance Program Manager (OPPM) created and issued “Big Picture” survey to    

       all staff . 
          The OPPM participated in Public Utility Performance Round Up Table (benchmarking) group session   

with other water/wastewater utilities nationwide. 
The OPPM met with EHSPM to review Safety Scorecard and explore streamlining measures 
The OPPM collected all BSC data for Q1 reporting 
The OPPM participated in meeting to plan/frame program for future FMC Internship 
Recruitment for Painter was completed; Troy Gaskins was hired on 10/6/2014. 

Performance Measures 
AVERAGE MONTHLY YIELD 

      

0.00%

0.25%

0.50%

0.75%

1.00%

Average Monthly Yield

LAIF 1Yr Rolling Avg Treasury USD Yield

Business Services Group  
Activities Report 

October 2014 

Page 16 of 184



BUDGET AND FINANCE REPORT

FY 2015    Year-to-date as of 10/31/14 33% of year elapsed
Unaudited

Revenues % of Last Year
Budget Actual Budget Rec'd Actuals 6/30/14

  Capacity Fees $2,700,000 $1,922,260 71% $3,315,007
  Sewer Service Charges 47,448,461 683,773 1% 45,139,420
  Operating 848,500 226,950 27% 1,072,242
  Interest 299,000 108,338 36% 385,844
  Misc. (incl. LAVWMA pymnt, solar, Cogen rebates) 1,994,200 199,979 10% 297,776

 Subtotal Revenues $53,290,161 $3,141,300 6% $50,210,289

  SRF Loan Proceeds (Thickener) 3,390,000 647,923 19% 2,424,739

Total Revenues + SRF Proceeds $56,680,161 $3,789,223 7% $52,635,028

Expenses % of Last Year
Budget Actual Budget Used Actuals

  Capital Improvement Prog.
       Capacity Projects $3,240,000 $714,458 22% $5,592,023
       Renewal & Repl. Projects 11,632,500 4,051,102 35% 14,195,068
  Operating 32,659,214 9,506,462 29% 30,751,966
  Special Projects 1,708,478 69,834 4% 775,361
  Retiree Medical (Annual Required Contribution) 543,540 135,885 25% 462,852
  Vehicle & Equipment 1,057,700 4 0% 784,695
  Information Systems 1,216,000 123,635 10% 848,449
  Plant & Pump Station R&R 250,000 16,411 7% 197,237
  Pretreatment Fund 7,000 19,389 277% 5,124
  County Fee for Sewer Service Charge Admin. 106,000 0 0% 105,559
  Misc. (A/R write-off) 0 0 0% 1,343
  Debt Servicing:
     SRF Loans (Irv.,Wilw,LHH,Cdr,NPS, Sub1,Boyc,Prim Cl) 3,127,389 1,319,228 42% 4,675,361

Total Expenses $55,547,821 $15,956,408 29% $58,395,038

Total Revenue & Proceeds less Expenses $1,132,340 ($12,167,185) ($5,760,010)

Gross Operating Expenses by Work Group % of Last Year
Budget Actual Budget Used Actuals

Board of Directors $170,900 $38,925 23% $166,233
General Manager/Admin. 1,036,505 376,191 36% 1,153,217
Business Services 4,666,100 1,452,163 31% 4,416,832
Collection Services 5,954,753 1,745,500 29% 5,460,336
Technical Services 5,247,562 1,482,205 28% 4,850,139
Treatment & Disposal Services 9,980,700 2,979,131 30% 9,739,655
Fabrication, Maint. & Construction 5,602,694 1,432,347 26% 4,965,555

Total $32,659,214 $9,506,462 29% $30,751,966

Operating Expenses by Type % of Last Year
Budget Actual Budget Used Actuals

Personnel (incl D&E) $22,966,422 $6,729,921 29% (35%)* $21,125,985
Repairs & Maintenance 1,828,375 410,031 22% 1,615,427
Supplies & Matls (chemicals, small tools) 2,453,720 695,236 28% 2,442,617
Outside Services (utilities, biosolids, legal) 5,217,697 1,646,473 32% 5,493,010
Fixed Assets 193,000 24,802 13% 74,927

Total $32,659,214 $9,506,462 29% $30,751,966

* Personnel Budget Target

Page 17 of 184



2,700,000

47,448,461

848,500
299,000

5,384,2001,922,260 683,773
226,950 108,338 847,902

$0
$5,000,000

$10,000,000
$15,000,000
$20,000,000
$25,000,000
$30,000,000
$35,000,000
$40,000,000
$45,000,000
$50,000,000

  Capacity Fees   Sewer Service Charges   Operating   Interest   Misc. (incl. SRF proceeds,
LAVWMA)

USD Revenues 

Budget

Actual

14,872,500

32,666,214

1,708,478 543,540 1,057,700 1,216,000 250,000 3,233,3894,765,560

9,525,851

69,834 135,885 4 123,635 16,411 1,319,228
$0

$5,000,000

$10,000,000

$15,000,000

$20,000,000

$25,000,000

$30,000,000

$35,000,000

  CIP   Operating/PRTM   Spec. Proj.   Retiree Med.   Vehic & Equip.   Info. Systems   Plant&P.S.   Debt+CntyFee+Misc

Total USD Expenses

Budget
Actual

170,900 1,036,505

4,666,100

5,954,753
5,247,562

9,980,700

5,602,694

38,925 376,191
1,452,163 1,745,500 1,482,205 2,979,131

1,432,347

$0

$2,000,000

$4,000,000

$6,000,000

$8,000,000

$10,000,000

$12,000,000

Board GM/Admin. BS CS TS T&D FMC

ECB Expenses by Work Group

Budget
Actual

22,966,422

1,828,375 2,453,720

5,217,697

193,000

6,729,921

410,031 695,236 1,646,473
24,802

$0

$5,000,000

$10,000,000

$15,000,000

$20,000,000

$25,000,000

Personnel (incl D&E) Repairs & Maintenance Operating Supplies &
Matls

Outside Services Fixed Assets

ECB Expenses by Type

Budget Actual

Page 18 of 184



Maturity 
Range 

Face 
Amount/Shares 

YTM @ 
Cost Cost Value 

Days To 
Maturity 

% of 
Portfolio Market Value Book Value 

Duration To 
Maturity 

0-1 Month 2,480,000.00 0.437 2,480,624.00 15 13.83 2,480,271.88 2,480,010.35 0.04 

1-3 Months 1,240,000.00 0.554 1,261,670.00 72 7.04 1,243,405.82 1,242,968.49 0.20 

3-6 Months 2,240,000.00 0.889 2,379,630.00 124 13.27 2,269,801.98 2,266,198.89 0.34 

6-9 Months 2,545,000.00 0.565 2,579,611.60 245 14.38 2,562,343.45 2,558,596.51 0.67 

1-2 Years 9,200,000.00 0.507 9,231,420.00 530 51.48 9,227,536.17 9,216,587.79 1.44 

Total / Average 17,705,000.00 0.560 17,932,955.60 332 100 17,783,359.30 17,764,362.03 0.90

All Portfolio Holdings Distribution by Asset Class

Operating Fund Holdings Distribution by Asset Class

Operating Fund Maturity Distribution

Page 19 of 184



U
n

io
n

 S
an

it
ar

y 
D

is
tr

ic
t

B
oa

rd
 R

ep
or

t 
- 

H
ol

d
in

g
s

R
ep

or
t 

Fo
rm

at
: 

B
y 

Tr
an

sa
ct

io
n

G
ro

up
 B

y:
 A

ss
et

 C
la

ss
P

o
rt

fo
lio

/
R

ep
o

rt
 G

ro
u

p
: 

A
ll 

P
o

rt
fo

lio
s

A
s 

o
f 

1
0

/
3

1
/

2
0

1
4

D
es

cr
ip

ti
o

n
C

U
S

IP
/

Ti
ck

er
C

re
d

it
 

R
at

in
g

 1
S

et
tl

em
en

t 
D

at
e

Fa
ce

 
A

m
ou

n
t/

S
h

ar
es

C
os

t 
V

al
u

e
C

ou
p

on
 

R
at

e
M

ar
ke

t 
V

al
u

e
Y

TM
 @

 
C

os
t

N
ex

t 
C

al
l 

D
at

e
M

at
u

ri
ty

 
D

at
e

%
 o

f 
P

o
rt

fo
lio

A
g

en
ci

es

FH
LM

C
 0

.5
 6

/2
0/

20
16

-
14

31
34

G
4N

38
M

oo
dy

s-
A
aa

12
/2

0/
20

13
1,

00
0,

00
0.

00
1,

00
0,

00
0.

00
0.

50
0

99
8,

43
7.

50
0.

50
0

12
/2

0/
20

14
6/

20
/2

01
6

3.
24

FN
M

A
 0

.5
 3

/3
0/

20
16

31
35

G
O

V
A
8

M
oo

dy
s-

A
aa

1/
24

/2
01

4
1,

00
0,

00
0.

00
1,

00
0,

75
0.

00
0.

50
0

1,
00

1,
82

0.
00

0.
46

5
3/

30
/2

01
6

3.
24

S
u

b
 T

o
ta

l /
 A

ve
ra

g
e

2
,0

0
0

,0
0

0
.0

0
2

,0
0

0
,7

5
0

.0
0

0
.5

0
0

2
,0

0
0

,2
5

7
.5

0
0

.4
8

2
6

.4
8

C
A

M
P

C
A
M

P 
LG

IP
LG

IP
40

00
N

on
e

5/
31

/2
01

1
9,

79
0.

56
9,

79
0.

56
0.

04
6

9,
79

0.
56

0.
04

6
N

/A
N

/A
0.

03

S
u

b
 T

ot
al

 /
 A

ve
ra

g
e

9
,7

9
0

.5
6

9
,7

9
0

.5
6

0
.0

4
6

9
,7

9
0

.5
6

0
.0

4
6

0
.0

3

C
er

ti
fi

ca
te

s 
o

f 
D

ep
o

si
t

A
lly

 B
an

k 
1 

10
/2

4/
20

16
02

00
6L

K
M

4
N

on
e

10
/2

3/
20

14
24

0,
00

0.
00

24
0,

00
0.

00
1.

00
0

24
0,

00
0.

00
1.

00
0

10
/2

4/
20

16
0.

78

A
m

er
ic

an
 E

xp
re

ss
 B

an
k 

1.
1 

10
/2

4/
20

16
02

58
7C

B
Z
2

N
on

e
10

/2
3/

20
14

24
0,

00
0.

00
24

0,
00

0.
00

1.
10

0
24

0,
00

0.
00

1.
10

0
10

/2
4/

20
16

0.
78

B
an

k 
of

 B
ar

od
a 

N
Y 

U
S
 

0.
4 

1/
22

/2
01

5
06

06
2A

FE
4

N
on

e
1/

22
/2

01
4

24
0,

00
0.

00
24

0,
00

0.
00

0.
40

0
24

0,
11

5.
82

0.
40

0
1/

22
/2

01
5

0.
78

B
M

W
 B

an
k 

N
or

th
 

A
m

er
ic

a 
0.

5 
3/

14
/2

01
6

05
56

8P
6V

4
N

on
e

3/
31

/2
01

4
24

0,
00

0.
00

23
9,

76
0.

00
0.

50
0

23
9,

82
3.

91
0.

55
2

3/
14

/2
01

6
0.

78

C
ap

ita
l O

ne
 B

an
k 

1 
10

/2
4/

20
16

14
04

20
Q

G
8

N
on

e
10

/2
2/

20
14

24
0,

00
0.

00
24

0,
00

0.
00

1.
00

0
24

0,
00

0.
00

1.
00

0
10

/2
4/

20
16

0.
78

D
is

co
ve

r 
B
an

k 
0.

5 
6/

11
/2

01
5

25
46

71
D

72
N

on
e

12
/2

4/
20

13
24

0,
00

0.
00

23
9,

91
8.

40
0.

50
0

24
0,

27
7.

39
0.

52
3

6/
11

/2
01

5
0.

78

G
E 

C
ap

ita
l R

et
ai

l B
an

k 
0.

95
 3

/1
6/

20
15

36
15

7P
A
U

3
N

on
e

1/
2/

20
13

24
0,

00
0.

00
24

0,
00

0.
00

0.
95

0
24

0,
65

1.
98

0.
95

0
3/

16
/2

01
5

0.
78

G
ol

dm
an

 S
ac

hs
 B

an
k 

0.
75

 1
1/

14
/2

01
4

38
14

3A
U

78
N

on
e

11
/3

0/
20

12
24

0,
00

0.
00

24
0,

00
0.

00
0.

75
0

24
0,

05
5.

94
0.

75
0

11
/1

4/
20

14
0.

78

G
re

at
 M

id
w

es
t 

B
an

k 
0.

75
 7

/2
7/

20
16

39
08

3P
C
K
6

N
on

e
10

/2
7/

20
14

24
0,

00
0.

00
24

0,
00

0.
00

0.
75

0
24

0,
44

6.
06

0.
75

0
7/

27
/2

01
6

0.
78

M
er

ri
ck

 B
an

k 
0.

5 
6/

30
/2

01
5

59
12

Y5
Y9

N
on

e
12

/3
0/

20
13

24
0,

00
0.

00
24

0,
00

0.
00

0.
50

0
24

0,
25

7.
81

0.
50

0
6/

30
/2

01
5

0.
78

S
al

lie
 M

ae
 B

an
k 

0.
75

 
11

/1
4/

20
14

79
54

50
Q

K
4

N
on

e
11

/3
0/

20
12

24
0,

00
0.

00
24

0,
00

0.
00

0.
75

0
24

0,
05

5.
94

0.
75

0
11

/1
4/

20
14

0.
78

S
u

b
 T

o
ta

l /
 A

ve
ra

g
e

2
,6

4
0

,0
0

0
.0

0
2

,6
3

9
,6

7
8

.4
0

0
.7

4
5

2
,6

4
1

,6
8

4
.8

5
0

.7
5

2
8

.5
5

P
ag

e 
20

 o
f 1

84



D
es

cr
ip

ti
o

n
C

U
S

IP
/

Ti
ck

er
C

re
d

it
 

R
at

in
g

 1
S

et
tl

em
en

t 
D

at
e

Fa
ce

 
A

m
ou

n
t/

S
h

ar
es

C
os

t 
V

al
u

e
C

ou
p

on
 

R
at

e
M

ar
ke

t 
V

al
u

e
Y

TM
 @

 
C

os
t

N
ex

t 
C

al
l 

D
at

e
M

at
u

ri
ty

 
D

at
e

%
 o

f 
P

o
rt

fo
lio

C
or

p
or

at
e 

Is
su

es

G
en

er
al

 E
le

ct
ri
c 

C
ap

ita
l 

C
or

p 
1.

62
5 

7/
2/

20
15

36
96

2G
5Z

3
M

oo
dy

s-
A
1

3/
31

/2
01

4
1,

00
0,

00
0.

00
1,

01
4,

53
0.

00
1.

62
5

1,
00

8,
67

0.
00

0.
46

0
7/

2/
20

15
3.

28

G
en

er
al

 E
le

ct
ri
c 

C
ap

ita
l 

C
or

p 
2.

15
 1

/9
/2

01
5

36
96

2G
5M

2
M

oo
dy

s-
A
1

8/
16

/2
01

3
1,

00
0,

00
0.

00
1,

02
1,

67
0.

00
2.

15
0

1,
00

3,
29

0.
00

0.
59

0
1/

9/
20

15
3.

31

G
en

er
al

 E
le

ct
ri
c 

C
ap

ita
l 

C
or

p 
2.

37
5 

6/
30

/2
01

5
36

96
2G

5F
7

M
oo

dy
s-

A
1

11
/3

0/
20

12
50

0,
00

0.
00

51
7,

74
5.

00
2.

37
5

50
6,

41
5.

00
0.

98
0

6/
30

/2
01

5
1.

68

G
en

er
al

 E
le

ct
ri
c 

C
ap

ita
l 

C
or

p 
4.

87
5 

3/
4/

20
15

36
96

2G
P6

5
M

oo
dy

s-
A
1

9/
18

/2
01

3
1,

00
0,

00
0.

00
1,

05
9,

83
0.

00
4.

87
5

1,
01

5,
08

0.
00

0.
75

0
3/

4/
20

15
3.

43

In
te

rn
al

tio
na

l B
us

in
es

s 
M

ac
hs

 0
.4

5 
5/

6/
20

16
45

92
00

H
L8

M
oo

dy
s-

A
a3

11
/2

6/
20

13
1,

00
0,

00
0.

00
99

6,
84

0.
00

0.
45

0
99

8,
50

0.
00

0.
58

0
5/

6/
20

16
3.

23

JP
 M

or
ga

n 
C
ha

se
 4

.7
5 

3/
1/

20
15

46
62

5H
C
E8

M
oo

dy
s-

A
3

1/
2/

20
13

1,
00

0,
00

0.
00

1,
07

9,
80

0.
00

4.
75

0
1,

01
4,

07
0.

00
1.

01
2

3/
1/

20
15

3.
50

W
el

l F
ar

go
 B

an
k 

0.
75

 
7/

20
/2

01
5

94
98

5H
5F

7
M

oo
dy

s-
A
a3

3/
31

/2
01

4
56

5,
00

0.
00

56
7,

41
8.

20
0.

75
0

56
6,

72
3.

25
0.

42
0

7/
20

/2
01

5
1.

84

S
u

b
 T

o
ta

l /
 A

ve
ra

g
e

6
,0

6
5

,0
0

0
.0

0
6

,2
5

7
,8

3
3

.2
0

2
.5

9
6

6
,1

1
2

,7
4

8
.2

5
0

.6
8

4
2

0
.2

6

LA
IF

LA
IF

 L
G

IP
LG

IP
10

02
N

on
e

4/
30

/2
01

1
12

,9
48

,5
15

.3
5

12
,9

48
,5

15
.3

5
0.

24
6

12
,9

48
,5

15
.3

5
0.

24
6

N
/A

N
/A

41
.9

2

S
u

b
 T

o
ta

l /
 A

ve
ra

g
e

1
2

,9
4

8
,5

1
5

.3
5

1
2

,9
4

8
,5

1
5

.3
5

0
.2

4
6

1
2

,9
4

8
,5

1
5

.3
5

0
.2

4
6

4
1

.9
2

T
re

as
u

ry

T-
B
on

d 
0.

25
 5

/1
6/

20
16

91
28

28
V
C
1

M
oo

dy
s-

A
aa

1/
24

/2
01

4
1,

00
0,

00
0.

00
99

4,
53

0.
00

0.
25

0
99

8,
59

3.
70

0.
48

8
5/

16
/2

01
6

3.
22

T-
N

ot
e 

0.
37

5 
11

/1
5/

20
14

91
28

28
R
Q

5
M

oo
dy

s-
A
aa

5/
25

/2
01

2
2,

00
0,

00
0.

00
2,

00
0,

62
4.

00
0.

37
5

2,
00

0,
16

0.
00

0.
36

2
11

/1
5/

20
14

6.
48

T-
N

ot
e 

0.
37

5 
2/

15
/2

01
6

91
28

28
U

M
0

M
oo

dy
s-

A
aa

1/
24

/2
01

4
1,

00
0,

00
0.

00
99

9,
53

0.
00

0.
37

5
1,

00
1,

87
5.

00
0.

39
8

2/
15

/2
01

6
3.

24

T-
N

ot
e 

0.
5 

6/
15

/2
01

6
91

28
28

V
G

2
M

oo
dy

s-
A
aa

3/
27

/2
01

4
1,

00
0,

00
0.

00
99

9,
53

0.
00

0.
50

0
1,

00
2,

58
0.

00
0.

52
1

6/
15

/2
01

6
3.

24

T-
N

ot
e 

1.
37

5 
11

/3
0/

20
15

91
28

28
PJ

3
M

oo
dy

s-
A
aa

12
/2

0/
20

13
2,

00
0,

00
0.

00
2,

04
0,

48
0.

00
1.

37
5

2,
02

5,
46

0.
00

0.
33

0
11

/3
0/

20
15

6.
61

S
u

b
 T

o
ta

l /
 A

ve
ra

g
e

7
,0

0
0

,0
0

0
.0

0
7

,0
3

4
,6

9
4

.0
0

0
.6

6
5

7
,0

2
8

,6
6

8
.7

0
0

.3
9

8
2

2
.7

7

To
ta

l 
/

 A
ve

ra
g

e
3

0
,6

6
3

,3
0

5
.9

1
3

0
,8

9
1

,2
6

1
.5

1
0

.8
7

7
3

0
,7

4
1

,6
6

5
.2

1
0

.4
2

8
1

0
0

P
ag

e 
21

 o
f 1

84

A
ll 

in
ve

st
m

en
t 

ac
tio

ns
 e

xe
cu

te
d 

si
nc

e 
th

e 
la

st
 r

ep
or

t 
ha

ve
 b

ee
n 

m
ad

e 
in

 f
ul

l c
om

pl
ia

nc
e 

w
ith

 t
he

 D
is

tr
ic

t's
 I

nv
es

tm
en

t 
Po

lic
y.

 
Th

e 
D

is
tr

ic
t 

w
ill

 m
ee

t 
its

 e
xp

en
di

tu
re

 o
bl

ig
at

io
ns

 f
or

 t
he

 n
ex

t 
si

x 
m

on
th

s.
 

M
ar

ke
t 

va
lu

e 
so

ur
ce

s 
ar

e 
th

e 
LA

IF
, 

C
A
M

P,
 a

nd
 B

N
Y 

M
el

lo
n 

m
on

th
ly

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

.



U
n

io
n

 S
an

it
ar

y 
D

is
tr

ic
t

B
oa

rd
 R

ep
or

t 
- 

A
ct

iv
it

y
P

o
rt

fo
lio

/
R

ep
o

rt
 G

ro
u

p
: 

A
ll 

P
o

rt
fo

lio
s

Fr
o

m
 1

0
/

1
/

2
0

1
4

 T
o 

1
0

/
3

1
/

2
0

1
4

D
es

cr
ip

ti
on

C
U

S
IP

/
Ti

ck
er

Fa
ce

 A
m

ou
n

t/
S

h
ar

es
P

ri
n

ci
p

al
In

te
re

st
/

D
iv

id
en

d
s

C
ou

p
on

 R
at

e
Y

TM
 @

 C
os

t
S

et
tl

em
en

t 
D

at
e

To
ta

l

B
U

Y

A
lly

 B
an

k 
1 

10
/2

4/
20

16
02

00
6L

K
M

4
24

0,
00

0.
00

24
0,

00
0.

00
0.

00
1.

00
0

1.
00

0
10

/2
3/

20
14

24
0,

00
0.

00

A
m

er
ic

an
 E

xp
re

ss
 B

an
k 

1.
1 

10
/2

4/
20

16
02

58
7C

B
Z
2

24
0,

00
0.

00
24

0,
00

0.
00

0.
00

1.
10

0
1.

10
0

10
/2

3/
20

14
24

0,
00

0.
00

C
ap

ita
l O

ne
 B

an
k 

1 
10

/2
4/

20
16

14
04

20
Q

G
8

24
0,

00
0.

00
24

0,
00

0.
00

0.
00

1.
00

0
1.

00
0

10
/2

2/
20

14
24

0,
00

0.
00

G
re

at
 M

id
w

es
t 

B
an

k 
0.

75
 7

/2
7/

20
16

39
08

3P
C
K
6

24
0,

00
0.

00
24

0,
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
75

0
0.

75
0

10
/2

7/
20

14
24

0,
00

0.
00

S
u

b
 T

o
ta

l /
 A

ve
ra

g
e

9
6

0
,0

0
0

.0
0

9
6

0
,0

0
0

.0
0

0
.0

0
9

6
0

,0
0

0
.0

0

D
EP

O
S

IT

C
A
M

P 
LG

IP
LG

IP
40

00
0.

46
0.

46
0.

00
0.

00
0

10
/3

1/
20

14
0.

46

LA
IF

 L
G

IP
LG

IP
10

02
13

,0
53

.3
9

13
,0

53
.3

9
0.

00
0.

00
0

10
/1

5/
20

14
13

,0
53

.3
9

S
u

b
 T

ot
al

 /
 A

ve
ra

g
e

1
3

,0
5

3
.8

5
1

3
,0

5
3

.8
5

0
.0

0
1

3
,0

5
3

.8
5

IN
TE

R
ES

T

C
A
M

P 
LG

IP
LG

IP
40

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

46
0.

00
0

10
/3

1/
20

14
0.

46

G
E 

C
ap

ita
l B

an
k 

0.
4 

10
/1

7/
20

14
36

16
3C

FX
3

0.
00

0.
00

97
7.

32
0.

40
0

0.
00

0
10

/1
7/

20
14

97
7.

32

LA
IF

 L
G

IP
LG

IP
10

02
0.

00
0.

00
13

,0
53

.3
9

0.
00

0
10

/1
5/

20
14

13
,0

53
.3

9

M
er

ri
ck

 B
an

k 
0.

5 
6/

30
/2

01
5

59
12

Y5
Y9

0.
00

0.
00

98
.6

3
0.

50
0

0.
00

0
10

/2
8/

20
14

98
.6

3

S
u

b
 T

ot
al

 /
 A

ve
ra

g
e

0
.0

0
0

.0
0

1
4

,1
2

9
.8

0
1

4
,1

2
9

.8
0

M
A

TU
R

ED

G
E 

C
ap

ita
l B

an
k 

0.
4 

10
/1

7/
20

14
36

16
3C

FX
3

24
5,

00
0.

00
24

5,
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
40

0
0.

00
0

10
/1

7/
20

14
24

5,
00

0.
00

S
u

b
 T

o
ta

l /
 A

ve
ra

g
e

2
4

5
,0

0
0

.0
0

2
4

5
,0

0
0

.0
0

0
.0

0
2

4
5

,0
0

0
.0

0

W
IT

H
D

R
A

W

LA
IF

 L
G

IP
LG

IP
10

02
1,

00
0,

00
0.

00
1,

00
0,

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0

10
/3

/2
01

4
1,

00
0,

00
0.

00

LA
IF

 L
G

IP
LG

IP
10

02
30

0,
00

0.
00

30
0,

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0

10
/1

0/
20

14
30

0,
00

0.
00

LA
IF

 L
G

IP
LG

IP
10

02
30

0,
00

0.
00

30
0,

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0

10
/1

7/
20

14
30

0,
00

0.
00

LA
IF

 L
G

IP
LG

IP
10

02
1,

40
0,

00
0.

00
1,

40
0,

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0

10
/2

2/
20

14
1,

40
0,

00
0.

00

LA
IF

 L
G

IP
LG

IP
10

02
60

0,
00

0.
00

60
0,

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0

10
/2

4/
20

14
60

0,
00

0.
00

LA
IF

 L
G

IP
LG

IP
10

02
90

0,
00

0.
00

90
0,

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0

10
/3

1/
20

14
90

0,
00

0.
00

S
u

b
 T

ot
al

 /
 A

ve
ra

g
e

4
,5

0
0

,0
0

0
.0

0
4

,5
0

0
,0

0
0

.0
0

0
.0

0
4

,5
0

0
,0

0
0

.0
0

P
ag

e 
22

 o
f 1

84



COLLECTION SERVICES  
ACTIVITIES REPORT

October 2014

Progress/Accomplishments   
        

Completed 82,891 feet of cleaning and 74,346 feet of televising of sewer lines in October
Responded to 44 service request calls in October
Completed a total of 30 main repairs in October
Marked and located all sewer lines (Underground Service Alerts)
Provided support on the following projects: Lateral Condition Assessment, Upper Hetch Hetcy 
Trunk Line Lining, Jarvis Ave Sewer Relocation, Newark Backyard Lateral Relocation, 
Alvarado Site use Study, & Plant Shut Downs
Hosted a Vendor Fair for MSA
Participated in and presented at a CSOTF Benchmarking meeting
Participated in a BACWA meeting
Continued training of 3 Collection System Worker I employees
Continued on our progress on catching up on 72 Month Cleaning and Inspection PMP
Participated in a Benchmarking meeting with CASSE
Participated with State Committee to rewrite the SSMP Development Guide
Participated in recruitment for CSWI and CS Manager

Training for Collections included;
SOP CS529 Sewer Snake (Ridgid K-7500), SOP CS542 Arrow & Sign Boards, Several CS staff 
attended the CWEA Safety Day in Woodland, Competent Person Traffic Control training, and Safety 
Star Points shared and discussed topics from Safety meeting.

Future Planning

Continue effort of to catch up on 72 Month Cleaning and Inspection PMP
Hire new CSW I employee
Continue planning for transition for new CS Work Group Manager  

Performance Measures

Page 23 of 184



                

Other Collection Services Status Data:
Support Team Work Order Status:

C/S Maintenance Status: 

  

Page 24 of 184



MONTHLY OPERATIONS REPORT FOR THE MONTH OF OCTOBER 2014
TECHNICAL SUPPORT WORK GROUP SUMMARY

Capital Improvement Program

Boyce Road Lift Station Project – Phase 2 – Contractor installed power and communication 
cables for the weir gate actuators; completed functional and operational testing for the weir gate 
actuators and load bank. The programmer completed PLC and SCADA programming for the weir 
gate actuators. Contractor installed a check valve on the sump pump discharge line in the influent 
structure.

Cogeneration Project – Contractor completed the first phase of operational test of the 
cogeneration equipment and the digester gas conditioning equipment.  The cogeneration 
equipment supplier had to make adjustments to address some operational issues.  Staff 
anticipates the last phase of operational test will begin in November.

Jarvis Ave. SS Replacement – The project is nearly complete.  Change order work, punchlist 
work, and closeout are all now in progress.  Final paving restoration will be in November. 

Primary Digester No. 5 Rehabilitation Project – Contractor completed installation of the 
temporary containment structure.  Sandblast removal on the underside of the side has begun.  
Sandblast work will be completed in November.    

Sodium Hypochlorite Tanks A and B Replacement – Contractor completed final installation 
of Tank B.  Ladder support modifications to Tank A and the Irvington PS Tank were made.  
Tank B ladder modifications to be performed once the proper supports arrive.  Other 
remaining punch list items include O&M Manual submittal.

Thickener Control Building Improvements Project – Installation of underslab conduits for 
the new Thickener Electrical Building is currently underway. Concrete slab installation; 
including subbase, formwork, rebar and concrete placement is scheduled for November.

Upper Hetch Hetchy SS Rehabilitation – Street restoration and site improvements are in 
progress.  The last CIPP lining site (Willow St. in Newark), is planned in November.  Project 
should be complete by the end of December. 

Customer Service
Trouble Calls dispatched from the Front Desk during business hours:

Fremont Newark Union City Total
24 5 3 32

Communication & Graphics
Distributed NACWA Award Press Release to Argus, Tri-City Voice and Patch; added to 
USD’s What’s New Page, Facebook and Twitter accounts
Designed GM’s Lions Club presentation and new template; wrote synopsis and
forwarded to Lions contact with GM’s biographical info; attended presentation with GM

Page 25 of 184



Updated website: Awards Page, Links Page (garbage company info.)
Public Website Upgrade project: Held prospective vendor online interviews, reviewed 
website examples, developed questions for reference checks of 3 finalists; held 
conference calls with references, reviewed reference input, discussed, scored prospects 
and selected vendor to begin contract negotiations
Continued Union City Chamber activities; attended State of the State luncheon as 
Chamber representative
Attended Napa Earthquake symposium: City of Napa, Health Dept. and School District 
Public Info Officers presented their Earthquake response scenarios
Facilitating USD’s involvement with Alameda County Science and Engineering Fair; 
communicating with lead Agency (DSRSD), committed to creating award certificates after 
winners are announced, assisting in recruitment of judges

Environmental Compliance

Pollution Prevention Program
# of Dental 
Inspections

# of School Outreach Events 
including Sewer Science

# of Plant Tours

6 8 0

Misc. Pollution Prevention (Dental trainings, Plumbing Contractor training, etc.) 
Name of Event Date

None

Reports (Annual Pollution Prevention, City of Fremont reports, etc.) 
Report Name Date Report Completed and 

Submitted
FY 15-Q1 City of Fremont Quarterly Billing October 16, 2014

Pollution and Prevention
Inspections Illicit 

Discharge 
Complaints

Enforcement Actions

UR FOG Total Type UR FOG
88 41 129 0 Verbal Warning 4 7

Notice of Deficiency 0 0
Warning Letter 0 4
Notices of Violation 7 0
Admin Fine 5 0
Legal Action 0 0

Industrial
Reports (Annual & Semi-Annual Pretreatment Report, Union City Report, etc.) 

Report Name Date Report Completed and Submitted
None

Page 26 of 184



Pending Permits
New Industrial/Groundwater Permits Groundwater/Temporary

None

Permits Issued  
Company Name Date Permit Issued

GW-14-006 Weeks Drilling and Pump 
Co.

10/29/14

Industrial Closures  
Company Name Date of Closure

None

Enforcement Action
Violation IU Name & 

Nature of 
Business

City 
(F, 
N,   
UC)

Parameters 
Violated

Discharge 
concentration
(mg/L)

USD/Fed Limit 
Violated
(mg/L)

Comments

None

(1) Warning Letter (WL), Notice of Violation (NOV), Administrative Order (AO), Cease & Desist Order 
(C&D), Significant Non Compliance (SNC), (EM) Enforcement Meeting

(2) Fremont (F) Newark (N)    Union City (UC)
(3) Daily Max (DM)   Monthly Average (MA)

Other - Team training, Special Meetings, Conferences, Special Recognition, IAC (topics)

Activity Date of Event Attendees
2014 Traffic Control 

Training
10/23/14 Michael, Edda, Doug, Joe, 

Jason, Alex, Aaron

Engineering/Construction
Construction Projects Capital

($1000)
Scheduled 
Completion

Completed 
Scope

Completed
Time

Comments for
October 2014 Activity

1. Boyce Road LS Phase 
2 – Thomas 

$330 12/14 70% 61% Installed power and 
communication 
cables, completed
PLC and SCADA 
programming, and
completed testing for 
the weir gate 
actuators and load 
bank.

2. Cogeneration Project –
Raymond

$10,566 9/14 95% 100% Completed first 
phase of operational 
testing of the cogen-
eration and digester 
gas conditioning 
systems.  Last phase 
of operational testing 
is scheduled in Nov.

Page 27 of 184



Construction Projects Capital
($1000)

Scheduled 
Completion

Completed 
Scope

Completed
Time

Comments for
October 2014 Activity

3. Jarvis Ave. SS 
Replacement – Chris E.

$1,046 11/14 86% 78% Change Order,
punchlist, and 
closeout work in pro-
gress.  Final paving 
in Nov.

4. Sodium Hypochlorite 
Tanks A and B 
Replacement – 
Rollie/Derek

$220 10/14 95% 100% All tank installations
are substantially 
complete. Ladder 
modifications to com-
ply with OSHA com-
pleted for Tank A and 
Irvington PS FC tank.

5. Thickener Control 
Building Improvements 
Project – Curtis

$9,990 9/16 6% 15% Construction of new 
Thickener Electrical 
Building is currently 
underway.  

6. Upper Hetch Hetchy SS 
Rehabilitation – Chris E.

$3,021 12/14 76% 82% Street restoration and 
site improvements in 
progress.  Newark
(Willow St.) in Nov.

7. Primary Digester No. 5
Rehabilitation Project - 
Chris P.

$779 12/14 41% 55% Completed scaffold-
ing installation and 
began sandblasting 
of steel dome.  

Design/Study
Design/Study Projects Capital

($1000)
Scheduled 
Completion

Completed 
Scope

Completed
Time

Comments for
October 2014 Activity

1. Irvington Basin Master 
Plan Update – Capacity 
Assessment - Rollie

$231 6/15 0% 20% Continuing data 
gathering

2. Local Limits and 
Wastewater Treatability 
Study – Michael D.

$107 6/15 98% 100% RMC generated 
technical memo on 
viability of TPH limit

3. Seismic Study -
Raymond

$148 9/14 98% 100% Evaluating additional 
fee for more detailed 
seismic performance 
analysis of four 
structures.

4. Cast Iron Lining Phase 
VI – Andrew

In-
House

11/14 100% 90% Completing 100% 
submittal drawings 
and specs for review

5. Miscellaneous Spot Re-
pairs Phase VI – 
Andrew

In-
House

3/15 90% 25% Final Scope com-
plete, 50% drawings 
are in progress

6. Alvarado-Niles Road SS 
Rehabilitation – Chris E.

$248 4/15 30% 29% 50% design submittal
due Nov. 21st.

Page 28 of 184



Design/Study Projects Capital
($1000)

Scheduled 
Completion

Completed 
Scope

Completed
Time

Comments for
October 2014 Activity

7. Pine St. Easement 
Improvements –  
Chris E.

TBD TBD 0% 0% West Yost submitted 
Agreement & Task 
Order No.1 (pre-
design) for review

8. Plant Site Use Study –
Curtis

$200 6/15 10% 23% Workshop No. 1 to 
take place in Nov.

9. MCC and PLC 
Replacement Project, 
Phase 3 – Chris P.

$78 6/15 0% 10% Beecher Engineering 
has begun the design 
of the Project.  

10. Generator Controls 
Upgrade Project – Chris 
P.

$72 6/15 0% 0% Completed negotia-
tions of Task Order 
(approved by GM).  

11. Plant Facilities 
Improvements Project –
Thomas

TBD TBD 0% 0% West Yost submitted 
Agreement & Task 
Order No.1 (pre-
design) for review

12. Plant Lighting Study –
Thomas

TBD 6/15 0% 0% TRC (Consultant) 
submitted Agreement 
& Task Order No.1
for review

13. Administrative and Field 
Operations Buildings 
Leak Investigation –
Chris P.

$51 10/14 100% 100% Received revised 
final report.  

14. Pump Station Master 
Plan – Raymond

TBD TBD TBD TBD Awaiting task order 
from Carollo.

15. Newark Backyard SS 
Relocation – Phase 2 - 
Rollie

$200 3/15 35% 37% Individual sewer 
lateral plans under 
review; Sewer main 
design in progress

16. Aeration Blower Project 
– Chris P.

TBD TBD TBD TBD Negotiating Task 
Order with Carollo.  
Supplied Quest with 
data request on 
Aeration system.  

Page 29 of 184



Future Planning

Attended the WEF/WERF webinar on wastewater energy solutions.
Attended the NACWA sustainability webinar.

Prepare application for the Old Alameda Creek NPDES permit reissuance.
Finalize the Hayward Marsh Rehabilitation Project Baseline TM.

Maintained 100% compliance with NPDES permits.

Reviewed the Hayward Marsh Rehabilitation Project Baseline TM and provided 
comments.

Review the Draft Hayward Marsh Rehabilitation Project Options Draft TM.

Prepare for the ELAP recertification of the treatment plant laboratory.

Other

Treatment & Disposal
Activities Report

October 2014

Progress/Accomplishments

Completed 99% preventive maintenance activities for the month of October.

Cogen system produced 29% of power consumed for the month of October.

Schedule Options Workshop with the Hayward Marsh Rehabilitation Proect 

Attended the Regional Monitoring Program Annual Meeting.

Provide a tour of the Hayward Marsh to the Regional Water Board Staff.

Attend the BACWA Nurtient Symposium II.

Page 30 of 184



Performance Measurements

0

300

600

900

1200

1500

1800

2100

2400

2700

3000

kw
h/

M
G

Plant kwh per Million Gallons

kwh/MG Purchased kwh/MG Generated Target

0

250

500

750

1000

1250

1500

1750
TPO PM WO's Completed vs Pending

Completed Pending

20000
25000
30000
35000
40000
45000
50000
55000
60000
65000
70000
75000
80000

Co gen Energy Value

Page 31 of 184



Parameter

SS 30 mg/l
BOD 25 mg/l
F. Coliform 500, 5-Day Log Mean

1100, 90th Percentile

Copper 78 g/l
Nickel 79 g/l
Mercury 0.066 g/l
Cyanide < 4.0 42 g/l

0.00249
4.0
5.1

6
17 - 56

17

30 - 165

Monthly Average NPDES Permit Limits

Operational/NPDES Performance

20

22

24

26

28

30

m
g/

d

Flow

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

Oct 13 Nov 13 Dec 13 Jan 14 Feb 14 Mar 14 Apr 14 May 14 Jun 14 Jul 14 Aug 14 Sep 14 Oct 14

Results

EFF. SS CBOD SS Limit CBOD Limit

Page 32 of 184



Co-Gen commissioning.
Performance Measurements

Future PlanningPrepare and coat piping and machinery in Pump Room #4 lower gallery.Install level detection on new chemical tanks.
Other

Inspect west force main to Headworks valve seat.

Completed 96% preventive maintenance activities for the month of October.Completed 84 corrective maintenance work orders for the month of October.Retrofitted covered storage lighting to LED fixtures.Overhauled #1 centrifuge.Assisted with bypass pumping at Newark Pump Station for CIP.

                FMC 
                 Activities Report

              October 2014

Progress/Accomplishments

0

5

10

15

20

Oct-13 Nov-13 Dec-13 Jan-14 Feb-14 Mar-14 Apr-14 May-14 Jun-14 Jul-14 Aug-14 Sep-14 Oct-14

N
o.

 o
f W

O
s 

Priority A Repairs Required 
Total Target

Page 33 of 184



0

25

50

75

100

125

150
N

o.
  o

f  
W

O
s 

Number of Work Orders Initiated & Completed Within Month 

Initiated Completed

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

140

160

N
o.

 o
f W

O
s 

Number of Work Orders over 90 Days 

# WO's Target

Page 34 of 184



DATE: November 24, 2014 

MEMO TO:  Board of Directors - Union Sanitary District

FROM:  Paul R. Eldredge, General Manager/District Engineer
Richard A. Cortes, Business Services Manager
Todd W. Jacob, Information Technology Administrator

SUBJECT: Agenda Item No. 8 - Meeting of November 24, 2014 
AUTHORIZE THE GENERAL MANAGER TO EXECUTE AN
AGREEMENT WITH NICHOLAS J. PEROS, P.E. FOR THE 
CREATION OF A SCADA MASTER PLAN AND SCADA 
STANDARDS

Recommendation

Authorize the General Manager to execute an agreement with Nicholas J. Peros, 
P.E. for the creation of a Supervisory Control and Data Acquisition (SCADA)
Master Plan and SCADA Standards for an amount not to exceed $246,764. In 
addition, approve $10,000 in other project related costs.

Background

The District’s SCADA system is a critical system used to monitor and control the 
wastewater collection and treatment processes. In addition, data collected from 
the SCADA system is used for trends and compliance reports. 

The IT Master Plan completed in FY’12 defined the need to create a SCADA 
Master Plan and document SCADA Standards. This will be the first SCADA Master 
Plan and SCADA Standards developed for the District. The results will provide the 
District a strategic road-map defining SCADA improvement projects over the next 
five years along with standards that will be used to align future SCADA-related 
projects. The FY’15 budget includes funds for the creation of a SCADA Master 
Plan and SCADA Standards.

Directors
Manny Fernandez
Tom Handley
Pat Kite
Anjali Lathi
Jennifer Toy

Officers
Paul Eldredge
General Manager
District Engineer

David M. O'Hara
Attorney

5072 Benson Road Union City, CA 94587-2508
P.O. Box 5050 Union City, CA 94587-8550
(510) 477-7500          FAX (510) 477-7505

www.unionsanitary.ca.gov

Page 35 of 184



The SCADA Master Plan involves a needs assessment, the review of our existing 
SCADA systems and processes, recommendations for improvement, and an 
implementation plan for proposed projects. The existing SCADA system is 
scheduled for renewal after this project is finished so we can leverage the 
information collected during the SCADA Master Plan and SCADA Standards 
project. 

Staff developed an RFP for the consultant services and Purchasing posted it 
on www.PublicPurchase.com then issued it to six firms on September 22, 2014.
Staff received proposals from the following seven firms: 

Nicholas J. Peros, P.E.
Westin
ARCSine
CH2M HILL
Tetra Tech
EMA
JSP Automation

The proposals were evaluated by the following members of the SCADA Master 
Plan and SCADA Standards Project Team:

Dave Livingston, Treatment and Disposal Services Manager
Todd Jacob, Information Technology Administrator
David Leath, Electrical/Support Team Coach
Raymond Chau, Capital Improvements Projects Team Coach
Armando Lopez, Total Productive Operations Coach (Days)
Trieu Nguyen, Senior Information Technology Analyst  

CH2M HILL and Nicholas J. Peros, P.E. were invited to interview and Nicholas J. 
Peros, P.E. was selected based on their experience and approach to the project.  
Nicholas J. Peros, P.E. has conducted similar work for Monterey Regional Water 
Pollution, Stockton East Water District, Calleguas Municipal Water District, and El 
Dorado Irrigation District. 

The attached Agreement, RFP, and Proposal comprises the complete Scope of 
Work for these phases of the project and some of the major elements of the Scope 
are summarized here:

SCADA Master Plan and SCADA Standards
Phase I – Needs Assessment

o Site Visits
o Final Report – Chapter 1

5072 Benson Road Union City, CA 94587-2508
P.O. Box 5050 Union City, CA 94587-8550
(510) 477-7500          FAX (510) 477-7505

www.unionsanitary.ca.gov

Page 36 of 184



Phase II – Review Existing SCADA System and Processes
o Workshops
o Final Report – Chapter 2

Phase III – Recommendations
o SCADA Standards

PLC Programming
SCADA Programming
Control Panels
Instrumentation

o Final Report – Chapter 3
Phase IV – Implementation Plan

o Project Definitions
o Final Report – Chapter 4

Phase V – Report
o Final Executive Summary and Complete Report

Note that services from Automated Network Controls and Beecher Engineering will 
be utilized to provide detailed information about our SCADA and electrical 
environment at an estimated cost of $10,000. 

Funds are budgeted as part of the IT budget, within the Information System (IS) 
renewal and replacement fund. The project is scheduled to be completed by June
2015.  At that time, the completed SCADA Master Plan will be presented to the 
Board for approval.

Staff recommends the Board authorize the General Manager to execute an 
agreement with Nicholas J. Peros, P.E. for the creation of a SCADA Master Plan 
and SCADA Standards for an amount not to exceed $246,764. In addition, approve 
$10,000 in other project related costs.

PRE/RAC/TWJ 

Attachments: Agreement, Request for Proposal, Proposal

5072 Benson Road Union City, CA 94587-2508
P.O. Box 5050 Union City, CA 94587-8550
(510) 477-7500          FAX (510) 477-7505

www.unionsanitary.ca.gov

Page 37 of 184



Page 38 of 184



Page 39 of 184



Page 40 of 184



Page 41 of 184



Page 42 of 184



Page 43 of 184



Page 44 of 184



Page 45 of 184



Page 46 of 184



#S-15-S-202 SCADA Master Plan and SCADA Standards 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Request for Proposals
 
 

Supervisory Control and Data 
Acquisition (SCADA) Master Plan 

and SCADA Standards
 

        #S-15-S-202
 
 
 

Issue Date: September 22, 2014
Proposals Due Date: October 23, 2014 by 4:00 p.m.
Union Sanitary District
5072 Benson Road 
Union City, CA 94587

Roslyn Fuller, Purchasing Agent
5072 Benson Road
Union City, CA 94587
Phone: 510-477-7526
Fax:  510-477-7509
E-Mail: Roslyn_fuller@unionsanitary.com

1 

Page 47 of 184



#S-15-S-202 SCADA Master Plan and SCADA Standards 
 

TABLE OF CONTENTS
 
 
Section  Description     Page 
 
I.    Definitions     3 

II.   Instructions to Proposers   3 

III.   RFP Proposed Timeline   5 

IV.   Notice to Proposers    5    

V.   General Scope of Project   7 

VI.    Submittal of Proposal Format and Content 11 

VII.   Instructions to Proposers   13 

VIII.   Proposer’s Checklist    14 

IX.    Proposal Criteria and Evaluation  15 

X.    T’s & C’s/Sample Agreement    16 

XI.   Cost Proposal Form     24 

XII.   Offer and Signature    24 

 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
  
A. Organizational Chart 
B. Non-Collusion Affidavit (To be submitted with proposal) 
C. Network Diagram 
D. Budget/Cost Proposal 
E. Travel Policy 

 

 

2 

Page 48 of 184



#S-15-S-202 SCADA Master Plan and SCADA Standards 
 
 

I. DEFINITIONS

1. Proposer-The firm submitting a proposal in response to this Request for  Proposals

2. USD, District – The Union Sanitary District, Union City, California

3. RFP – This Request of Proposals solicitation

4. Vendor, Contractor, Supplier – Successful Proposer or proposer awarded the contract 
or purchase order for the work. 

5. SCADA – Supervisory Control and Data Acquisition

6. ODMS - Operations Data Management System

7. CMMS – Computerized Maintenance Management System

8. PLC – Programmable Logic Controller

9. HMI – Human Machine Interface

10. CIP – Capital Improvements Projects

II. INSTRUCTIONS TO PROPOSERS

1. FIRM PROPOSAL. Proposers' prices shall remain firm for a period of ninety- (90) days 
from the Date Due,   unless otherwise specified in the Request for Proposal (RFP).

2. FORMS. Proposals must be submitted on preprinted Proposal forms supplied by the 
Purchasing Office.  

3. INFORMED PROPOSERS. Before submitting Proposals, Proposers must fully inform 
themselves of the conditions, requirements and specifications of the work or materials 
to be furnished.  Failure to do so will be at Proposers’ own risk and they cannot secure 
relief on the plea of error.

4. INK OR TYPEWRITTEN. All information, prices, notations, signatures, and corrections 
must be in ink or typewritten.  Mistakes may be crossed out and corrections typed or 
printed adjacent to the mistake and initialed in ink by the person signing the proposal.

5. PAYMENT TERMS. Discounts for payments made twenty- (20) days or more from 
receipt of invoice will not be considered in award of Proposal.  Payment discounts must 
be clearly shown on the proposal form.

3 

Page 49 of 184



#S-15-S-202 SCADA Master Plan and SCADA Standards 
 

6. PRICES. Prices shall be stated in units and Proposals made separately on each item.  
Where there is a conflict between unit prices and extended prices, unit prices will govern.  
Where there is a conflict between words and figures, words will govern.

7. QUESTIONS. Questions about the RFP general provisions or technical provisions 
should be made in writing and directed to Roslyn Fuller, Purchasing Agent, 
at www.publicpurchase.com.

8. RESULTS. No public opening of Proposals submitted will be conducted.  

9. RULES FOR SUBMITTING PROPOSALS.

a. Date Due. Proposals must arrive at the Union Sanitary District by the due date, 
time and at the location indicated on the cover of this RFP.

b. Responsibility. Proposers are solely responsible for ensuring their Proposal is 
received by the District in accordance with the solicitation requirements, before 
the date and time specified in the RFP, and at the place specified.  The District 
shall not be responsible for any delays in mail or by common carriers or by 
transmission errors or delays or mistaken delivery.  Delivery of proposal shall be 
made at the office specified in the RFP.  Deliveries made before the Date Due 
and time but to the wrong District office will be considered non-responsive unless 
re-delivery is made to the office specified before the Date Due and time specified 
in the RFP.

c. Late Proposals. The Proposal shall be due on the date and time indicated in 
Section III, Proposed Timeline below. Proposals received after the date and/or 
time stated will be considered late and may not be considered for award.

d. Extension of Date and Time. The District reserves the right to extend the Date 
Due and/or time when it is in the best interest of the District.

e. Facsimile Transmissions. Proposals may not be submitted by facsimile.  

f. Forms. To be considered for award, each RFP shall be made on forms furnished 
by the District.

g. Signature. To be considered for award, each RFP shall be signed by a 
representative of the Proposer who is authorized to bind the firm to the proposal.

h. Sealed. Proposals must be submitted in a sealed envelope, and delivered to 
Union Sanitary District, 5072 Benson Road, Union City, CA 94587. 

III.  RFP Proposed Time Schedule

4 

Page 50 of 184



#S-15-S-202 SCADA Master Plan and SCADA Standards 
 

The RFP process will proceed according to the following tentative schedule:

September 22, 2014 RFP Released
October 9, 2014 Pre-proposal meeting from 9-11 A.M.
October 13, 2014 Submittal questions due by 5:00 P.M.
October 16, 2014 Addendum Issued 
October 23, 2014 Proposal Submittal Deadline 4:00 P.M. 
October 24-30, 2014 Evaluation Process
November 11, 2014 Consultant Interviews/Clarification
November 12, 2014 Contract Negotiations
November 24, 2014 Contract Award

Tentative Project Schedule
April 30, 2015 Drafts of final reports and 

recommendations
June 30, 2015 Final reports due 

IV. NOTICE TO PROPOSERS

Notice is hereby given that Union Sanitary District, 5072 Benson Road, Union City, 
California, County of Alameda, State of California, will receive at the office of the
Purchasing Agent, sealed proposals for: 

 
SCADA Master Plan and SCADA Standards

 
Requests for clarifications and questions may be submitted at any time up to, but no later 
than close of business, as described in Section III Proposal Timeline. Questions shall be 
sent to: Roslyn Fuller, Purchasing Agent, at www.publicpurchase.com or via e-mail
at Roslyn_fuller@unionsanitary.ca.gov (underscore line between first and last name).

The Project Manager on this Project will be: Todd Jacob, Information Technology 
Administrator.

 
All proposed pricing shall include all related permits and taxes, if applicable. Offers shall 
be submitted on the form contained in the RFP solicitation, copies of which can be obtained 
from www.publicpurchase.com Each proposal shall be filed no later than 4:00 p.m., 
on Wednesday, October 22, 2014.

All mailed Proposals shall be marked on the outside of the sealed envelope as 
follows: 

Name & Address of Proposer
SCADA Master Plan and SCADA 
Standards
Indicate RFP S-14-S-192 and
Proposal Due Date & Time

To: Roslyn Fuller, Purchasing Agent
Union Sanitary District 

       5072 Benson Road
Union City, CA 94587

               

5 

Page 51 of 184



#S-15-S-202 SCADA Master Plan and SCADA Standards 
 

The District reserves the right to reject any or all Proposals or to waive any
informalities or minor irregularities in any proposal, or to cancel this Request for 
Proposals at any time. 

 
No Proposer may withdraw their proposal after the close of the proposal submission 
date.  

This is a Request for Proposals solicitation.  Proposals will not be publically opened 
on the indicated due date and time but will be reviewed, evaluated and scored by 
the District in accordance with the evaluation criteria and timeline delineated in this 
solicitation.  

Background

Union Sanitary District (the “District”) operates pursuant to Division 6 of the Health 
and Safety Code of the State of California (Sanitary District Act of 1923, as 
amended). The District, which was established in 1918 and subsequently 
reorganized in 1923, is empowered to own and operate wastewater facilities, and 
the Board of Directors may prescribe, revise and collect fees or charges for services 
and facilities of the District in connection with its wastewater system.
The District is governed by a five-member Board of Directors elected by wards for 
four-year overlapping terms. The election is at-large and non-partisan. The Board 
appoints the General Manager to manage and oversee the day-to-day operations.

Introduction

The SCADA Master Plan and SCADA Standards project came out of the IT Master 
Plan completed in 2012.  There has not been a SCADA Master Plan developed for 
the District to date, this project will create the first SCADA Master Plan and SCADA 
Standards documents.  The objective of the SCADA Master Plan is to provide a 
roadmap for our SCADA system evolution over the next 5-7 years achieved through 
strategic projects sequenced to realize our planned vision and goals. The objective 
of the SCADA Standards project is to develop a comprehensive set of standards in 
a way that guides the uniform design, implementation, and management of the 
District’s SCADA system; to optimize its operational value; to enhance its 
maintainability, and to lower its delivery cost and risk. As a guide for the expected 
level of effort for these two projects, more emphasis should be placed on the 
SCADA Master Plan than the SCADA Standards.  

The budget for this project is $250,000. 
  
There has been an ongoing need to define standards for the District’s SCADA 
system with an overall plan that will move us forward for several years now.  CIP 
has already developed some standards for PLC programming that are used for 
project bids but there is more work that needs to be done. 

The SCADA servers and workstations hardware are up for renewal over the next 12 
months.  The information developed by this project will directly feed into how the 
SCADA servers and workstations hardware and software are implemented.  In 
addition, we have upgraded our CMMS system and added Mtelligence software that 
can be leveraged to perform predictive analysis going forward if sensors and their 
data are available.

6 

Page 52 of 184



#S-15-S-202 SCADA Master Plan and SCADA Standards 
 

The Plant operates a SCADA system that monitors and controls Plant processes.  
The software is GE Proficy iFix version 5.0, Proficy Historian 4.5, and Proficy Portal 
3.5. This software is an HMI attached to PLC’s located in the plant and 8 remote 
sites gathering process data and archiving historical data.

The lab uses a customized Microsoft Access database to store the majority of their 
data.  An ODMS project is under way as an alternative system to track lab and 
SCADA data.

V.   GENERAL SCOPE OF PROJECT 

The anticipated Scope of Services will include but is not limited to the following:

1. Needs Assessment

Meet with the SCADA Steering Committee, Management, major users, 
Electricians, and IT staff to gather information about District SCADA 
system operations and future goals. Receive input on how the District
SCADA system needs to support these goals.

a. Schedule individual and group meetings to receive input
b. Summarize results and identify gaps 

2. Review Existing SCADA System and Processes

SCADA Master Plan
a. Technology and governance
b. SCADA Service Level Agreement
c. SCADA Standard Operating Procedures 
d. SCADA Job Competency Requirements and Answers
e. Operations and Maintenance metrics
f. SCADA alarm notification system and process
g. SCADA reporting including data from the SCADA system 

and lab data results entry
h. Operator manual data entry, storage, and reporting
i. Lab data entry, storage, and reporting
j. SCADA to CMMS interface for generating work orders 

based on runtime data
k. Mtelligence software for generating predictive alerts based 

on sensor data
l. SCADA system replacement practices
m. Remote access solution
n. Network design including the primary and backup 

7 

Page 53 of 184



#S-15-S-202 SCADA Master Plan and SCADA Standards 
 

architecture, subnets, and routing
o. Disaster recovery plan and procedures
p. Use of Consultants

SCADA Standards
a. Documented and de facto standards
b. PLC Programming Standards RS Logix 5000
c. PLC Panel Layout/Hardware Requirements
d. System Integration Guidelines
e. Control philosophy
f. SCADA Network diagram
g. Recent SCADA-related CIP project scope
h. 300+ SCADA screens – review for conformance to 

standards defined

At completion of this task, meet with management to present findings and 
preliminary recommendations.  

3. Recommendations

Using the information gathered in section V.1. and V.2. as well as the 
consultant’s expertise, develop draft recommendations explaining how 
the District SCADA system can meet the needs of the District. Include 
recommendations based on industry best practices.  All experimental 
practices, processes, and technology are out of scope and should not be 
included as a recommendation. Recommendations shall cover the 
following areas:

SCADA Master Plan
a. Vision, goals, and objectives for the District’s SCADA 

system 
b. Training, practices, and procedures to maintain and 

enhance the SCADA system
c. Technology, practices, and procedures to secure and 

maintain security for the SCADA system 
d. Technology and practices used to manage and retain 

knowledge assets
i. Documentation
ii. Historical data
iii. Staff institutional experience

e. Using the SCADA system to optimize operations and 
maximize our value through improved monitoring and 

8 

Page 54 of 184



#S-15-S-202 SCADA Master Plan and SCADA Standards 
 

access to decision making information.
i. Reduce energy and chemical consumption
ii. Reduce Sanitary Sewer Overflow events
iii. Do more with the same levels of operational and 

support staff
f. Operations and Maintenance metrics including charts, 

trends, and alerts
g. A consolidated view of all data to effectively manage and 

optimize operations and maintenance
h. SCADA integration with other business systems

i. Review current integration between SCADA and 
CMMS

ii. Identify new integration needs from staff
iii. Identify benefits that can be realized by integrating 

with other business systems based on industry best 
practices

iv. Document the results in the SCADA master plan
i. Automated operator collection solutions for entering 

manually collected data from the field
j. Process measurement and instrumentation management

i. Additional sensors on all key assets to support 
predictive analysis to avoid costly failures (leveraging 
Mtelligence software solution)

ii. Additional instrumentation for regulatory compliance 
and optimization initiatives

iii. Smart instruments that improve maintenance and 
calibration

iv. Instrumentation accuracy
v. Instrument redundancy in critical process areas
vi. Lifecycle management including replacement of 

instruments
k. The use of virtualization for SCADA servers and 

workstations including the recommended configuration for 
maximum redundancy and uptime

l. Asset management practices for the SCADA system 
including how often to replace hardware for the SCADA 
servers, workstations, PLCs, HMIs, and network switches.  
Include these hardware replacements as projects.

m. Software upgrade philosophy for maintaining SCADA server 
software, PLC software, and HMI software.

n. Remote access solution
o. Network design improvements for redundancy, reliability, 

9 

Page 55 of 184



#S-15-S-202 SCADA Master Plan and SCADA Standards 
 

manageability, and security
p. Future SCADA trends and technologies
q. Disaster recovery plan and procedures
r. Use of Consultants
s. Appropriate SCADA support staffing levels and skill 

development areas

SCADA Standards
a. Document control philosophy standards for the control 

system, control modes, and architecture
b. Document software development methodology that defines 

each phase of the SCADA software development process 
including: 

i. Phase sequencing and dependencies
ii. Phase deliverables
iii. Testing requirements 
iv. Standard documentation and test forms

c. Develop Process Control Narrative requirements that 
defines standards for what to include in a SCADA-related 
project.

d. Document programming standards for the HMI, PLCs, and 
Historian.

e. Document SCADA Design Standards including:
i. Naming conventions
ii. Alarm configuration
iii. Screen development (colors, animation, navigation, 

graphics, and architecture)
iv. Chart development
v. Guidelines for the application of the standards
vi. Specification outlines and format
vii. Template drawings (P&ID, Loop Termination 

Drawings, control panel layout, instrument 
installation details for pressure, flow and level).

f. Document standards for SCADA Network Design, Alarm 
Management, Data Management, and Reporting.

g. Document SCADA Design Methodology that defines each 
phase of the design process from Preliminary Design 
through the Bid Phase including: 

i. Number of design phases
ii. Constraints
iii. Dependencies
iv. Phase deliverables

10 

Page 56 of 184



#S-15-S-202 SCADA Master Plan and SCADA Standards 
 

v. Design reviews
h. SCADA screens redesign for standardization, correction, 

and improvement. Include this as a project.
i. Facilitate a workshop to validate the SCADA Standards 

developed and documented against a small SCADA related 
project.

Present cost/benefit justification and work with management to identify 
any funding constraints and incorporate into final recommendations. 
Present draft recommendations to the District SCADA Steering 
Committee and Executive Team. Present final recommendations at 
District and Board meetings.

4. Implementation Plan

Using the final recommendations collected in Section V.3. Propose 
projects to implement these recommendations.  Develop a detailed time-
phased implementation plan for each of these projects. The plan shall 
include timing and resources needed to implement each proposed project. 

5. Reports

Compile the work elements from V.1. through V.4. above into two written 
reports that will document the process and findings. The reports shall be 
structured such that they can be updated periodically. Submit draft reports 
and incorporate District comments to publish final “SCADA Master Plan” 
and “SCADA Standards” reports.

VI. Submittal of Proposal Format and Content
1.  Describe your approach and methodology to the Scope of Work (SOW)

above. 

A. Describe your methodology and approach to this project.
The proposal should set forth a work plan, including an explanation of the 
methodology to be followed, to perform the services required in this 
request for proposal.  

Proposers will be required to provide the following information on their 
approach:

i. Proposed sequencing of the engagement
ii. Level of staff and number of hours to be assigned to each proposed 

11 

Page 57 of 184



#S-15-S-202 SCADA Master Plan and SCADA Standards 
 

segment of the engagement
 

B. Describe your Firm’s qualifications and experience
The proposer should state the size of the firm, the size of the firm's SCADA 
master planning staff, the location of the office from which the work on this 
engagement is to be performed. Describe the experience of the firm with 
sewer sector-related projects over the past five years.

C. Proposed project team
All responses must include resumes of each individual who will be 
providing Specialized Consulting Services under this proposal, as well as 
written descriptions of the individuals’ experience including the SCADA 
Master Plan and SCADA Standards development experience. Indicate 
how the quality of staff over the term of the agreement will be assured.
The Detailed Proposal should demonstrate the qualifications of the 
particular staff to be assigned to this engagement. All Respondents must 
identify the Project Manager who will have primary responsibility for 
contact and communications, and the person who is authorized to 
negotiate and contractually-bind your organization. 
Provide a schedule of hourly rates to be charged by personnel identified 
as the proposed project team and rate categories for additional personnel 
that may work on specific assignments.
The District reserves the right to investigate and review the background of 
any or all personnel assigned to work under the Agreement including any 
work orders thereto, and, based on such investigations, to reject the use 
of any persons within the District’s discretion. 
Any changes to personnel require formal written approval by the District 
and the District reserves the right to terminate the Agreement if changes 
are not approved.

D. Describe how you will track and manage the contract hours and costs.

E. Describe how as Consultant you would work with District staff and 
facilitate meetings.

F. Provide a schedule for this project including payment milestones, the team 
members, and total hours. 

G. Include sample formats for SCADA Master Plans and SCADA Standards.

H. References
All responses must include references from at least five (5) clients of the firm, 

12 

Page 58 of 184



#S-15-S-202 SCADA Master Plan and SCADA Standards 
 

and preferably clients who have utilized the firm on matters related to the 
Specialized Consulting Services set forth in this RFP. The references must 
include the primary contact person, address, phone number, description of the 
services provided, date, and total hours. If individuals identified as participants 
in a contract entered into under this RFP previously participated in any of the 
projects performed for other clients on the foregoing list, please identify the 
projects in which the individual participated.

I. Options
Provide any other information the Proposer believes is applicable to the 
evaluation of the proposal. You may use this section to address those aspects 
of your services that distinguish your firm from other firms.

J. Billing Rates and Structure
The District anticipates establishing a not to exceed agreement with the selected 
firm. Proposers are required to complete the Cost Proposal, Attachment D
based on time and materials not to exceed costs. Cost proposal will be sealed 
in a separate envelope and clearly mark as COST PROPOSAL. One should 
be marked “ORIGINAL” and “COPY”.  For travel costs, please refer to the 
District’s Travel Policy, Attachment E. Any travel expenses are to be included 
as separate line items in your proposal and will adhere to the District’s Travel 
Policy.

VII.    INSTRUCTIONS TO PROPOSERS
 

1. Firms interested in submitting Proposals for {name project} shall submit in writing one 
(1) original 8 x 11 unbound Proposal marked “ORIGINAL”, one electronic version in 
PDF Format, on a CD or “thumb-drive” and six (6) 8 x 11 bound copies, (no three ring 
binders) marked “COPY”, on or before the Submittal Deadline for Proposals, responses 
must be delivered to:

RFP #S-15-S-202
SCADA Master Plan and SCADA Standards
Union Sanitary District
5072 Benson Road
Union City, CA 94587

 2.  Any and all data, materials and documentation submitted to Union Sanitary District
(District) in response to this RFP shall become the District’s property and shall be subject 
to public disclosure under the California Public Records Act.
   
3. Submitted Responses must be valid in all respects for a minimum period of sixty (60)
days after the deadline for submission.  

4. The proposal shall be made using the proposal cost forms provided herein.  Blank 
spaces on the form shall be properly filled, and no additions shall be made to the items 
mentioned therein, unless requested. 

 
13 

Page 59 of 184



#S-15-S-202 SCADA Master Plan and SCADA Standards 
 

For the purposes of this solicitation, the words Contractor, Supplier, and Seller shall hold
the same meaning as the firm or company awarded a contract under this solicitation and 
a District Purchase Order is issued for the service described herein.

 
The full name, business address, and business telephone number of the individual,
partnership, joint venture, or corporation submitting the proposal shall be typewritten or 
legibly printed on the proposal form.  The proposer shall sign the proposal with his usual 
signature.

 
The proposer shall state for each item on the proposal form, in clearly legible figures, the
unit price and item total or lump sum, as the case may be, for which he proposes to
perform the work and/or furnish the material or equipment required by these specifications. 
Alteration of a price by erasure or interlineations must be initialed by the proposer. 

 
A partner shall sign for a partnership and the names and addresses of all partners shall
be given.

 
An officer shall sign for a corporation, the corporate name shall be attested by the
corporate seal, and the names and titles of all officers of the corporation shall be given. 
A signature other than a corporate officer's will be accepted if an authenticated power of
attorney is attached.

The District may award a contract resulting from this solicitation to the proposer whose 
proposal will be most advantageous to the District, ba s e d  on  t h e  e va lu a t i n g  
c r i t e r i a ,  as specified in Section IX, Proposal Criteria and Evaluation of this solicitation, 
and price.

5. The District reserves the right to:   
1. Reject any or all proposals if such action is in the best interest of the District. 

  2. Accept a proposal other than the lowest proposal.  
3. Waive informalities or minor irregularities in proposals received.   

  4. Award a contract on the basis of initial proposal received, without   
      further discussions, negotiations or request for best-and-final offers, with any   
      proposal.  Therefore, each initial proposal shall contain the proposer’s best terms and 
      cost from a technical and responsiveness standpoint. 

6. Proposers shall acknowledge receipt of any addendum to this solicitation by  
 identifying the addendum number and date on the form(s) for submitting a proposal. 

Failure to acknowledge receipt of an addendum may result in rejection of proposal as 
non-responsive and thus rejection from further consideration.

 
7. Proposers must complete all forms requiring specific information. Incomplete forms 

may deem the proposal non-responsive and thus rejection from further consideration.  

VIII. PROPOSER'S CHECKLIST
Listed below is a checklist provided for your use prior to sealing your proposal.  Your close 
attention to the following items will assure that your proposal may not be rejected because
of non-responsiveness due to incompleteness, errors or omission.
1) Proposal

a. Date  
b. Business Profile and Firm Name entered exactly as it appears on your
     corporate seal and invoice and address.

14 

Page 60 of 184



#S-15-S-202 SCADA Master Plan and SCADA Standards 
 

      c.  Methodology and approach  
d. List of project team members and resumes
e. List References
f.  Sign your proposal, failure to comply may be cause for rejection of   
    the proposal. 
g. Statement of Experience

2) Budget/Cost Proposal (in a separate sealed envelope. One should be marked    
      “ORIGINAL” and “COPY”
3)  Offer's References   

Fill in sufficient detail to establish your ability to carry out the Scope of Work and  
as evidence of responsiveness to the RFP requirements. Also refer to Section     
IX, Proposal Criteria and Evaluation.

4)  Addenda  
  Acknowledged all addenda, if any on the Proposal Form in Section XIII, Offer and
     Signature. 

IX. PROPOSAL CRITERIA AND EVALUATION 

Proposals will be evaluated to conformance to the general criteria listed below
by an evaluation committee comprised of District employees having familiarity 
and expertise in evaluating the work to be done. 

 
Evaluation criteria and assigned point values to be used to evaluate 
proposals received are listed below: 

i. Proposer’s References and Statement of Experience:  
This includes a description of experience in carrying out projects of this 
type, demonstrated by specific examples from the past (5) years and 
evaluation of proposer’s project team experience, record of 
performance, demonstrated capacity, facilities and organizational 
structure to perform the type of services sought in this RFP. Evaluation
of this criterion will also include reference checking.  

Maximum Points = 60 points
 

ii. Proposer’s Responsiveness to the RFP Methodology and approach: This 
includes the proposer’s completeness, clarity, detail and methodology to 
the District’s scope of work, Demonstrated knowledge of the work to be 
completed, as well as the inclusion and completeness of requested forms
(e.g. resumes of project team, furnished Proposal Form [properly signed 
and executed], complete point-of-contact information for references 
provided, submission of the Non-Collusion Affidavit, etc.). 

Maximum Points = 40 points 

                                                                                      Total Possible Points = 100
 

iii. Cost Proposal: The cost to the District will be considered in the evaluation 
after the evaluations of the above factors. The degree of the importance of cost 
will increase with the degree of equality of the proposals in relation to the other 
factors on which selection is to be based. Your cost proposal must be in a 
separate sealed envelope, clearly mark “Cost Proposal” One 
should be marked “ORIGINAL” and “COPY”.

X.      GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS
15 

Page 61 of 184



#S-15-S-202 SCADA Master Plan and SCADA Standards 
 

The successful Proposer is expected to enter into an agreement with the District. The 
District’s standard Professional Services Agreement Terms and Conditions are 
included in this RFP.  Please provide any proposed changes in that form agreement 
along with your proposal.

Article 1 - Contract Documents: The Contract documents consist of the Agreement between 
the District and the Contractor, these Terms and Conditions for Services, Technical 
Specifications, plans, and any supplemental terms and conditions (hereinafter together referred 
to as the "Contract").  The Contract represents the entire, integrated agreement between the 
parties hereto and supersedes any prior negotiations or representations either written or oral.  
The Agreement shall be signed by the District and Contractor.  Execution of the Agreement by 
the Contractor is a representation that the Contractor has reviewed and understood the 
Contract, visited the site, familiarized itself with the site conditions for the work to be performed 
and has agreed to be bound by all the terms and conditions of the Contract.  The intent of the 
Contract is to include everything necessary for the proper execution and completion of the 
Contract.

Article 2 - Changes: The District may make changes in the work by additions, deletions, or 
revision.  The District shall notify the Contractor before such changes by written notice.  If such 
changes affect the cost of or the time required for performance of this Contract, an equitable 
adjustment in the price or time or both shall be made.  No change by Contractor shall be allowed 
without prior written approval of District.  Any claim of Contractor for an adjustment under this 
Article must be made in writing within thirty (30) days from the date of receipt by Contractor of 
notification of such change unless District waives this condition in writing.  Nothing in this Article 
shall excuse the Contractor from proceeding with performance of the Contract as changed.

Article 3 - Payment:  Payments will be made upon submission of itemized invoices at the prices 
stipulated herein for goods and after delivery and acceptance or after services are rendered 
and accepted, less deductions, if any, as herein provided.  Payment for partial deliveries may 
be made whenever amounts due so warrant or when requested by the Seller and approved by 
Buyer.  Payment due dates will be computed from the date of receipt of goods or services, or 
the date of receipt of a correct invoice (whichever is later) to date Buyer’s check is issued.  
Payment of invoice shall not constitute acceptance of the goods and shall be subject to 
appropriate adjustment for failure of Seller to meet the requirements of this order.  Buyer may 
set off any amount owed by Seller to Buyer against any amount owed by Buyer to Seller under 
this order.

Article 4 - Taxes: Contractor shall pay all contributions, taxes and premiums payable under 
federal, state and local laws measured upon the payroll of employees engaged in the 
performance of work under this Contract, and all applicable sales, use, excise, transportation, 
privilege, occupational and other taxes applicable to materials and supplies furnished or work 
performed hereunder and shall save District harmless from liability for any such contributions, 
premiums and taxes.

Article 5 - Inspection: Contractor shall provide the District with the necessary facilities to 
conduct a safe and convenient inspection and/or testing of the work throughout its execution.  
The District shall have the power to reject any material and/or work that is not in conformity with 

16 

Page 62 of 184



#S-15-S-202 SCADA Master Plan and SCADA Standards 
 
the Contract.  All rejected material and/or work shall be removed and promptly replaced by the 
Contractor all to the satisfaction of the District and at no expense to the District.

Article 6 - Termination:

a. District may, by written notice stating the effective date, terminate this Contract for 
convenience at any time.  District shall pay Contractor as full compensation for 
performance until such termination the unit or pro rata Contract price for the performed 
and accepted portion of the Contract.

b. The District may, by written notice, terminate this Contract if the Contractor commits a 
breach of the Contract and fails or refuses to cure such breach within ten (10) working 
days after receipt of a written notice to cure.  The Contractor shall be liable for all costs 
incurred by the District in completing the Contract in excess of the Contract price, less 
the amount previously paid to Contractor as of the date of termination.

c. If, after notice of termination for default, District determines that the Contractor was not 
in default or that the failure to perform this Contract was due to causes beyond the 
control and without the fault or negligence of Contractor (including, but not restricted to, 
acts of God or of the public enemy, acts of District, acts of government, fires, floods, 
epidemics, quarantine restrictions, strikes, freight embargoes, unusually severe 
weather, and delays of a subcontractor or supplier or their respective sub subcontractors 
and/or suppliers due to such causes and without the fault or negligence of the 
subcontractor or supplier or their respective sub subcontractors and/or suppliers), 
termination shall be deemed for the convenience of District, unless District shall 
determine that the services covered by this contract were obtainable by Contractor from 
other sources in sufficient time to meet the required performance schedule.

d. If the District determines that Contractor has been delayed in the work due to causes 
beyond its control and without the fault or negligence of Contractor or its subcontractors 
and suppliers, District may extend the time for completion of the work under this 
Contract, when promptly applied for in writing by Contractor.  Any extension granted 
shall be effective only if given in writing.  If such delay is due to failure of District, not 
caused or contributed to by Contractor, to perform services or deliver property in 
accordance with the terms of the Contract, Contractor in event of delay or failure of 
District to perform shall, however, be limited to any money actually and necessarily 
expended in the work during the period of delay, solely by reason of the delay.  No 
allowance will be made for anticipated profits.

e. The rights and remedies of District provided in the Article shall not be exclusive and are 
in addition to any other rights and remedies provided by law or under this Contract.

Article 7 - Character of Services:  Contractor, as an independent Contractor, shall furnish all 
equipment, personnel and materials necessary to complete the Contract in the time prescribed 
expeditiously and efficiently during as many hours per shift per week and at such locations as 
the District may so require and designate.

17 

Page 63 of 184



#S-15-S-202 SCADA Master Plan and SCADA Standards 
 
Article 8 - Patent Rights, Copyrights, Trade Names and Royalties: Contractor shall defend, 
indemnify and hold harmless the District against all losses, damages, liabilities, costs, and
expenses including attorneys' fees arising from any infringement of any patent right, copyrights, 
and/or trade name.  Contractor shall pay all applicable royalties and license fees and other 
charges for the use of any patent right, copyright, or trade name in completing this Contract.

Article 9 - Warranty: Contractor warrants to the District that all materials and equipment 
provided under this Contract will be new and of the highest quality and all work performed will 
be of the highest quality, free from defect and in strict conformance with this Contract.  If, within 
one (1) year after acceptance by the District, or within such longer period prescribed by law or 
elsewhere in this Contract any portion of the work is found defective or not in strict conformance 
with the Contract, the Contractor shall promptly make all the necessary corrections at no cost 
to the District.  This warranty obligation shall survive the termination of this Contract.

Article 10 - Assignment and Subcontracting:  This Contract may not be assigned or 
subcontracted by Contractor without prior written approval of District.  In case such consent is 
given, it shall not relieve Contractor from any of the obligations of this Contract and any 
transferee or subcontractor shall be considered the agent of Contractor and, as between the 
parties hereto, Contractor shall be and remain liable as if no such transfer or subcontracting 
had been made.

Article 11 - Indemnity: The Contractor has the entire responsibility for any and all death of or 
injury to the Contractor's or its subcontractor's employees as well as the public, for all loss or 
damage arising from any obstructions or difficulties, either natural or artificial, which may be 
encountered in the work under this Contract, for damage to property resulting from the 
performance of work under this contract, for damage from any action of the elements prior to 
final acceptance of the work under this Contract, for damage from any act or omission not 
authorized by the Contract on the part of the Contractor, its subcontractors, suppliers or agents.  
Contractor expressly agrees to indemnify, defend and hold harmless the District, its Directors, 
officers, employees, and consultants free and harmless from and against any and all loss, 
liability, expense, claims, costs, suits, damages, judgments, including attorneys' fees, arising 
out of Contractor's operations or performance of work under this Contract including but not 
limited to the above-mentioned responsibilities. These obligations shall survive notwithstanding 
the Contractor’s completion of the work, expiration or termination of the contract.

Article 12 - Permits, Licenses and Laws:  Contractor shall procure, pay for and comply with 
all permits and licenses necessary for the completion of the Contract.  Contractor shall abide by 
all applicable laws, regulations and ordinances of the United States, California and its political 
subdivisions in which the work under this Contract is performed.  Contractor shall be liable for 
all damages and shall indemnify and save District harmless from and against all damages and 
liability that may arise out of the failure of Contractor to secure, pay for and comply with any 
such licenses or permits or to comply fully with any and all applicable laws, regulations and/or 
ordinances.

Article 13 - Cooperation: Contractor and its subcontractors, if any, shall cooperate with the 
District and other vendors and contractors on the premises and shall so carry on their work that 
other cooperating vendors and contractors shall not be hindered, delayed or interfered within 

18 

Page 64 of 184



#S-15-S-202 SCADA Master Plan and SCADA Standards 
 
the progress of their work, and so that all of such work shall be finished and complete job of its 
kind.

Article 14 - Waiver of Default:  Any failure of District at any time, or from time to time, to enforce 
or require the strict keeping and performance by Contractor of any of the terms or conditions of 
this Contract shall not constitute a waiver by District of a breach of any such terms or conditions 
in any way, or the right of District at any time to avail itself of such remedies as it may have for 
any such breach or breaches of such terms and conditions.

Article 15 - District Furnished Property:  Contractor assumes complete liability for any District 
property furnished to Contractor in connection with this Contract.  Contractor by accepting such 
District furnished property acknowledges that the property is appropriate for the use for which it 
is intended, free from defect and new.  Contractor agrees to return the District furnished property 
less reasonable wear and tear or pay the District the full value of such District furnished property 
that is destroyed, damaged, kept, lost or not accounted for.  Title to District furnished property 
shall remain at all times with the District unless otherwise provided in writing.

Article 16 -Reserved

Article 17 - Insurance Requirements for Contractors 

Contractor shall provide and maintain at all times during the performance of the Agreement 

the following insurances:

A.  Minimum Scope of Insurance: 

     Coverage shall be at least as broad as:

1. Insurance Services Office Commercial General Liability coverage (occurrence Form CG 
00 01).

2 Insurance Service Office Form Number CA 00 01 covering Automobile Liability, Code 1 
(any auto).

3. Workers’ Compensation insurance as required by the State of California and Employer’s 
Liability Insurance.

B.  Workers' Compensation Insurance: as required by the State of California. 

C.  Employer's Liability Insurance $1,000,000 per accident for bodily injury or disease.

D. General Liability Insurance (Including operations, products and completed operations, as 
applicable). Said insurance shall provide a minimum of $1,000,000 per occurrence for bodily 
injury, personal injury and property damage.  If Commercial General Liability Insurance or 
other form with a general aggregate limit is used, either the general aggregate limit shall 
apply separately to this project/location or the general aggregate limit shall be twice the 
required occurrence limit. 

19 

Page 65 of 184



#S-15-S-202 SCADA Master Plan and SCADA Standards 
 
E.  Automobile Liability Insurance: Automobiles, trucks, and other vehicles and equipment 

(owned, not owned, or hired, licensed or unlicensed for road use) shall be covered under this
policy.  Limits of liability for Comprehensive Automobile Liability Insurance shall not be less 
than $1,000,000 per accident for bodily injury and property damage. 

F.  Deductibles:  Any deductibles or self-insured retentions must be declared to and approved 
by the District.  At the option of the District, either: the insurer shall reduce or eliminate such 
deductibles or self-insured retentions as respects to the District, its officers, officials, 
employees and volunteers; or the Contractor shall provide a financial guarantee satisfactory 
to the District guaranteeing payment of losses and related investigations, claim 
administration and defense expenses. 

G.  Other Insurance Provisions

1.   The general liability and automobile liability policies are to contain, or be endorsed to   

          contain, the following provisions: 

      a.  The Union Sanitary District, its officers, officials, employees and volunteers are to be  
covered as insureds with respect to liability arising out of automobiles owned, leased 
hired or borrowed by on or behalf of the Contractor; and with respect to liability arising 
out of work or operations performed by or on behalf of the Contractor including 
materials, parts or equipment furnished in connection with such work or operations.  
General Liability coverage shall be provided in the form of an Additional Insured 
endorsement (CG 20 10 11 85 or equivalent) to the Contractor’s insurance policy, or 
as a separate owner’s policy. 

   b.  For any claims related to this project, the Contractor’s insurance coverage shall be 
primary insurance as respects to the District, its officers, officials, employees and 
volunteers.  Any insurance or self-insurance maintained by the District, its officers, 
officials, employees and volunteers shall be excess of the Contractor’s insurance and 
shall not contribute with it. 

   c.  Each insurance policy required by this clause shall be endorsed to state that coverage 
shall not be canceled by either party, except after thirty (30) day’s prior written notice 
has been provided to the District.   

H.  Acceptability of Insurers: Insurance is to be placed with insurers with a current A.M. Best’s 
rating of no less than A:VII, unless otherwise acceptable to the District.  Exception may be 
made for the State Compensation Insurance Fund when not specifically rated. 

I. Verification of Coverage: Contractor shall furnish the District with original certificates and
amendatory endorsements to the overlaying policies, effecting coverage required by this 
clause.  The endorsements should on forms provided by the District or on other than the 
District’s forms provided those endorsements conform the District’s requirements.  All 
certificates and endorsements are to be received and approved by the District before work 
commences.  However, failure to do so shall not operate as a waiver of these insurance 
requirements.  The District reserves the right to require complete, certified copies of all 

20 

Page 66 of 184



#S-15-S-202 SCADA Master Plan and SCADA Standards 
 

required insurance policies, including endorsements effecting the coverage required by 
these specifications at any time.

J.  Waiver of Subrogation: Contractor hereby agrees to waive subrogation which any insurer of 
Contractor may acquire from vendor by virtue of the payment of any loss.  Contractor agrees 
to obtain any endorsement that may be necessary to effect this waiver of subrogation.

The Workers’ Compensation policy shall be endorsed with a waiver of subrogation in favor 
of the entity for all work performed by the Contractor, its employees, agents and 
subcontractors. 

Article 18 - Work Hours: Except as may otherwise be specified, all work shall be performed 
during regular work hours as follows:  Monday through Friday from 8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m., 
except holidays.

Article 19 – Liability: The Contractor shall bear full and exclusive responsibility for any release 
of hazardous or non-hazardous substances, transportation or disposal of hazardous substances 
during the course of performance under this Purchase Document.  The Contractor shall be 
solely responsible for all claims and expenses associated with the transport or disposal of 
hazardous substances or with the removal or remediation of any release, including without 
limitation, payment of any fines or penalties levied against the District by any governmental 
authority as a result of such release.  The Contractor will hold harmless, indemnify, protect and 
defend the District, all officers and employees thereof, from any claims, suits or actions arising 
from any disposal or release.  The Contractor shall immediately notify the District of any 
accidental incident related to the handling, transportation or disposal of hazardous or non-
hazardous substances.  The District reserves the right to gain access to and inspect Contractor 
vehicles and/or facilities that handle, transport, or depose of hazardous or non-hazardous 
substances.

In addition, the Contractor shall bear full and exclusive responsibility for any release of 
hazardous or non-hazardous substances, transportation or disposal of hazardous substances 
during the course of performance under this Purchase Document.  The Contractor shall be 
solely responsible for all claims and expenses associated with the transport or disposal of 
hazardous substances or with the removal or remediation of any release, including without 
limitation, payment of any fines or penalties levied against the District by any governmental 
authority as a result of such release.  The Contractor will hold harmless, indemnify, protect and 
defend the District, all officers and employees thereof, from any claims, suits or actions arising 
from any disposal or release.  The Contractor shall immediately notify the District of any 
accidental incident related to the handling, transportation or disposal of hazardous or non-
hazardous substances.  The District reserves the right to gain access to and inspect Contractor 
vehicles and/or facilities that handle, transport, or depose of hazardous or non-hazardous 
substances.

Article 20 – Commencement and Progress of the Work to Completion:  The Contractor, 
after receiving notice that the Contract has been executed on behalf of the District, shall 
coordinate commencement of the work with the District representative specified in the Purchase 
Order.  The Contractor shall diligently prosecute all awarded portions of the Contract to 
Completion in accordance with the Schedule provided by the District representative.

21 

Page 67 of 184



#S-15-S-202 SCADA Master Plan and SCADA Standards 
 
Article 21 – Reserved

.Article 22 – Liquidated Damages: Time is of the essence in this contract.  Pursuant to 
Government Code Section 53069.83, the Contractor shall pay to the District the sum of $ None,
per day, for each and every calendar day that the Contractor fails to deliver the products, 
equipment and/or services within the prescribed schedule as specified in the specifications, 
subject only to extensions granted thereto in writing by the District.

The Contractor shall pay such liquidated damages as provided.  The District may deduct, at its 
option, the amount of liquidated damages from any money due or to become due to the 
Contractor under this contract as more particularly described in Article 9 herein. 

The Contractor will be granted an extension of time and will not be assessed with liquidated 
damages for any delay beyond the time period specified in the specifications for delays caused 
by acts of God or the public enemy, fire, floods, epidemics, quarantine, restrictions, strikes, labor 
disputes, shortage of materials and freight embargos, or other causes deemed by the District 
to be beyond the reasonable control of the Contractor, provided the Contractor notifies, in 
writing, the party indicated in Article 30 herein of the cause of the delays within 15 calendar 
days from the beginning of any such delay.  The District shall ascertain the nature of the delay 
and determine whether an extension of time is warranted, which determination shall be final 
and conclusive.  The Contractor has the burden of proof that the delay was beyond its control. 

Article 23 – Coordination of Contract Documents:  Any conflict, error or discrepancy in the 
Contract shall be resolved by the following order of precedence:  (1)  Purchase Order, (2) Terms 
and Conditions for Services (3) Contractor Proposal/Quotation (4) Drawings and/or Exhibits. 

Article 24 - Claims or Disputes

The Contractor shall be solely responsible for providing timely written notice to the District of 
any claims for consideration in accordance with the provisions of this contract.  It is the District’s 
intent to investigate and attempt to resolve any Contractor claims before the Contractor has 
performed any disputed work.  Therefore, the Contractor’s failure to provide timely notice shall 
constitute a waiver of the Contractor’s claim for additional compensation and/or time.

The Contractor shall not be entitled to consideration for any cause, including any act, or failure
to act, by the District, or failure or refusal to issue a modification, or the happening of any event, 
thing, or occurrence, unless it has given the District due written notice of a potential claim.   The 
potential claim shall set forth the reasons for which the Contractor believes credit may be due, 
the nature of the costs involved, and the amount of the potential claim.

If based on an act or failure to act by the District, such notice shall be given to the District prior 
to the time that the Contractor has started performance of the work giving rise to the potential 
claim for consideration.  In all other cases, notice shall be given within ten days after the 
happening of the event or occurrence giving rise to the potential claim.

If there is a dispute over any claim, the Contractor shall continue to work during the dispute 
resolution process in a diligent and timely manner as directed by the District, and shall be 
governed by all applicable provisions of the contract.  The Contractor shall maintain cost records 
of all work which is the basis of any dispute.

22 

Page 68 of 184



#S-15-S-202 SCADA Master Plan and SCADA Standards 
 
If an agreement can be reached which resolves the Contractor’s claim, the parties will execute 
a contract modification to document the resolution of the claim.  If the parties cannot reach an 
agreement with respect to the Contractor claim, they may chose a dispute resolution process 
or terminate the contract. 

Article 25 - Attorneys’ Fees

If any legal proceeding should be instituted by either of the parties to enforce the terms of this 
contract or to determine the rights of the parties under this contract, the prevailing party in said 
proceeding shall recover, in addition to all court costs, reasonable attorney fees.

Article 26 – Governing Law:  The Agreement shall be governed and construed in 
accordance with the laws of the State of California.

Article 27 - Nepotism Prohibited: By furnishing the goods and/or providing the services 
covered under the Purchase Document or contract, Contractor certifies that no employee of the 
Seller is a spouse, parent, person who stood in loco parentis, grandparent, child, grandchild, 
brother, sister, aunt, niece, nephew, cousin, domestic partner or person living in the same 
household (whether through marriage, domestic partnership, or as a couple living together), 
including step-, half-, and “in-law” to any member of the District’s Board of Directors, General 
Manager, Work Group Manager, Business Services Coach, or the Purchasing Agent or his/her 
designee.  If such a relationship exists, the Contractor shall advise the District of same before 
any goods are shipped or any services are provided.  The District will advise the Contractor
when to ship the goods or provide the services, however the District reserves the right, at its 
sole discretion, to deem the Purchase Document or contract void and unenforceable if such a 
relationship exists.

Article 28 - Service of Notice:  All notices required in this Agreement shall be sent by certified mail, 
return receipt requested, and if sent to:  

Purchasing Agent

Union Sanitary District

5072  Benson Rd.

Union City, CA  94587

XI. COST PROPOSAL FORM

A. Proposer is required to complete Attachment D, Budget and Cost Proposal. Your cost 
proposal must be in a separate sealed envelope, clearly mark “Cost Proposal”. One 
should be marked “ORIGINAL” and “COPY”

XII. OFFER AND SIGNATURE
 

23 

Page 69 of 184



#S-15-S-202 SCADA Master Plan and SCADA Standards 
 

ACCEPTANCE:  In compliance with the Request for Proposals, the proposer agrees, if 
this proposal is accepted within 60 calendar days from the date specified in the Request
for Proposals for receipt of proposal, or other agreed upon timeframe, to furnish and
execute any or all items upon which prices are offered at the price set opposite each
item, within the time specified in this Request for Proposals solicitation.

 
Item(s):

a. SCADA Master Plan and SCADA Standards as delineated herein.
 
ADDENDA: 
Proposer, if an Addendum is posted on www.publicpurchase.com Please acknowledge receipt 
by stating the addendum number and date below

Addendum #_____ Date _____    Addendum #____ Date _____
Addendum #_____ Date _____    Addendum #____ Date _____
 

Signature of Proposer’s official authorized to bind the firm to its proposal:
 
 
 

Printed Name:  
 

Title:  
 

Firm Name:  
 

Address:  

Telephone Number: _______________________ Fax Number:__________________

Date: ____________________

Type of business organization:  
(Corporation, partnership, sole-proprietorship, LLC, LLP, etc.) 

 
License No.  
Corporate Seal

24 

Page 70 of 184



#S-15-S-202 SCADA Master Plan and SCADA Standards 
 

ATTACHMENTS

1. ATTACHMENT A Organizational Chart  

2. ATTACHMENT B Non-Collusion Affidavit 

3. ATTACHMENT C Network Diagram

4. ATTACHMENT D Budget/Cost Proposal

5. ATTACHMENT E Travel Policy

 

25 
Page 71 of 184



#S-15-S-202 SCADA Master Plan and SCADA Standards 
 

ATTACHMENT B 

NON-COLLUSION AFFIDAVIT

(Note:  to be submitted with Proposer’s proposal) 

I, ____________________________________________________________________, am the 

                                                        (Print Name)

___________________________________of ______________________________________,

                   (Position/Title)                 (Name of Company)

the party making the foregoing bid (the “Bidder”) that the bid is not made in the interest of, or on 
behalf of, any undisclosed person, partnership, company, association, organization, or 
corporation; that the bid is genuine and not collusive or sham; that the Bidder has not directly or 
indirectly induced or solicited any other bidder to put in a false or sham bid; and has not directly 
or indirectly colluded, conspired, connived, or agreed with any bidder or anyone else to put in a 
sham bid, or that anyone shall refrain from bidding; that the Bidder has not in any manner directly 
or indirectly, sought by Agreement, communication, or conference with anyone to fix the bid price 
of the Bidder or any other bidder, or to fix any overhead, profit, or cost element of the bid price, 
or of that of any other bidder, or to secure any advantage against the public body awarding the 
contract of anyone interested in the Bid contract; that all statements contained in the bid are true; 
and, further, that the Bidder has not, directly or indirectly, submitted his or her bid price or any 
breakdown thereof, or the contents thereof, or divulged information or data relative thereto, or 
paid, and will not pay, any fee to any corporation, partnership, company association, organization, 
bid depository, or to any member or agent thereof to effectuate a collusive or sham bid.

I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that the foregoing is 
true and correct:

Print or Type Name:    __________________________________

Authorized Signature: ___________________________________

Company Name: _______________________________________ 

Date: _________________________________________________

 

26 
Page 72 of 184



Nicholas J. Peros, P.E. 
1105 Cabrillo Avenue 
Burlingame, CA 94010 

Telephone: 415.350.7814 
Fax: 650.347.6910 

Email: nickperospe@gmail.com 

 

 

 

 

                                                         Union Sanitary District 

 

 

 

 

Proposal for Professional 
Engineering Services 

For

#S-15-5-202 SCADA 
Master Plan and 

SCADA Standards  

         October 23, 2014 

 

 
 

Page 73 of 184



 
 
 
 
 

    
Union Sanitary District 

Proposal for Professional Engineering Services 

For

#S-15-5-202 SCADA Master Plan and SCADA 
Standards  

              
           October 23, 2014 

Nicholas J. Peros, P.E. 

Table of Contents 

Proposal Summary (Cover Letter) 
Offer & Signature 

A. Methodology and Approach…………………………………..Six Pages  
B. Firm’s Qualification and Experience…………………………Four Pages  
C. Proposed Project Team & Detailed Resumes……………...Twenty-Two Pages 
D. Management and Tracking of Hours and Costs…………...One Page 
E. Working with District Staff and Facilitating Meetings…….One Page  
F. Schedule and Total Hours……………………………………...Two Pages  
G. Sample Formats – SCADA Master Plan and Standards…..Seven Pages  
H. References………………………………………………………...Three Pages  
I. Options……………………………………………………………..Two Pages 
J. Attachment D Budget/Cost Proposal, Billing Rates and 

Structures…………………………………................................INCLUDED IN A 
SEALED ENVELOPE 

Attachment B Non-Collusion Affidavit ………………………………..One Page 

Page 74 of 184



Nicholas J. Peros, P.E. 

 
Union Sanitary District 
SCADA Master Plan 
#S-15-S-202 

 
 

Page 1 
 
 

 

October 23, 2014 

Roslyn Fuller, Purchasing Agent 
Union Sanitary District 
5072 Benson Road 
Union City, CA 94587 

Subject:  Request for Proposals (RFP)  
 Supervisory Control and Data Acquisition (SCADA) Master Plan and SCADA Standards 
 #S-15-S-202 

These are exciting times to embark on an SCADA Master Plan and SCADA Standards project. Adoption 
of enterprise-class IT techniques – such as server virtualization and system access using mobile apps – 
are becoming mainstream for SCADA, redefining what is considered standard. 

While Union Sanitary District (USD) already uses quite advanced systems, there is always room to 
assess present status, identify gaps, prioritize solutions, and chart a course for improvements over the 5 
to 7-year planning horizon for this project.  

Rather than drawing team members from just one firm, we’ve selected the best qualified individuals we 
know of for this project. Many of us have worked together on other similar projects, some as far back as 
1982. 

The specific benefits our team brings to USD are: 

Fresh look:  None of our team’s members were involved with the USD’s 2012 Information 
Technology Master Plan. Technology has changed a lot in the last 2 years and impartial 
consideration of these advances, GAP analysis, and plan coordination with organizational goals 
provides tangible benefits to the District. 

Experience: our team has been hand-picked from among the best senior staff we know, regardless 
of firm. USD will be collaborating with specialists who have first-hand knowledge of relevant SCADA 
technologies and industry best practices. Team members and their roles are: 

Nicholas Peros, Project Manager. Nick is licensed professional engineer both in control 
systems and electrical engineering. He has an excellent on-time within-budget track record for 
SCADA, master planning, and technology related projects. He also received the ACEC award for 
Engineering Excellence for the Pima County Arizona Wastewater Collections SCADA project. 
Nick brings this exemplary management performance coupled with his enthusiasm for the 
technology to provide the strong leadership necessary to deliver a successful project.  

Paul Giorsetto (TJCAA), QA/QC. Paul is also licensed in control system and electrical 
engineering and has worked with Nick since 1982 in the wastewater and water industry. Paul’s 
decades-long experience in this industry gives him the depth and sharp eyes to lead QA/AC for 
this project. 

Michael Erwin (TJCAA), Specialist for standards. Although Mike is presently working on 
projects involving planning and programming iFix and ControlLogix systems similar to USD’s, he 
is a former systems integrator and understands what makes standards practical, implementable, 
constructable, and enduring. 

Page 75 of 184



Nicholas J. Peros, P.E. 

 
Union Sanitary District 
SCADA Master Plan 
#S-15-S-202 

 
 

Page 2 
 
 

Richard Pressler (AllConnected), Specialist for Networks, Security, and Virtualization. 
Richard has planned and implemented the IT infrastructures for robust, large, virtual eCommerce 
sites, which must run 24x7. USD can draw on Richard’s technical expertise, analytical abilities, 
and experience in planning the SCADA infrastructure which also must run 24x7. 

Paul Rahilly (Mtell), Specialist for Mtelligence. Paul led the project to install Mtelligence at 
USD and will hit the ground running to apply lessons learned and assess new opportunities to 
improve the technology return on investment for USD. 

Ron Moeller (Kennedy/Jenks Consultants), Specialist for Process Optimization and 
Regulator Reporting.  Ron brings the perspective of a licensed wastewater treatment operator in 
3 states who works as a consultant to his peers and who understands how processes operate. 
He has specialized expertise in IT systems used to manage and retain knowledge assets. Ron’s 
ability to change hats and spot gaps in operations and instrumentation enhances the team’s real 
world perspective.  

Steve Pallad (Independent Consultant), Specialist for SCADA Integration. Steve is a 
systems architect and database analyst with specialized experience planning and integrating 
SCADA systems with other applications. He provides the technical glue between this project, 
ODMS, and other solutions in USD’s Integrated Solutions Architecture. 

Responsiveness: Most of our team’s members are located in the San Francisco Bay area, so we 
can be at your offices on short notice when needed, with minimum travel time and cost. We also 
leverage technology using platforms such as screen sharing sessions with clients, cloud-based file 
sharing, and SMS. We can literally always be reached and have continuous access to critical project 
information. Finally, the skills of team members overlap just enough to allow us to adjust assignments 
as needed to keep the project on schedule

We look forward to the prospect of providing our impartial, experienced, and energetically responsive 
team work with you to help master plan and build a new generation of SCADA capabilities for USD. 

 

If you have any questions, please do not hesitate to call. 

 

Very Truly Yours, 

 

 

Nicholas J. Peros, P.E. 
NickPerosPE@gmail.com 
415.350.7814 m/SMS 

 

 

 

Page 76 of 184



Nicholas J. Peros, P.E. 

 
Union Sanitary District 
SCADA Master Plan 
#S-15-S-202 

 
 

Page 3 
 
 

 

Offer and Signature 

ACCEPTANCE: In compliance with the Request for Proposals, the proposer agrees, if  
this proposal is accepted within 60 calendar days from the date specified in the Request  
for Proposals for receipt of proposal, or other agreed upon timeframe, to furnish and  
execute any or all items upon which prices are offered at the price set opposite each  
item, within the time specified in this Request for Proposals solicitation. 

Item(s): 
a.  SCADA Master Plan and SCADA Standards as delineated herein. 

ADDENDA: 
Proposer, if an Addendum is posted on www.publicpurchase.com Please acknowledge receipt by stating 
the addendum number and date below 

Addendum #__1__ Date 16 Oct 2014 Addendum #____ Date _____ 

Addendum #_____ Date _____ Addendum #____ Date _____ 

Signature of Proposer’s official authorized to bind the firm to its proposal: 

 

 

Printed Name: Nicholas J. Peros, P.E. 

Title: Owner 

Firm Name: Nicholas J. Peros, P.E. 

Address: 1105 Cabrillo Avenue, Burlingame, CA 94010 

Telephone Number: (415) 350-7814   Fax Number: None 

Date: 10/23/14 

Type of business organization: Sole Proprietorship  
(Corporation, partnership, sole-proprietorship, LLC, LLP, etc.) 

License No. Burlingame 19953 

Corporate Seal: Not Applicable 

Page 77 of 184



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

A. Methodology 
and Approach 

  

 

 
 

Page 78 of 184



Nicholas J. Peros, P.E. 

 
Union Sanitary District 
SCADA Master Plan 
#S-15-S-202 

 
 

Page 1 
 
 

A. METHODOLOGY AND APPROACH  
Methodology and Project Understanding 
This project is an outgrowth of Union Sanitary District’s (USD’s) 2012 IT Master Plan. The scope includes 
both a supervisory control and data acquisition (SCADA) Master Plan and the development of SCADA 
Standards. 

The present SCADA deployment at USD is quite robust with 
dual redundant SCADA servers running iFix 5, automatic fail-
over, and 23 view nodes. Disaster recovery provisions at USD 
add redundancy for all essential systems including the 
Historian and Active Directory Controller. About 80% of the 
servers at USD are virtualized but the SCADA servers 
presently are not. SCADA computers are at end of life and 
need replacement. Security updates from Microsoft for the 
Windows XP workstations ended April 8, 2014 and the End of 
Life for Windows Server 2003 – used by the SCADA servers – 
is July 14, 2015. 

Microsoft’s Visual Source Safe is utilized to version updates and provide roll-back, if needed. All 
development work, except for emergencies, is done on-site for security. Security policies and systems 
presently prevent operators and coaches from accessing the SCADA system remotely but operations are 
staffed 24x7. There is a growing trend, however for vendors such as cogeneration, PG&E, etc. to request 
LAN access; this trend may need to be addressed through secure access portals. 

Mtelligence (now Mtell Advanced) was implemented as a software connector for equipment runtimes 
between USD’s SCADA Historian and the Hansen computerized maintenance management system 
(CMMS.) A prototype deployment of Mtell’s “predictive analytics” was also implemented for the 
centrifuges. The planning of cost-effective refinement and expansion of these capabilities will probably 
affect recommendations for additional instrumentation for equipment and processes. 

A cost-effective and common sense approach to standards is being sought. Rather than create new ones 
from scratch, USD wishes to refine working copies of documents presently in use (PLC hardware, PLC 
programming) and fill in the gaps (tags, HMI style guide, HMI templates, instrumentation, etc.).  

With only 1 software integrator presently authorized, USD lacks the “deep support” it needs for critical 
SCADA systems. Updated and more complete standards are a bridge to broadening available support 
options. 

Cost effectiveness will guide both the Master Plan and Standards portions of this project. USD seeks to 
leverage technology and previous standardization efforts to optimize processes, minimize costs, and 
implement industry best practices. 

 

 

 

 

Page 79 of 184



Nicholas J. Peros, P.E. 

 
Union Sanitary District 
SCADA Master Plan 
#S-15-S-202 

 
 

Page 2 
 
 

Approach 

Methodology and Approach to the Project  
Running both the SCADA Master Plan and the SCADA standards portions of this project concurrently 
could lead to resource bottlenecks for USD’s managers, coaches, and staff. This situation applies not 
only to the early reconnaissance tasks but also on receipt of the deliverables.  

Also, while the SCADA Master Plan requires all 5 of the tasks in the Scope of Work, the SCADA 
Standards themselves could be substantially complete in just the first 3: Needs Assessment, Review, and 
Recommendations. Issues of implementation could be addressed as part of the SCADA Master Plan. 

For these reasons, our approach to this project is to treat the SCADA Master Plan and the SCADA 
Standards portions as two different projects, with different resources assigned to lead each and with 
slightly different, though related, timelines.   

As we found in the Stockton East and Monterey Regional master plan projects, not all project resources 
need to be on-site for all workshops and meetings. For short presentations or workshop sessions for a 
few of the presenters, video conferences or screen-sharing sessions are quite effective if they are 
adequately prepared. The reductions labor and travel cost are significant. We plan to use this approach 
for 1 session on knowledge management and 1 session on Mtelligence, eliminating the need for those 
outside the Bay Area to travel. 

Nicholas Peros and Paul Girosetto will be sharing quality review responsibility. All deliverables will be 
reviewed by 1 or more team members who is not the author before submittal to USD - commonly referred 
to as “two sets of eyes”. 

SCADA Mater Plan Overview 
Regarding the SCADA Master Plan, we propose to develop the report in chapters as each task is 
completed. The authoring and review of each chapter would be done sequentially, in bite-sized pieces. 
Updates would be done immediately on receipt of review comments for each chapter. The first four 
chapters would look like 

Chapter 1
Needs Assessment

Chapter 2
Review Existing 

System & Process

Chapter 3
Recommendations

Chapter 4
Implementation 

Plan

 

The final step to complete the report would be to add the executive summary, perhaps 10-12 new pages 
of summary including graphics suitable for Board reviews: 

Chapter 1
Needs Assessment

Chapter 2
Review Existing 

System & Process

Chapter 3
Recommendations

Chapter 4
Implementation 

Plan
Executive Summary

 

 

  

Page 80 of 184



Nicholas J. Peros, P.E. 

 
Union Sanitary District 
SCADA Master Plan 
#S-15-S-202 

 
 

Page 3 
 
 

 

SCADA Master Plan Scope 
The following is an outline of proposed scope for the SCADA Master Plan. It identifies proposed draft 
and final deliverables, the subjects of each of the workshops, and the approximate sequence of the 
work. The companion outline for the SCADA Standards is in the next section of this proposal. 

1. Task 1 - Needs Assessment 
a. Document Request, Set up cloud sharing & post 
b. Meeting Prep 
c. Meeting (Assume 4 hours) 
d. Draft Report Ch. 1: Summary 
e. USD Review 
f. Final Report Ch. 1 

 
2. Task 2 - Review Existing SCADA  System and Processes 

a. SCADA Master Plan 
i. Workshop Prep 
ii. Workshops, Day 1: 

1. Kickoff 
2. Technology & Governance, Service Level Agreement 
3. SOPs & Job Competency 
4. O&M metrics, Alarms 
5. Plant Site Walk 
6. Visit Selected Pump Stations 

iii. Workshops, Day 2: 
1. Summary of Day 1 (Including prep) 
2. SCADA Reporting & Lab 
3. Operator Data Entry 
4. Technology Demo: Manage & Retain Knowledge Assets 
5. SCADA to CMMS, Mtell Advantage 
6. SCADA Replacement Practices; Use of Consultants 
7. Remote Access, Network Design & Disaster Recovery 
8. Preceding line includes SCADA Network from the Standards Scope 

iv. Day 2 Summary 
b. SCADA Standards 

i. Workshop Prep 
ii. Workshop Day 3: 

1. Documented/De facto standards 
2. PLC Programming Standards 
3. Panel Layout 
4. Integration 
5. Control Philosophy 
6. Recent CIP 
7. Day 3 Summary 

iii. Workshop Day 4: 
1. SCADA Screens (300+) 
2. Day 4 Summary (teleconference or videoconference) 

 

Page 81 of 184



Nicholas J. Peros, P.E. 

 
Union Sanitary District 
SCADA Master Plan 
#S-15-S-202 

 
 

Page 4 
 
 

 
c. Draft Report, Ch. 2 
d. USD Review 
e. Final Report, Ch. 2 

 
3. Task 3 - Recommendations 

a. Develop SCADA Master Plan Recommendations 
i. Visions, Goals for SCADA System 
ii. Training, Practices & Procedures: Enhance SCADA System 
iii. Technology, practices, & procedures: Security 
iv. Manage & retain knowledge assets 
v. Use SCADA to optimize operations 
vi. O&M metrics including. charts, trends, alarms 
vii. Consolidated View of data to manage & optimize O&M 
viii. SCADA Integration with other business systems 
ix. Automated operator collection solutions 
x. Instrumentation 
xi. Virtualization 
xii. Asset Management practice for SCADA & network hardware 
xiii. Software upgrade philosophy 
xiv. Remote Access Solution 
xv. Network design improvements-reliability, redundancy 
xvi. Future SCADA trends 
xvii. Disaster Recovery plans & procedures 
xviii. Use of Consultants 
xix. SCADA support levels, skill development 

b. Draft Report Ch. 3 
c. Review by USD 
d. Final Report Ch. 3 

 
4. Task 4 - Implementation Plan 

a. Develop Implementation Plan Project Sheets 
b. Develop 5-year sequence & cash flow 
c. Draft Report Ch. 4 
d. USD Review 
e. Final Report Ch. 4 

 
5. Task 5 - Report 

a. Ch. 5: Consolidate docs. Prepare exec summary 
b. USD Review 
c. Final Report Ch. 5 
d. Final Deliverable in format and quantities required. 

 
6. Task 6 - Project Management 

a. Project Memo; Setup Progress Tracking procedures 
b. Internal Kickoff Teleconference 
c. Track Progress, Manage Resources, Invoicing 
d. Biweekly Coordination Call (6 months) 

  

Page 82 of 184



Nicholas J. Peros, P.E. 

 
Union Sanitary District 
SCADA Master Plan 
#S-15-S-202 

 
 

Page 5 
 
 

 

SCADA Standards 
This work falls into the following technical areas: 

1. PLC Programming 
2. SCADA Programming 
3. Control Panels 
4. Instrumentation 
5. Networking 
6. SCADA Design Methodology 

Our focus will be on capturing existing USD standards rather than starting with a new piece of paper.  

We understand that, except for USD staff, Automated Network Controls (ANC) is the only resource 
presently permitted to do PLC and SCADA programming; so, we assume that ANC staff will be available 
during the SCADA standards workshops and throughout the SCADA standards tasks as needed to 
answer questions. 

Staff working on these efforts are all located in the Bay Area; so reconnaissance and review meetings 
can be scheduled cost-effectively to work around the availability of USD staff. We propose to do these 
standards in a sequential fashion but are flexible as to the order of each. Tags, however, are a common 
link for the first two areas (PLC and SCADA programming); so, some of the work should overlap.  

The following is an outline of how we propose to develop the standards: 

1. PLC Programming 
a. Review Existing USD PLC Programming Standards 
b. Review Current USD PLC Programs 

i. Current WWTP Programs 
ii. Current Lift Station and Remote Site Programs 

c. Development Of USD PLC Programming Standards 
i. PLC Tags and Aliases 

 
ii. PLC Variables and Data Organization 
iii. Define Program Structure 
iv. PLC To PLC Communications 
v. PLC To SCADA Communications 
vi. USD User Defined Data Types 
vii. USD Add On Instructions 
viii. Standard Program Structure, Task Definition, and Scheduling 

d. Facilitate PLC Programming Standards Workshops 
e. Update USD PLC Programming Standards 

 
2. SCADA Programming 

a. Review Existing USD SCADA Programming Standards 
b. Review Existing SCADA System 
c. Develop USD SCADA Programming Standards 

i. Database Development and Tagging 
ii. Navigation and Display Layout Standards 
iii. Color Usage and Standardization Of Font Sizes and Colors 
iv. Standard VB Scripts and Usage 
v. Standard Symbols, Dynamos, and Pop-Up Displays 

Page 83 of 184



Nicholas J. Peros, P.E. 

 
Union Sanitary District 
SCADA Master Plan 
#S-15-S-202 

 
 

Page 6 
 
 

 
vi. Alarm Handling 
vii. Reporting (coordinated with ODMS contractor) 

d. Facilitate SCADA Standards Workshops 
e. Update USD SCADA Programming Standards 

 
3. Control Panels 

a. Review Existing Control Panel Designs 
b. Develop Control Panel Design Standards 

i. Enclosures and Environmental Control 
ii. Wiring Standards 
iii. Component Technical Requirements 

c. Facilitate Control Panel Design Workshops 
d. Develop Control Panel Specification Section 

 
4. Instrumentation 

a. Review Existing Instrumentation 
b. Develop Technical Instrumentation Standards 

i. Analyzers 
ii. Flow Instruments 
iii. Pressure Instruments 
iv. Level Instruments 
v. Temperature Instruments 

c. Facilitate Design Workshops 
d. Develop Instrumentation Specification 

 

See Optional Services for Networking Standards and SCADA Design Methodology. 

 

 

Page 84 of 184



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

B. Firm’s
Qualification and
Experience 

  

 

 
 

Page 85 of 184



Nicholas J. Peros, P.E. 

 
Union Sanitary District 
SCADA Master Plan 
#S-15-S-202 

 
 

Page 1 
 
 

B. FRIM’S QUALIFICATION AND EXPERINCE 
Profile of Proposing Firm   
Nicholas J. Peros, P.E. is a sole proprietorship specializing in electrical engineering and control systems 
work. Mr. Peros has over 40 years of experience in all phases of electrical engineering and control 
systems primarily in water and wastewater public sector applications. His experience is broad-based from 
medium voltage switchgear to control system programming. Prior to April 2013, Mr. Peros worked for 
Kennedy/Jenks Consultants in San Francisco for 34 years, first as Chief Electrical Engineer and since 
2001 as Vice President and Client Manager. Furthermore, Mr. Peros’ sewer sector experience over the 
past 5 years include the SCADA and IT Master Plan for Monterey Regional Water Pollution Control 
Agency (December 2013 to present), the City of Sunnyvale Digester Rehabilitation Design (2012- 2013), 
and the San Bruno SCADA System Design for Wastewater Collections (construction completed 2009) 

As a sole proprietorship, Mr. Peros has no direct employees. Contact information is: 

Nicholas J. Peros, P.E. 
1105 Cabrillo Avenue 
Burlingame, CA 94010 
415.350.7814 cellular/SMS  
NickPerosPE@gmail.com  
 

Mr. Peros’ role for USD on this project is the same as in the IT/SCADA Master Plan completed last 
December for Stockton East Water District (SEWD): primary point of contact for City management, 
managing the team of consultants, leading and facilitating technical sessions and workshops, authoring 
those elements of the Master Plan within his areas of competence, providing overall project guidance, 
and performing final quality review of all deliverables to ensure the needs and expectations of the City are 
met.  

Qualifications of the Firm & Previous Experience   
Our team has participated in and lead SCADA master planning efforts since the mid-90. Our design 
experience of SCADA systems extends all the way back to the 70’s. This extensive experience provides 
the City with a team that brings innovation, cost effectiveness, and reliability tempered by real world 
practicality. These features have been the hallmark of all our projects. Some of the SCADA planning 
project highlights for Mr. Peros include: 

 Stockton East Water District IT/SCADA Master Plan, 2013 (project manager/project engineer): 
comprehensive IT/SCADA master plan covering desktops, servers, networking, water supply and 
treatment SCADA, telephony, scanned document management, financial systems, CMMS, GIS, 
and security. 

 Calleguas Municipal Water District, Turnout Automation Project, 2006-present (project 
manager): SCADA planning, prototype concept testing, SCADA planning, design, and 
construction for a system with 91 remote sites. Project is the first known use of drop-out-free 
secure cellular-communications technology in the US. Led the development of custom 
applications accessing the SCADA database, producing wholesaler customer invoices, and 
displaying real time and historical data for customers via a secure website.  

 Pima County Sanitary Sewer Conveyance SCADA, 2001-2004 (project manager): planning, 
design, and construction of county-wide SCADA system with the first known deployment in the  

Page 86 of 184



Nicholas J. Peros, P.E. 

 
Union Sanitary District 
SCADA Master Plan 
#S-15-S-202 

 
 

Page 2 
 
 

wastewater industry of object oriented SCADA software now known as Wonderware System 
Platform.  

 Nevada Irrigation District SCADA and IT Master Plan, late 90’s (project manager): plan 
included networking, SCADA, desktop systems, engineering, GIS, and financial systems. 
Provided additional services to design an all-new LAN infrastructure and to assist in documenting 
requirements, selecting software, and replacing NID’s customer service and financial software 
systems. 

 Channel Street Pump Station, City and County of San Francisco, mid-70’s (designer): First 
known use of dual-redundant PLC technology in the wastewater business. Hardware-based fail-
over technologies did not exist at that time; so, software systems were developed and deployed 

Subconsultants 
Many of the subcontractors proposed herein are the same as were used for the SEWD Master Plan. The 
major exception is TJCAA. Mr. Peros has had a continuous professional relationship, however, with Paul 
Giorsetto, one of the Principals of TJCAA dating back to 1982. Because significant portions of the project 
are proposed to be done by TJCAA, a profile of that firm follows. 

TJC and Associates, Inc. 
TJCAA is a small business corporation providing engineering services to local 
Bay Area clients, as well as to clients throughout the United States. 
Established by Terence Cavanagh, S.E. and Gianna Zappettini as a structural 
engineering firm in 1998, TJCAA expanded in 2006 with the addition of Paul 
Giorsetto to offer multi-discipline design solutions in Structural Engineering, 
Electrical Engineering, and Instrumentation and Controls. 

TJCAA's head designers, Terry Cavanagh and Paul Giorsetto, each provide 
over 30 years of experience, in delivering creative solutions for special districts, 
municipalities, and commercial/industrial clients. The TJCAA team provides 
focused expertise in design of structural, instrumentation, controls, 
communications, and electrical infrastructure for water and wastewater 
treatment plants, pump stations, and support facilities. 

Paul Giorsetto, P.E., Principal, is registered in both Control Systems and Electrical Engineering and 
brings a wealth of experience in these design disciplines, as well as in project management, from his 
previous position as the regional engineering services manager and discipline leader for an international 
environmental engineering design firm. 

TJCAA offers a responsive, flexible, multi-disciplinary design team with a proven record of excellence and 
of meeting our clients’ needs.  TJCAA operates from fully equipped and staffed design offices with the 
technological infrastructure necessary to perform seamlessly within a design team or as specialists 
providing specific expertise.  Our staff can provide services either on site or as part of a distributed design 
group.  We have consistently demonstrated our ability to develop solutions and approaches that match 
the needs, style, and requirements of our clients. 

Page 87 of 184



Nicholas J. Peros, P.E. 

 
Union Sanitary District 
SCADA Master Plan 
#S-15-S-202 

 
 

Page 3 
 
 

 
AllConnected 
AllConnected specializes in complete management 
and service of local and wide-area networking 
solutions, with a specific focus on business 
continuity.  

Our CTO, Richard Pressler, focuses 
AllConnected’s client services on delivering managed network services, as well as  managed on-premise 
and hosted private cloud solutions within our privately owned data center and replication partners.  The 
company’s mission is to maximize availability and secure access to the applications and data critical to 
keeping their client’s businesses moving forward. 

In 2006, AllConnected jointly partnered with another VentureTech partner to create a business continuity 
service, designed to eliminate tapes and guarantee data and application recovery for small business.  
This service was launched as XiloCore in early 2007 exclusively to partners focused on delivering 
business continuity as a service.  Between AllConnected and XiloCore, nearly 1 Petabyte of data is 
protected and/or managed. 

AllConnected currently maintains partnerships with Cisco, VMware, HP, Citrix, Dell, Microsoft, and other 
key technology leaders in the data center and infrastructure market, holding over 30 certifications among 
our team. For more information about AllConnected and such partnerships, see our October 2013 video 
with Cisco at http://youtu.be/gzT7wz9SzvM. 

Mtell 
Mtell, formerly Mtelligence, is a privately held company with 
headquarters in San Diego, California.  Mtell is challenging old 
ideas with new thinking around “production-centered” 
maintenance; a methodology that improves safety, removes 
risk, reduces failures, and improves plant throughput. Mtell 
software products include Mtell Basic and Mtell Advanced. 

Kennedy/Jenks Consultants, Inc. 
Kennedy/Jenks provides engineering and 
environmental services solutions to local and 
federal government agencies, and to industry 
and business. Our values at Kennedy/Jenks 
are centered on people clients, staff, business partners, and communities.  

Kennedy/Jenks is distinguished through:  

 Relationships - by having the ability and the capacity to develop collaborative, long-term 
relationships with clients and fully understand their challenges and satisfy their needs. 

 Expertise – by applying innovative ideas and broad, practical experience to create effective client 
solutions. 

 Promises – by making and keeping promises to clients to help build a future that improves 
people’s lives. 

 

Since 1998 

Page 88 of 184



Nicholas J. Peros, P.E. 

 
Union Sanitary District 
SCADA Master Plan 
#S-15-S-202 

 
 

Page 4 
 
 

 

Dedication to these ideals results in exceptional teamwork, quality, and innovation, even in challenging 
economic times. 

One of the advantages of the Kennedy/Jenks’ team is the wide-ranging expertise in numerous software 
packages. The firm’s broad knowledge of the latest technologies, coupled with unbiased approach 
provides the best solutions for clients. Kennedy/Jenks’ team’s software experience is more extensive than 
space allows, but includes the following software and tool such as GE Proficy SCADA Software, 
INVENSYS System Platform SCADA Software, ALLEN-BRADLEY Factory Talk SCADA Software, 
WIN911 Audio Dial Alarming Software, wide range of Industry Standard Dialout Modems, and Network 
Security Appliances and Ghosting Devices. 

Kennedy/Jenks currently has 26 offices throughout the United States, and focuses on providing water, 
wastewater, and recycled water planning, treatment, conveyance and construction support to 
municipalities and private clients. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 89 of 184



 

 

C. Proposed 
Project Team   

  

Page 90 of 184



Nicholas J. Peros, P.E. 

 
Union Sanitary District 
SCADA Master Plan 
#S-15-S-202 

 
 

Page 1 
 

C. PROPOSED PROJECT TEAM  
While our team includes people from a variety of firms, key team members have worked together on 
many projects for years on projects similar to the District’s SCADA Mater Plan. Their technical knowledge 
and proven collaborative spirit will help guide the District's decision-making and usher in a new era of 
even more capable, reliable, and flexible SCADA solutions. 

Project Team  

Nicholas J. Peros, P.E. – Project Manager  
Nick Peros has more than 40 years of experience in control system and 
electrical engineering. Nick has extensive experience in SCADA master plans 
and implementation projects and managed control system and electrical 
engineering projects at Kennedy/Jenks Consultants from 1978 to 2013. These 
projects include complex water and wastewater SCADA systems for treatment 
plants, pump stations, and associated specialized control and electrical 
systems. He has performed and supervised studies including SCADA software 
evaluation, radio propagation, telemetry feasibility, SCADA functional needs 
assessment, energy conservation, and water system energy management. He 
is also experienced with the instrumentation, control, and SCADA systems often 
required to monitor and run large process facilities.
     

Project Team – Sub Consultants  
TJC and Associates, Inc. 
Paul J. Giorsetto, P.E. – QA/QC 
Mr. Giorsetto has over 30 years of design experience in the areas of control 
systems, telemetry, and industrial electrical applications. He has demonstrated 
his ability to manage multi-discipline projects and resource pools comprising 
over 50 engineers and designers. For the last 20 years, he has been 
responsible for multi-discipline groups of on a variety of projects, maintaining 
project schedules, tracking earned value to budgets, and overseeing the quality 
of the design work products. His technical capabilities and experience include 
electrical system instrumentation; and in-plant and remote telemetry SCADA 
systems. He has served as project manager on electrical and control system 
design and design/build projects with construction values over $5 million.                        

Michael J. Erwin, P.E. – SCADA Hardware & Standards  
Mr. Erwin has been building valuable experience since 1986 in the design, 
implementation, and management of electrical power, control, automation, and 
instrumentation systems. He performs control system and electrical design 
engineering for water and wastewater treatment, collection, and distribution 
systems, focusing on instrumentation and control system design and control 
system programming. Mr. Erwin has hands-on familiarity with a variety of PLC and 
SCADA platforms including ControlLogix and iFix. He gained his extensive 
experience not only as a consultant, but also as chief engineer and project 
manager for a systems integrator. With this background, he provides a viewpoint 
that emphasizes constructability and systems featuring maximum operator 
usability and efficiency. 

Page 91 of 184



 U
ni

on
 S

an
ita

ry
 D

is
tr

ic
t 

SC
A

D
A

 M
as

te
r P

la
n 

#S
-1

5-
S-

20
2 

 
N

ic
h

ol
as

 J
. 

P
er

os
, 

P
.E

. 

 

         

 
PA

U
L 

G
IO

R
SE

TT
O

Q
A

/Q
C

 
PA

U
L 

G
IO

R
SE

TT
O

SC
A

D
A

 S
of

tw
ar

e,
Pr

ac
tic

es
 &

 P
ro

ce
du

re
s

 
M

IC
H

A
EL

 E
R

W
IN

SC
A

D
A

 H
ar

dw
ar

e
&

 S
ta

nd
ar

ds

 
R

IC
H

A
R

D
 P

R
ES

SL
ER

N
et

w
or

ks
, S

ec
ur

ity
, 

&
 V

irt
ua

liz
at

io
n

PA
U

L 
R

A
H

IL
LY

M
te

lli
ge

nc
e  

   
   

   
   

 
(M

te
ll 

A
dv

an
ce

d)

ST
EV

E 
PA

LL
A

D
SC

A
D

A
 In

te
gr

at
io

n

 
R

O
N

 M
O

EL
LE

R
Pr

oc
es

s 
O

pt
im

iz
at

io
n 

&
 R

eg
ul

at
or

y 

 
TO

D
D

 J
A

C
O

B
S

U
SD

 P
ro

je
ct

 M
an

ag
er

 
N

IC
K

 P
ER

O
S

Pr
oj

ec
t M

an
ag

er

P
ag

e 
92

 o
f 1

84



Nicholas J. Peros, P.E. 

 
Union Sanitary District 
SCADA Master Plan 
#S-15-S-202 

 
 

Page 2 
 

 
Independent Consultant  
Steve Pallad –SCADA Integration 
Mr. Pallad is a senior consultant providing both software and business analysis 
services. His software service skills include planning, design, development and 
implementation of mapping, workflow tuning and information integrations. He has 
implemented applications development and CRM solutions for business and finance 
purposes. His software skills include database analysis and development, 
optimization, querying and reporting for both desktop and web users. He also has 
experience with enterprise applications including PeopleSoft, Microsoft Dynamics 
NAV and Salesforce CRM.

AllConnected 
Richard Pressler – Networks, Security and Virtualization 

Mr. Pressler is CTO for AllConnected heading up their datacenter practice which 
has hosted some of the largest eBusiness websites in the country. Richard’s 
specialized knowledge of networking, virtualization, servers, and high reliability 
systems gives him unique insight into strengths and weaknesses of existing 
systems and the ability to master plan significant improvements. He develops 
solutions that include disaster recovery and which provide value, efficiency, and 
quick recoverability. Richard Pressler also coordinates with technical leads at 
customer sites to ensure a successful deployment of solutions. 

 

 
Kennedy/Jenks Consultants 
Ronald L. Moeller – Process Optimization and Regulatory Reporting 
Mr. Moeller has 29 years of experience in the wastewater/water industry. He is 
currently certified as a Group IV wastewater treatment plant operator in the state of 
Washington and holds a Grade II certificate in California, and a Grade III in Oregon 
for Wastewater Treatment. Before joining Kennedy/Jenks, Ron was the Wastewater 
Treatment Lead Operator for the City of Chehalis, WA. Ron served on the Water 
Environment Federation's (WEF) House of Delegates, and on WEF's 2006-09 
Board of Trustees. He has served on the Pacific Northwest Clean Water 
Association's (PNCWA) Board of Directors as a WEF Director. 

 
 
 
 

 

Page 93 of 184



Nicholas J. Peros, P.E. 

 
Union Sanitary District 
SCADA Master Plan 
#S-15-S-202 

 
 

Page 3 
 

 
Mtell 
Paul Rahilly – Mtelligence (Mtell Advanced) 

Paul Rahilly is CEO of Mtell was the project manager for the Mtelligence 
implementation at USD. Mr. Rahilly has over 20 years’ experience in industrial 
maintenance engineering, (mechanical, electrical, and plumbing) MEP 
construction project management, automation systems integration, and 
industrial process optimization. As an industrial maintenance engineer Paul 
learned the craft at Guinness Maltings. Later, Paul led and managed green-
field commercial and industrial construction projects. Paul coordinated all 
project management tasks for mechanical and electrical systems installations. 
Those experiences underscored intense challenges bringing O&M (operations 
and maintenance) mindsets together to improve capability of process 
equipment. Consequently, in 1997 Paul founded Interactive Facilities 
Corporation (IFC), a service provider implementing integrated enterprise asset 

management (EAM) systems, control and automation systems, industrial process optimization, mobile 
worker projects, and management information systems; along with institutionalized work processes. The 
company managed multi-million dollar projects for. In 2006 Paul re-launched IFC as Mtelligence (now 
Mtell) to deliver product software to transform old maintenance practices and drive superior asset 
performance. Paul has a Bachelor in Engineering from University College Dublin, Ireland. 

 

 

 

 

 

RECENT JOBS/TEAM COLLABORATION

N
ic

ho
la

s 
Pe

ro
s

Pa
ul

 G
io

rs
et

to

R
ic

ha
rd

 P
re

ss
le

r

St
ev

e 
Pa

lla
d

R
on

 M
oe

lle
r

Monterey Regional Water Pollution Control Agency 
SCADA/IT Master Plan 
(2013-14) 

■ 
 

■ ■ ■ 

Stockton East Water District SCADA/IT Master Plan 
(2013) 

■ 

 
■ ■ 

 

Sunnyvale Digester Rehabilitation Project 
(2012-13)
 

■ ■ 

   

Page 94 of 184



 

Nicholas J. Peros, P.E. 

Project Manager 

Education 
JD, Degree, Lincoln University, 1979 
MS, Electrical Engineering, University of California, Berkeley, 1972 
BS, Electrical Engineering, University of California, Berkeley, 1968 

Registrations 
Professional Electrical Engineer, California 
Professional Control Engineer, California 

Memberships/Affiliations 
Institute of Electrical and Electronic Engineers 
Eta Kappa Nu 
Tau Beta Pi 

Professional Summary 
Mr. Peros has over 40 years’ experience in electrical engineering, control system engineering, software 
development for SCADA, and information management systems.  

Project Experience 
Monterey Regional Water Pollution Control Agency, SCADA/IT Master Plan. Assistant Manager 
SCADA, IT, CMMS, data integration, and financial systems needs assessment and master planning. The 
project involved establishing a vision of where these systems need to be and developing a 5-year roadmap 
to get there.   

Stockton East Water District, SCADA/IT Master Plan. Project Manager SCADA, IT, and financial systems 
needs assessment and master planning. The project involved establishing a vision of where these systems 
need to be and developing a 5-year roadmap to get there. 

SCADA System Master Plan, Placer County, Water Agency, Auburn, CA Project Manager
Comprehensive Master Plan for modernizing, computerizing, and integrating operations for a major water 
agency. Systems included engineering, business center, power, raw water, and treated water. The plan 
provides for automating and monitoring over 200 raw water canal sites, providing computer controls for eight 
water treatment plants, monitoring and controlling all facilities from any facility or from an operator's home, 
accessing real-time information on the power system, and providing Internet services.  

Computer System Assessment and Master Plan, Nevada Irrigation District, Grass Valley, CA
Assistant Manager Comprehensive assessment of all facets of computerization for the district. The project 
included power and water system supervisory control and data acquisition (SCADA), desktop applications, 
engineering, CAD, surveying, database, business systems, and GIS.  Recommendations included detailed 
specifications for the district's LANs and WAN, replacement of financial and business systems, specifications 
for desktop and server systems, and system architecture for a web-based enterprise information portal 
including board records and engineering documents. Follow-on implementation assistance included 
replacing the district’s customer service and financial systems. 

El Dorado Irrigation District, SCADA Needs Assessment. Project Manager for assessment of the existing 
SCADA systems for EID which include 5 water treatment plants, 5 wastewater treatment plants, 1 
hydroelectric facility, a water distribution system, and a wastewater collection system. Systems include 
Wonderware Industrial Applications Server, blade servers, storage area networks (SAN), and enterprise 
WAN.

Page 95 of 184



Nicholas J. Peros, P.E. 
Page 2 

El Dorado Irrigation District, As Needed SCADA Services. Project Manager for 5 Task orders over the 
last 3 years overseeing a team of Wonderware specialists working as extensions of EID’s staff. Activities 
included specialized Wonderware programming for Camp 5, assistance with implementing an enterprise-
wide 2-tier historian, and – on short notice over a weekend – helping with a system-wide software upgrade 
that had unforeseen consequences. 

Calleguas Municipal Water District Turnout Automation, Thousand Oaks CA. Project Manager for 
software integration of a cellular telephone based SCADA for 95 turnouts to monitor and control wholesale 
water flows. Project involved design of a networking center and use of blade computers, storage area 
network, tapeless backup system, server virtualization, HMI using terminal services, and Wonderware 
System Platform. Project also included developing a secure website with real time data for wholesale 
customer use and an all-new .NET invoicing system which automatically retrieves billing data from SCADA 
and produces wholesale customer invoices. 

Pima County, AZ Wastewater Conveyance SCADA System. Project Manager ACEC Grand Award 
winning SCADA project, valued at nearly $3M. The SCADA system monitors and controls over 40 
wastewater pumping and related facilities. The project featured standards development and pioneering work 
in applying object-oriented SCADA technology to minimize costs for future expansion projects, creative 
solutions for minimizing the impacts of radio antennas in residential areas, and extraordinary on-time within 
budget performance which exceeded County expectations. 

Castaic Lake Water Agency Rio Vista Water Treatment Plant Upgrades, Santa Clarita, CA. Assistant 
Project Manager for replacement of existing SCADA systems for two water plants with Wonderware System 
Platform based solutions. 

City of Sunnyvale, CA Rehabilitation of Digesters 1 and 2.  Quality Control Reviewer of the electrical 
and control systems designs for the rehabilitation of two digesters and the addition of FOG/food 
waste handling.  Improvements included upgrades to the 5 kV and 480 volt distribution systems, 
PLC based controls, LED area lighting, and fiber optic communications. 

Mint Farm Treatment Plant, Longview, WA Technical Assistance in obtaining FCC microwave 
communications license for water distribution and wastewater collections SCADA.   

San Francisco Public Utilities Commission, CA Project Engineer For both the Oceanside and 
Southeast Wastewater Treatment Plant, provided assistance with deployment of the Wonderware Historian 
including investigating hardware, software, and network issues, and importing SCADA data from the legacy 
distributed control system into Wonderware. 

CMWD-Turnout Automation Project, Calleguas Municipal Water District, Thousand Oaks, CA Project 
Manager Project Manager and SCADA technical lead for a $14M program to upgrade and automate 91 
wholesale customer turnouts. Project included developing a highly reliable, lossless, and secure cellular 
communications system to bring near real time field information to a central database for SCADA operations 
and simultaneous on-line access by wholesale customers. Project involved preliminary design, design, and 
software integration services. Project included design of a networking center utilizing blade servers, storage 
area network, tapeless backup, and server virtualization. Project included developing a secure website with 
real time data for wholesale customer use. Project also included developing software for a .NET based 
invoicing system which automatically retrieves billing data from SCADA and produces wholesale customer 
invoices. 

Lake Bard Water Filtration Plant Video Surveillance and Security System, Calleguas Municipal Water 
District, Thousand Oaks, CA Project Manager Managed design and implementation of a video security 
system for the Water District which serves over 600,000 users and covers an area of 350 square miles. The 
District needed video surveillance to protect its watershed and major facilities. Kennedy/Jenks developed the 
security systems plan which included monitoring and viewing capabilities at 10 different locations. 

Page 96 of 184



Nicholas J. Peros, P.E. 
Page 3 

Kennedy/Jenks design utilizes edge video analytics hardware which can identify unknown objects as human 
with a very low probability of error, minimizing false alarms at the operations center which is staffed 24x7. 
The system includes high definition and standard definition visible light cameras; thermal cameras which can 
identify intruders in total darkness or fog; virtualized digital video recording and management; door contact 
interface integrated with a plant programmable logic controller (PLC); and wireless microwave video 
communications spanning a range of miles. 

Presentations  
Peros, N. “SCADA Systems in the Virtual Environment.” American Water Works Association. 

Millbrae, CA. November 2011. 

Peros, N. “Bringing a Wholesaler’s Meter Stations into the 21st Century Using PLCs, PCs, and 
Cellular Modems.” American Water Works Association. Sacramento, CA. October 2010. 

Peros, N. “Planning and Implementing Advanced County-Wide SCADA.” California Water 
Environment Association. Sacramento, CA. May 2006. 

Peros, N. “Electrical and Control System Fundamentals.” California Water Environment Association. 
Redding, CA. September 2005. 

Peros, N. “Electrical Power and SCADA Systems for Public Works Professionals.” American Public 
Works Association. Camarillo, CA. November 2004. 

Peros, N. “Infrastructure Information Portals: the Next Browser Accessible Frontier.” Nevada 
Geographic Information Society. Reno, NV. March 2001 

Peros, N. “Port of Seattle Automated Facilities Project (AFUS).” National Airports Peer Group. 
Tucson, AZ. February 2000. 

Peros, N. “Ventura SCADA System Upgrade.” Channel Counties Water Utilities Association. 
Ventura, CA. January 2000. 

Peros, N. "SCADA Computer Applications in Wastewater Control Plants." Northern San Joaquin 
CPWCA. March 1991. 

Peros, N. "SCADA System Operator Interfaces." Joint Instrumentation Conference August 1990. 

Peros, N. "Legal Considerations in Preparing and Enforcing Specifications." Institute of Electrical 
and Electronic Engineers Industry Applications Society. 1988. 

Page 97 of 184



TJC and Associates, Inc.  Paul Giorsetto, P.E., LEED AP  

Education 
MBA, University of 

CA, Berkeley, 
1988 

MS, Electrical 
Engineering and 
Computer 
Science; 
University of CA, 
Berkeley; 1980 

BS, Electrical 
Engineering and 
Computer 
Science; 

    University of CA, 
Berkeley; 1978 

 
Professional 

Registrations 
Electrical:  CA, WA, 

NV, HI, WY, CO, 
OR, AZ, ID, AK 

PE:UT, NM, WI, OH 
Control Systems: 

CA 
LEED Accredited 

Professional 
 
Professional 

Memberships 
Institute of 

Electrical and 
Electronics 
Engineers 

Instrumentation, 
Systems, and 
Automation 
Society 

Paul Giorsetto, P.E., LEED AP, BD+C 
QA/QC 
Experience 
Paul Giorsetto has more than 25 years of design experience in the areas 
of electrical power distribution, electrical industrial applications, control 
systems, and instrumentation.  His specific experience includes electrical 
system modeling and planning; medium and low-voltage electrical 
distribution designs of water, wastewater and industrial waste treatment 
facilities; plant instrumentation; and SCADA systems for in-plant and 
telemetry-based systems.  He also has significant experience in 
construction services, as a resident engineer and inspector, and during 
facility startup. 
 
Mr. Giorsetto has been the electrical and/or discipline lead on numerous 
large water and wastewater design projects, and has been a project 
manager on stand-alone control system and electrical design projects 
having construction costs in excess of $3 million.  He has acted as 
project manager on several standalone electrical and instrumentation 
and controls (I&C) design-build projects. 
 
Mr. Giorsetto’s recent experience includes serving as the Electrical 
design task leader for the City of Santa Cruz’s Graham Hill WTP Electrical 
Improvement Project; Electrical and I&C task leader for the 
Cogeneration System Improvements project for Dublin San Ramon 
Services District; and Lead Instrumentation Engineer for the Pacheco 
Pump Station ASD Replacement Project for the Santa Clara Valley Water 
District.  His responsibilities include electrical design for medium and low 
voltage power distribution systems.  
 

 Control System Master Plans.  Directed the development of 
control system and SCADA master plans for Orange County Water 
District, the City of San Mateo, and The City of San Diego Miramar Water 
Treatment Plant.  These control system master plans reviewed data 
requirements for operations, engineering, and maintenance staff, and 
covered control system technology, methods for providing data, and 
implementation feasibility. 
 

 Cogeneration Electrical Improvements and Service Relocation 
Project; Dublin San Ramon Services District, Pleasanton CA; 
Project Engineer and TJCAA Project Manager.  Performed 
preliminary and final design services for improvements to and expansion 
of the WWTP electrical distribution and cogeneration facility.  This project 
includes relocation of the WWTP existing 21 kV PG&E service, replacing 
existing cogeneration control/switchgear, and adding a third 
cogeneration unit resulting in a total internal generation capacity in 
excess of 2 MW.  Work includes coordinating necessary facility 
improvements for power export capability to PG&E, new PG&E primary 
service, new networked engine-generator controls, and upgrades to 
several 480 V and 21 kV switchgear.  TJCAA is assisting the District with 
engineering services during construction, with Project completion 
scheduled to occur in 2012. 

 

Page 98 of 184



TJC and Associates, Inc.  Paul Giorsetto, P.E., LEED AP  

 

 Arc Flash Implementation; Central Contra Costa Sanitation District, 
Martinez, CA; Project Manager.  Prepared an arc flash implementation strategy 
for the District that included reviews of previous arc flash and electrical improvement 
studies, field verification of hazard mitigation techniques, development of standard 
criteria for arc flash hazard identification and field labelling, and preparation of a 
standardized facility graphic for communication of arc flash conditions to District 
electricians. 

 SCADA System Intertie Study; City of Upland, CA; Project Manager/Project 
Engineer.  Prepared feasibility planning study for integrating the City’s water system 
monitoring SCADA system with the neighboring San Antonio Water Company’s 
SCADA system.  The two systems, while separate from an organizational 
perspective, each have certain assets that span between the two groups, including 
groundwater wells, reservoirs, well head chlorination facilities, and water treatment 
plants.  The study developed an integration method that was coordinated with the 
two SCADA systems to allow necessary exchange of data while addressing staffing, 
maintenance, security, and implementation methods and cost. 

 SCADA System Improvements; Marina Coast Water District, Marina CA; 
Project Manager.  Developed SCADA system rehabilitation, implementation, and 
standardization strategies.  The existing system suffered from a variety of chronic 
radio system failures, poor remote site component performance, absence of 
standardization strategies, and lack of hardware or software documentation 
procedures.  This effort included development of standardized RTU bid specifications 
for new construction, associated submittal requirements, radio path analysis for 
converting from 900 MHz unlicensed to 450 MHz licensed radios, control strategy and 
programming standards, and “quickfix” design for addressing system failure 
symptoms prior to development of a systemwide Master Plan. 

 Photovoltaic Service Coordination; Solarpack Development, Lafayette, CA.  
Assisted with the preparation of technical documents and applications for utility 
interconnection applications for large scale photovoltaic power plants in California.  
Prepared documentation for applications going to both PG&E and SCE for 
photovoltaic power plants with up to 20 MW of installed capacity. 

 Monterey Regional Desalination Facility Predesign, Marina, CA; TJCAA 
Project Manager and I&C Task Leader.  Performed preliminary design tasks 
associated with the 10 mgd regional desalination facility serving communities in and 
around the central and southern area of Monterey Bay.  Tasks included development 
of facility P&IDs, control system architecture, interagency SCADA integration, 
coordination of utility and third party power supplies, medium voltage electrical 
distribution, and development of I&C and electrical design/build procurement 
documentation. 

 SCADA Telemetry Upgrade Project; Contra Costa Water District, Concord, CA 
Project Manager. Prepared comprehensive predesign analyses and report for 
development of alternatives for remote site radio and PLC equipment, new multiple 
address system radios, new point-to-point and high bandwidth backbone 
communication links, and secure MPLS strategy as a standby strategy for routing 
telemetry SCADA data to District servers.   This project also included development of 
RFQ and RFP documents for execution of a design/build procurement strategy by the 
District for both the telemetry equipment and new server equipment being installed 
at the Randall-Bold WTP. 

 
 Diemer WTP, Electrical System Reliability Analysis (Electrical Master Plan); 

Yorba Linda, CA.  Performed reliability analysis of the existing 40 year old electrical 

Page 99 of 184



TJC and Associates, Inc.  Paul Giorsetto, P.E., LEED AP  

system at the Diemer WTP in Yorba Linda.  Project included field investigations, 
review of existing documentation, and application of client’s reliability criteria as it 
related to the electrical distribution system.  Developed final report with 
recommendations for system improvements and for integrating the work with 
ongoing District planning and design projects. 

 Pacheco Pumping Plant ASD Replacement Project; Santa Clara Valley Water 
District, Santa Clara, CA; Lead Instrumentation Engineer, Project QA/QC, 
and TJCAA Project Manager.  Project included replacement of 12 existing 2000 
hp, 5 kV, wound rotor motor speed control with new PWM Adjustable Speed Drives.  
Work includes analysis of drive technologies, review of prequalification and 
procurement delivery methods, control system interfaces to large drives, and 
modifications to the existing controls to support interim operation of parallel control 
systems for the multi-year construction cycle.  All work requires the pump station to 
remain in service throughout the construction period to deliver water to Santa Clara’s 
treatment facilities.  TJCAA is assisting the District with engineering services during 
construction, with Project completion scheduled to occur in 2012. 

 Basin Improvements Project; Inland Empire Utilities Agency, Chino Hills CA; 
Project I&C Engineer.  Design of improvements for several groundwater 
replenishment basins and water supply turnouts.  Project included definition of 
project requirements and final design.  Developed scheme for expansion to the 
existing radio based telemetry system, solar powered remote facilities, and 
subnetworking local radio communications.  Water supply turnouts are from the 
Metropolitan Water District’s (MWD’s) existing pipeline system for replenishment 
basin water supply from the MWD system and conform to MWD technical 
requirements and standards. 

 Pressure Zones 2 and 3 Pump Station Improvements; Dublin San Ramon 
Services District, Pleasanton, CA; Project Engineer and TJCAA Project 
Manager.  Project Lead electrical and I&C engineer for preliminary design, final 
design, and construction services for electrical and mechanical renovations at four 
drinking water pump stations.  Work included field inspections, conceptual 
approaches, use of reduced voltage starters for hydraulic surge control, replacement 
of all electrical equipment, and interfacing to the District's radio based SCADA 
system.  Project also resulted in relocating several PG&E service points at each pump 
station and developing bid documents to incorporate a sole sourced District 
programmer for performing SCADA system upgrades. 

 Beltz Water Treatment Plant Predesign; City of Santa Cruz Water 
Department, Santa Cruz, CA; Project Instrumentation, Controls, and 
Electrical Engineer.  Prepared a preliminary design review and analysis of the 
existing Beltz acclivity to review feasibility of the existing plant electrical and I&C 
infrastructure to support proposed process improvements.  Developed approaches 
for normal power requirements, standby power, and control system integration in a 
final comprehensive technical memorandum. 

 River Road Wet Weather Treatment Facility; City of Salem, Oregon; 
Electrical and I&C Task Leader.  Performed electrical design tasks for a new 
medium voltage service, new facility design, pump station, and integration of owner 
furnished, high rate clarification and ultra-violet disinfection equipment into the 
construction bid documents.  The design used smart P&IDs and 3-dimensional design 
tools.  

 Skinner WTP; Metropolitan Water District, Riverside CA; Electrical and I&C 
Task Leader.  Designed renovation of existing medium voltage distribution, 
including a new 33 kV SCE service, new 4.16 kV main switchgear, addition of a 1.75 
MW standby generator, and campus style unit substations as part of the $180 million 

Page 100 of 184



TJC and Associates, Inc.  Paul Giorsetto, P.E., LEED AP  

plant upgrade.  The design incorporated strict criteria for power supply switchover to 
the new SCE service and system controls for the standby generator addition with 
multiple main-tie-main circuit breakers.  The project also included fiber optic 
network, electrical power modeling, and electrical distribution and lighting design.  
I&C design included development of P&IDs for the facility including MWD-furnished 
ozone system equipment, 144-inch raw water metering, control narrative 
development, integration into the existing MWD control system, development of 
software interface protocols, and detailed I&C design for the plant improvements. 

 Groundwater Replenishment System; Orange County Water District, 
Fountain Valley, CA; Electrical and I&C Task Leader.  Designed electrical and 
I&C components.  I&C design elements included application of P&IDs; design of bus 
based I&C system utilizing Foundation Fieldbus and DeviceNet; and a distributed 
control system preselection effort resulting in selection of an Emerson DeltaV process 
control system platform.  Electrical aspects of the project included integrating the 
bus based control system, new 66kV substation, 12 kV in-plant distribution, and 
large scale application of variable frequency drives, with over 30 units ranging in size 
from 500 to 2,500 hp utilizing active front end technologies. 

 Bollman 5kV System Upgrade Project; Contra Costa Water District, Concord, 
CA; Project Manager.  Design of an upgrade to the 5kV distribution system and 
large motor (up to 1500 hp) starters and controls.  The design for the $3 million 
construction project was delivered on time and under budget. 

 Electrical Rehabilitation Project; National Park Service, Yosemite National 
Park, Yosemite, CA; Lead Electrical/Project Engineer.  Designed a 
rehabilitation of the electrical distribution system for Yosemite National Park.  This 
project required that all concepts and designs be performed within the strict 
environmental and aesthetic criteria of the National Park Service, and involved 
designing an electrical substation constructed in a structure listed on the National 
Register of Historic Buildings.   

 WWTP Electrical System Design; Salalah, Oman; Lead Electrical Design 
Engineer.  Designed WWTP electrical systems.  The design, which featured 
adaptation of United States design techniques to British Standards and Codes, also 
included extensive medium voltage distribution (11,000 volts) and motor utilization 
voltage (3,300 volts), low voltage distribution at 415 volts, motor control, and 
standby generator and distribution system applied to a campus style plant 
configuration. 

 
Publications and Presentations 
“Electrical Fundamentals for Water Distribution and Treatment Facilities”, presented at 
Contra Costa Water District, June 23, 2011. 

“Wireless Applications in the Water and Wastewater Industries”, presented at the 
American Water Works Association, Fall 2007 Conference,  

“SCADA and Asset Management”, presented at the California Water and Environment 
Association, SCADA and Communications Systems Technology Seminar, April 3, 2003. 

“SCADA Systems: The Physical Layer”, presented at the Santa Ana River Basins Section 
of the California Water Environment Association, SCADA and Data Management 
Seminar, March 13, 2002. 

"Instrumentation and SCADA Systems, an Overview", presented at the North Carolina 
AWWA/WEA Seminar on Instrumentation for Water and Wastewater Systems, July 12, 
2000.

Page 101 of 184



TJC and Associates, Inc.  Michael J. Erwin 

 
Education 
 
BS, Electrical 

Engineering; San 
Diego State 
University; 1986 

 
 
Professional 
Registration 
 
Electrical:  CA 
 
 
Professional 

Memberships 
Instrumentation, 

Systems, and 
Automation 
Society 

American Water 
Works 
Association 

 
 

Michael J. Erwin, P.E. 
Associate 
Experience 
Michael Erwin, who heads up TJCAA’s Control Systems Programming 
group, has been building valuable experience since 1986 in the design, 
implementation, and management of electrical power, control, 
automation, and instrumentation systems.  He performs electrical design 
engineering for water and wastewater treatment, collection, and 
distribution systems, and industrial facilities, focusing on instrumentation 
and control system design and programming.  His specific experience 
includes development of power calculations, protective device 
coordination, equipment specification, instrument selection, and control 
panel fabrication design; design of SCADA systems for in-plant and 
telemetry-based systems; and PLC programming. 

Mr. Erwin has hands-on familiarity with a wide variety of PLC and SCADA 
hardware and software platforms.  He gained his extensive experience 
not only as a consultant, but also as chief engineer and project manager 
for a Northern California systems integrator.  With this understanding of 
the water/wastewater, control system, and construction industries, he 
provides a viewpoint that emphasizes constructability and an emphasis 
on systems that feature maximum operator usability and efficiency.  His 
experience includes the following: 

 Montclair Lift Station; Inland Empire Utilities Agency, Chino 
Hills, CA; Lead I&C and Electrical Engineer.  Replacement of the 
electrical system, including distribution equipment, VFDs, and PLC 
control panel, with a new system using redundant ControlLogix PLCs. 
The project required a phased installation sequence to maintain 
continuous operation during construction. 

 Wastewater Treatment Plant; City of Malibu, Malibu CA. I&C 
and Electrical Discipline Lead. Lead I&C and electrical engineer for 
new greenfield WWTP and collection system pump stations for City of 
Malibu. Project includes new SCE service, secondary selective 480V 
distribution for reliability, standby generation, and local motor 
controls. I&C design incorporates distributed controls based on PLCs 
and integration of control platforms provided by process package 
suppliers. 

 Control System Integrator; Contra Costa Water District, 
Concord, CA; Project Manager. Performing field system integration 
of control system modifications as part of a several construction 
projects for Contra Costa Water District. Work includes review of 
third party designs for control system requirements, field control 
panel verification, development of supporting control panel 
modifications, and execution of field modifications. Work includes 
significant effort to coordinate control improvements between 
District, design consultants, construction contractor, and District 
programmer. 

 

 

Page 102 of 184



TJC and Associates, Inc.  Michael J. Erwin 

 Well No. 2 PLC Programming Upgrade Services; Bella Vista Water District, 
Redding CA; Project Manager.  Project includes design for an update of the well 
site PLC program to meet the District’s programming standards and organization; the 
addition of residual chlorine monitoring; and improvements in the automated 
backwash sequence. 

 Lincoln Pump Station; City of Stockton, CA; Project Manager. Project included 
design of a new pump station with three lift pumps, VFDs, PLC controls, and 
integration into the City of Stockton’s existing telemetry/SCADA system. 

 San Miguel Pump Station; Contra Costa Water District, Concord, CA; Project 
Manager.  Replacement of the electrical distribution system and controls, including 
an outdoor switchboard with automatic transfer switch, soft starters for six booster 
pumps, new instrumentation, and a PLC control panel. 

 Water Distribution System SCADA Upgrade; San Juan Water District, Granite 
Bay, CA; Project Engineer.  Hardware and software upgrades from an existing 
proprietary control system to a new Allen-Bradley PLC and Wonderware-based 
SCADA system.  Eight major PLC panels were replaced at the water treatment plant 
using AB CompactLogix PLCs on a fiber optic Ethernet network. A combination of 900 
MHz and 2,400 MHz spread spectrum Ethernet radio networks were used for control 
and monitoring of 6 pump stations, 3 tank sites, and 17 flow metering sites.  An 
Intouch SCADA application was deployed on redundant virtual servers and redundant 
historian servers with thin-clients distributed throughout the treatment plant and the 
major pump stations.  Execution of this project had to be performed with minimal 
plant shutdowns, and installation had to be performed using existing field wiring—the 
design included provisions for complete panel replacement and termination in less 
than 24 hours. 

 Wastewater Treatment Plant Expansion with New Control System; City of 
Delano, CA; Project Manager/Lead Programmer.  Control system design, PLC 
program development, and SCADA programming for the expansion.  The project 
included selection and integration of new instrumentation throughout the facility, 
seven new PLC control panels with Rockwell Automation ControlLogix controllers, a 
managed fiber optic Ethernet network, and a Wonderware Archestra SCADA system 
with an Intouch HMI, SCADAlarm alarm dialer package, and reporting software. 

 Water Treatment Plant Expansion; Bella Vista Water District, Redding, CA; 
Project Manager/Lead Programmer.  Upgrades to the raw water pump station, 
water treatment plant, and 10 remote pump stations and well sites.  Worked directly 
with the District to design and implement new control strategies and update the 
process to meet all California drinking water standards.  Upgrades included new PLC 
programs for the raw water, filter plant, and telemetry GE Fanuc 90-30 PLC systems 
and a new Intellution iFix SCADA system with redundant SCADA servers and two 
remote View nodes.  

 Water Distribution SCADA System; City of Benicia, CA; Project Manager. 
Design of PLC control panels with Modicon Momentum PLCs, and a spread spectrum 
radio network for monitoring the City’s reservoirs and pump stations from the water 
treatment plant.  The distribution system was integrated into the water treatment 
plant’s iFix SCADA system. 

 
 
 
 

Page 103 of 184



TJC and Associates, Inc.  Michael J. Erwin 

Publications and Presentations 
“Diplomacy – Dealing with Customers, Owners, Engineers, and Vendors,” presented 
quarterly at MCC Control Systems, 2004–2010. 

“The Specifics – Reading, Understanding, and Implementing Specifications,” presented 
quarterly at MCC Control Systems, 2004–2010. 

“PLC 101 – Introductory Course on PLC Programming,” presented at multiple client sites 
2001–2004. 

“Getting the Most from Your SCADA System,” presented at California Water Environment 
Association Spring Conference 1998, Redding, California. 

“Case Study from an Integrator’s Perspective,” American Water Works Association 
presentation at the Alameda County Water District Treatment Plant No. 2, 1994.  

Page 104 of 184



R I CHA RD PRESSLER 
Networks, Security and Virtualization 

Richard Pressler is a Senior Datacenter Architect in AllConnected’s datacenter practice. 
Richard works with our clients and our sales team to identify unique business and technical 
requirements and then architects/develops solutions that provide value, efficiency, and 
quick recoverability. Richard Pressler also coordinates the project teams at AllConnected 
and works with technical leads at our clients to ensure a successful deployment and 
transition of the recommended solutions to the client and/or managed services. 

 
Richard also takes the lead in managing the team that supports the private cloud 
infrastructure in AllConnected’s datacenters. 

 
SKILLS & EXPERIENCE 

 
Education 

 
 VMware VCP4 
 Cisco CCSP/CCDA/CCNA 
 Citrix DCND 
 Compellent certified installer 

 
Work Experience 

 
 15+ years of consulting experience with VMware, Cisco, and/or EMC VNX storage and Dell 

Compellent Storage 
 Customer interface experience in a corporate environment, including direct 

interaction with executive, senior level management and line-level management 
members. 

 Works in both a field service role as an architect and/or senior engineer. 
 Expertise with VDI / Citrix 
 Project management and resource tracking skills 
 Infrastructure design for SCADA and other PLC systems at environments 

including Stockton East WD and Calleguas MWD. 
 

Technical Skills 
 

Datacenter technology skillsets include: 
 

 Strong Enterprise Storage, Backup, and Archive architectural experience 
 EMC Hardware experience on VNX line 
 VMware vSphere, vCenter, Hypervisor and VDI experience 
 Cisco UCS B Series experience 
 Cisco Nexus, MDS and/or equivalent Fiber Channel Switching experience 
 Storage optimization and tiering 
 Fabric interconnect and multi-protocol design and deployment skills 
 Root cause analysis and troubleshooting skills 
 Operational lifecycle (patching, firmware, monitoring, management, automation) 
 Computer server architecture 
 Storage replication strategies 
 Disaster recovery and business continuity planning 

Page 105 of 184



Select Project experience 

Calleguas Municipal Water District: 
Acted as lead virtualization architect and designer for a new virtualized infrastructure 

that supports all active directory and scada functions along with related services for the 
district. Also provided architectural and review services for the physical design of the 
datacenter. 

 
Moorpark Unified School District: 

Acted as lead enterprise architect for the network and virtualization design. Achieved 
the goal of a fully redundant secondary datacenter based on virtualization technology and 
san to san replication. Oversaw the installation of a system that was virtualized as the 
compute and storage layer to accomplish the district goals. 

 
Ventura County office of Education: 

Acted as enterprise architect and consultant to migrate from a legacy storage and 
server infrastructure into a newly implemented virtual storage and compute datacenter 
environment, increased capacity to each virtual server to meet the organization’s needs. At 
the airport datacenter, oversaw the successful implementation of a converged solution that 
consolidated networking and fiber channel connectivity into DCB using Cisco UCS 
Architecture. 

 
Stockton East Water District: 

Acted in a design and virtualization architectural role together with Kennedy Jenks in 
order to assess the current district posture as it related to readiness for changes to the scada 
infrastructure and a long term lifecycle plan that would allow for the introduction of new 
technologies in a planned procurement cycle, including a review of services that could be 
outsourced to cloud providers. 

 
 
 

 

Page 106 of 184



Paul Rahilly

Skill Summary 
 

Software 
Mtelligence “Reliability 
Intelligence Suite”, 
Microsoft .net, 
SQL Server 2000-2008, 
Oracle databases, Business 
Intelligence, 
SCADA/DCS Systems, 
Enterprise Asset 
Management / 
Computerized Maintenance 
Management Systems, 
Mobile Operator Inspections 

 
Management Consulting 
.NET Enterprise 
Architectural Design, 
Predictive Analytics, Data 
Mining, Business 
Intelligence, Competitive 
Analysis, Technical 
Evangelism 

 
Operating Systems 
Windows XP/NT/2000/2003, 
Windows 7, Windows Server 
2003-2008 

Paul Rahilly  
Mtelligence (Mtell Advanced)

Profile 
Paul has over 22 years of experience spanning industrial 
maintenance engineering, MEP (Mechanical Electrical and 
Plumbing) construction project management, automation systems 
integration and industrial optimization. 
Early in his career Paul work in the trenches with a Guinness 
malting plant as an industrial maintenance engineer experiencing 
firsthand the pain of operations and maintenance working together 
to ensure continued capability to deliver on process 
equipment. Paul has also worked extensively on large green field 
commercial and industrial construction projects – coordinating the 
various mechanical and electrical systems installations. Any 
company will tell you, their two most crucial aspects of success, lie 
in their deliverables and their bottom line, Mtelligence holds the key 
to unlock the old antiquated maintenance philosophies known as 
calendar base maintenance, to one of self monitoring, self 
diagnostic maintenance systems. This is rapidly becoming leading 
edge future trend of modern manufacturing. This trend setting 
software assures reliability, accuracy and guarantee’s a 
revolutionary new approach to the core aspects of manufacturing 
operations and maintenance. 

 
 
 
Relevant Experience 

CEO Mtelligence (1997 – Present) 

In 1997 Paul founded “Interactive Facilities Corporation (IFC)” to 
address the knowledge management needs of O&M personnel. This 
endeavor rapidly evolved to encompass EAM/CMMS 
implementation, automation systems integration, industrial 
optimization and various advanced management information 
systems. IFC was re-launched as “Mtelligence” in 2006 as a software company focused on enterprise 
software that assures asset reliability and guarantee’s a revolutionary new approach to the core 
aspects of manufacturing operations and maintenance excellence. As the CEO of Mtelligence, Paul’s 
responsibilities include the day-to-day executive functioning of Mtelligence. 
 

 
Project Manager, Mtelligence Implementation, Union Sanitary District 2012 
 
Guided USD's first phase of Mtelligence deployment which brought runtime data from the SCADA 
Historian into the Hansen CMMS and which piloted predictive analysis for the centrifuges. 

 
 
MEP Project Manager, Lehrer McGovern Bovis, Venetian Resort Hotel (1997 -1998) 

Selected as the MEP (Mechanical, Electrical and Plumbing) project manager for what was, the  
world’s largest construction project at the time, the Venetian Hotel, valued at $2 Billion.  – A 7 million 
square foot, 6,000 Suite Hotel, Casino, Retail and Convention Complex. Developed & expedited 
“MEP” (Mechanical, Electrical and Plumbing) services design program, with respect to coordination of 
MEP installations; managed, scheduled & monitored all activities relating to MEP services  
installations 

 
 

Page 107 of 184



Paul Rahilly

MEP Project Manager, John Sisk & Son Ltd (1995-1997) 

Worked on 3 large “green field” site construction projects: - (i) QuarryVale Shopping Centre - (1 
Million square foot), (ii) Westpoint Club and (iii) Blanchardstown Town Centre - (1.2 Million square 
foot) - Developed & expedited “MEP services design program” (w.r.t builders work, coordination and 
working drawings plus equipment details for approval); Managed, scheduled & monitored all activities 
relating to MEP services installations 

 
Industrial Maintenance Engineer, Midland Malting, Ltd (1992-1995) 
Responsible for ten barley assembly branches and active in the development of Midland Malting 
centralized malting facility. Extensive process automation program implemented using Allen Bradley 
PLC’s and “Control View” technology - catered for the unmanned night operation of Midland Malting. 
Involved in planning and management of the installation of a 10.1 MW combined heat & power plant at 
midland malting. Carried out technical survey work to develop a computerized maintenance 
management system for the ten branches and Midland Malting - {“PEMAC” software used}. 

 
 
Project Engineer, Trienco Corporation (1989-1992) 
Hunter College Renovation - surveyed hunter college proposed renovation work for impact on existing 
mechanical / electrical services. Produced design drawings for the removal of asbestos in renovation 
areas. Managed and scheduled a crew of 30 men working 24-7. 
The Tudor Hotel Renovation - worked as a member of general contractor’s construction management 
team. Liaised with MEP contractors to co-ordinate and schedule the work of 150 men on-site. 
Assisted in the preparation of co-ordination drawings for the installation of HVAC, plumbing, electrical 
and fire protection. 

 
 
Education 

University College Dublin, Ireland 
 
Bachelor of Mechanical Engineering, 1985 – 1989 

Page 108 of 184



Steve Pallad 
SCADA Integration

 
Professional Summary

Steve Pallad is a senior consultant providing both software and business analysis services. His software service 
skills include design, development and implementation of solutions for web and desktop applications. His 
business analysis services include process mapping, workflow tuning and information integration. He has 
implemented applications development and CRM solutions for business and finance purposes. His software 
skills include database analysis and development, optimization, querying and reporting for both desktop and 
web users. He also has experience with enterprise applications including PeopleSoft, Microsoft Dynamics NAV 
and Salesforce CRM. 

Relevant Project Experience 

SCADA and IT Master Plan, Monterey Regional Water Pollution Control Agency, Monterey, CA - 
Business and Database Systems Consultant – Developed IT and SCADA Master Plan. Through discussions with 
the client, reviewed their various SCADA and business systems to document existing processes and strategize 
how to improve productivity and increase information integration between various work groups and systems. 
Produced a set of project plans to implement to achieve their goals for improved information sharing and 
automation. 

5-Year Master Plan, Stockton East Water District, Stockton, CA - Business and Database Systems 
Consultant – Reviewed and advised on the development of the Master Plan.  Discussions with staff included 
their accounting system, business workflows and reporting needs. Reviewed database system processes and 
extent of data stored within the database system, as well as external data stored in spreadsheets.  Advised and 
documented plans for managing the data for the Master Plan.  

Information Systems Management, Solar Trust of America, Oakland, CA – Senior IT Manager – Managed 
the company’s software systems.  Lead implementer of Microsoft Dynamics NAV (ERP business and finance) 
which was used for GL/AP/AR processes. Conducted meetings with business management and department 
heads to define the requirements and provide guidance for the installation.  The system was successfully 
installed, under budget and on time. The installation included converting and loading historic financial data from 
QuickBooks into MS SQL Server. Financial reports for business and department managers were developed as 
required. In order to resolve information sharing and to improve collaboration between departments, SharePoint 
sites were created.  Staff was trained to manage and maintain their data. 

Groundwater Data Management, CE2 Corporation, Hunters Point, CA - Senior IT Manager – Created and 
managed the data collection, analysis and reporting systems of groundwater sampling teams. The teams used 
tablet computers in the field to record their well inspection data and groundwater sampling parameters. The 
applications provided forms for data entry into MS Access files.  A reporting application produced Chain of 
Custody forms which reported well locations and analytes to be sampled for each well.  These forms, along with 
the water samples, were sent to the labs for analysis. The field data was subsequently loaded in a SQL Server 
database for monthly reports.  Results from the labs came in text files that were converted for the database.  A 
web-based application was created to show groundwater sample results on Microsoft Bing maps.  The client 
could view maps that showed well locations and color-coded analyte values for all wells over the course of the 
program (five years).  Reports were provided for quarterly samples information submitted to the US Navy. 
The applications also managed the sampling list of over 100 wells in the area.  Each well had a variety of 
analytes to be sampled over a variety of sampling frequencies.  The sampling team could run reports to get lists 
of wells to be sampled for each session, and determine what type of groundwater analysis was required. 

Page 109 of 184



Pipeline Inspection and Flushing Application, San Francisco Public Utilities Commission, San Francisco, 
CA - Database Systems Consultant – Created an application used by SFPUC staff manage the progress of 
flushing the pipelines in different areas throughout the city.  The application maintained pipeline information 
used by staff to help schedule which areas were to be flushed.  A form was utilized to track pipeline conditions 
and progress.  The application replaced a paper-based process, which was difficult to maintain and had many 
redundant and incorrect details.  By integrating the previous procedures with an Access database and forms, the 
redundancy as errors were removed and the management of the process was greatly improved. 
Asset Management, San Francisco Public Utilities Commission, San Francisco, CA - Database Systems 
Consultant – Worked with SFPUC staff to help manage groundwater assets.  A key objective was to review data 
from spreadsheets and text documents and compare it with information stored in the Maximo asset management 
system.  A gap analysis report was created to list assets that were missing from the Maximo system.  

Project Management Websites, Various Clients, San Francisco, CA - Database Systems and Application 
Programming Consultant – Created a series of internet applications used by many clients to help manage the 
schedules, communications and documents of client projects.  The secured applications used back-end database 
and file servers to store client data, documents, photos and videos created during the project.  Staff was able to 
retrieve meeting notices, agenda and documentation from the site and post their comments for others to review.  
On-site construction photos and videos were loaded into the site to provide immediate access and attention to 
details for office management.  Managers could retrieve minutes and discussions from past meetings along with 
pertinent documents.

Facility Management Websites, Various Clients, San Francisco, CA - Database Systems and Application 
Programming Consultant – Created applications used by many clients to help manage their facilities.  The 
application utilized both CAD drawings and site plans with facility buildings map overviews.  By clicking a 
building in the map, a user could retrieve lists of equipment that were maintained in the building. Information 
such as maintenance records and schedules could be retrieved.  Additionally, any piece of equipment could be 
selected to reveal its operation procedures and operation manuals which were stored as PDF files.  The linking 
of the equipment to the facility overview maps greatly simplified and improved the access of facility 
documentation for the maintenance staff.  
 
 

Page 110 of 184



RRonald L. Moeller 

Process Optimization and Regulatory Reporting 
 

Certifications 
Group IV wastewater treatment plant operator in 

the state of Washington (highest level); 
Grade II in CA; Grade III in OR 

Numerous workshops, short courses, specialty 
conferences, etc. 

 
 

 

Professional Summary 
Ron Moeller has 29 years of experience in the wastewater/water industry. He is currently certified as 
a Group IV wastewater treatment plant operator in the state of Washington and holds a Grade II 
certificate in California, and a Grade III in Oregon for Wastewater Treatment. Before joining 
Kennedy/Jenks, Ron was the Wastewater Treatment Lead Operator for the City of Chehalis, WA. Ron 
served on the Water Environment Federation's (WEF) House of Delegates, and on WEF's 2006-09 
Board of Trustees. He has served on the Pacific Northwest Clean Water Association's (PNCWA)  
Board of Directors as a WEF Director. 

Relevant Project Experience 
City of Santa Barbara, Santa Barbara, California Project Manager Developing an electronic 
O&M manual and SOPs for the El Estero Wastewater Treatment Plant. Work includes conversion of 
an existing paper manual into an electronic format, updates on existing and planned process 
changes, creation of critical SOPs and enhancement of existing SOPs, installation on client servers, 
and training. 

Woodburn Water Department, Woodburn, OR Project Manager Provided guidance in 
selecting software for the City’s new Computerized Maintenance Management System. Developed 
software assessment criteria, which included an evaluation of the Department’s maintenance 
management needs and an evaluation of existing software systems. This integrated approach resulted 
in the selection of software that was the “best fit” for the Department. Oversaw the populating of the 
software with equipment data, and provided implementation and training support. 

City of Greeley’s Water Pollution Control Facility, Greeley, CO Project Manager  Performed a 
process energy audit to explore energy reduction through process improvements, with the result 
being a reduction in overall operation and maintenance costs, capacity gains, and improved plant 
performance. The audit identified process changes that could reduce electrical consumption by 
38%, resulting in savings of $175,000 annually. 

City of Tacoma’s Central and North End Wastewater Treatment Plants, Tacoma, WA  Project 
Manager Performed process energy audits at both treatment plants to explore energy reduction 
through process improvements, with the result being a reduction in overall operation and 
maintenance costs, capacity gains, and improved plant performance. The audit identified process 
changes that could reduce electrical consumption by 14%, resulting in savings of $139,000 annually. 
Other non-energy related recommendations identified savings of $106,000 annually. 

City of Camas, Camas, Washington Project Manager  Conducting an Operations Review to 
capture institutional knowledge, support efficient and effective operation by plant staff, help address 
permit compliance challenges, and identify future activities to support long-term plant operation at 
the Camas Wastewater Treatment Plant. 

 

 
Page 111 of 184



Ron Moeller 
Page 2 

 
MMunicipal Wastewater/Water Treatment Plant Project Experience 
Eastern Municipal Water District, Perris, California Water Filtration Audit Lead, Field Team 
Conducted a Process Audit at the Perris Water Filter Plant. The process audit involved the review and 
evaluation of the District’s processes and procedures at the WFP to identify changes that would lower 
costs and save energy. 

Camarillo Sanitary District, Camarillo, California Process Energy Audit Task Leader Conducted 
process energy audit that involved the review and evaluation of the District’s processes and 
procedures at the Camarillo WRP to identify specific operational adjustments, modifications and 
improvements that would lower costs and save energy. The process audit consisted of both an off-site 
review of data and an on-site evaluation and workshop with plant staff. The audit did not include  
the collection system. Preliminary findings of the audit could result in savings $131,000 annually. 

San Mateo Wastewater Department, San Mateo, California Operations Technical Lead, Field 
Team   Provided technical guidance and served on the field team to evaluate and assess the 
condition of equipment at the Wastewater Treatment Plant. This data was used to establish a 
Preventative Maintenance (PM) program using the City’s Computerized Maintenance Management 
System. Helped develop the methodology used to assess equipment condition and priority ranking 
for maintenance. Interviewed staff to capture institutional knowledge not reflected in plant 
maintenance records. 

Western Municipal Water District’s Wastewater Treatment Plant, Corona, California 
Operations Specialist  Conducted stress testing to field-verify the treatment capacities of various 
treatment processes. Unit processes included secondary clarification, tertiary filtration, and UV 
disinfection. 

Arlington Wastewater Treatment Plant, Arlington, Washington  Operations Specialist  Provided 
performance optimization evaluation of existing solids handling facilities, which were greatly 
overloaded. Evaluated equipment, process, and operational parameters to determine if control 
strategies could be modified or incorporated to reduce sludge production and provide short-term 
relief. 

O&M Manual Development 
Performed technical writing and/or QC in the development of O&M Manuals/Operations Guides for 
the following clients: 

 Burbank, California WWTP Electronic Operations Manual 
 Fillmore, California Water Recycling Plant Electronic Operations Manual 
 Port of Seattle, Washington Electronic Operations Manual 
 Portland, Oregon Groundwater Pump Station O&M Manual 
 McCloud, California Intake Springs Water System and Tank Improvements O&M Manual 
 Port Hueneme, California Stormwater Pump Station Operation Guide 
 San Juan Water District, Granite Bay, California Water Treatment Plant Operations Guide 
 Arlington, Washington WWTP Electronic Operations Manual 
 Medford, Oregon WWTP Electronic O&M Manual 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Page 112 of 184



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

D. Management -  
Tracking Hours 
and Costs   

  

 

 
 

Page 113 of 184



Nicholas J. Peros, P.E. 

 
Union Sanitary District 
SCADA Master Plan 
#S-15-S-202 

 
 

Page 1 
 
 

Union Sanitary District 
SCADA Master Plan
#S-15-S-202

D. MANAGEMENT – TRACKING HOURS AND COSTS 
Project hours and costs will be tracked biweekly, comparing planned versus expended effort and 
estimating hours to complete present tasks. No out of scope work will be started without prior written 
authorization by USD. 

 

Page 114 of 184



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

E. Consultants’
Coordination with 
District Staff 

  

 

 
 

Page 115 of 184



Nicholas J. Peros, P.E. 

 
Union Sanitary District 
SCADA Master Plan 
#S-15-S-202 

 
 

Page 1 
 
 

Union Sanitary District 
SCADA Master Plan 
#S-15-S-202

E. CONSULTANTS’ COORDINATION WITH DISTICT STAFF 
Strategies and Work Plans with District’s Staff Members 
Communications is a key to project success whether in person, email, teleconferences, video 
conferences, or using other on-line tools.  

The proximity of our offices in Burlingame, California and the location of most our team in the Bay Area 
makes it easy for ad hoc meetings as needed. 

We’ve found that regular teleconferences, initially scheduled biweekly, are an excellent way to keep 
everyone informed and for review of action items. Screen-sharing of documents is likely to be a frequent 
asset to teleconference effectiveness. We also propose to keep document libraries on-line, to the extent 
permissible under USD security policy. 

Meeting preparation is crucial to effectiveness. We plan to communicate the agenda before 
meetings/teleconferences and minutes afterwards, typically on the same day. 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Page 116 of 184



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

F. Project 
Schedule and 
Total Hours 

  

 

 
 

Page 117 of 184



Nicholas J. Peros, P.E. 

 
Union Sanitary District 
SCADA Master Plan 
#S-15-S-202 

 
 

Page 1 
 
 

F. PROJECT SCHEDULE AND TOTAL HOURS 
The schedule below complies with the deadlines in the RFP but assumes a 1-week turnaround on 
deliverables by USD. We plan to support USD staff during the review periods to try to meet this goal. 
Note, however, that subsequent tasks do not depend in the schedule on completion of the USD’s review 
on time, providing USD some flexibility in the review of deliverables. 

Note that the planned separation of the SCADA Master Plan and SCADA Standards portions of this 
project actually occurs starting in Task 3. The subsequent Master Plan Tasks – 4 and 5 – do not depend 
on the Standards but both end in June 2015 as required by the RFP. 

Note also, however, that this quick a turn-around was actually achieved during the Stockton East 
SCADA/IT Master Plan last year. This result was made possible – in part – because the report (master 
plan) was delivered and reviewed in Chapters, as is proposed here, as each phase of work was 
completed rather than all at the end.  

Excluding optional services, the estimated levels of effort for each team member are as follows: 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Given that number of deliverables in this short project are nearly 20, USD may wish to consider the 
alternative of monthly progress payments based on actual effort expended rather than milestone-based 
payments based on deliverables or some other measure. 

 

TEAM MEMBER HOURS

 
Nicholas Peros 

 
350 

 
Paul Giorsetto 

 
230 

 
Michael Erwin 

 
330 

 
Richard Pressler 

 
70 

 
Paul Rahilly 

 
40 

 
Steve Pallad 

 
40 

 
Ron Moeller 

 
50 

 
Administrative Staff 

 
60 

TOTAL 1170

Page 118 of 184



W
B

S
Ta

sk
 N

am
e

D
ur

at
io

n
S

ta
rt

1
N

ee
ds

 A
ss

es
sm

en
t

30
 d

ay
s

11
/2

4/
14

1.
1

M
ee

tin
g 

In
cl

ud
in

g 
S

ch
ed

ul
in

g 
&

 P
re

p
2 

w
ks

11
/2

4/
14

1.
2

D
ra

ft 
R

ep
or

t C
h.

 1
1 

w
k

12
/8

/1
4

1.
3

U
S

D
 R

ev
ie

w
1 

w
k

12
/1

5/
14

1.
4

Fi
na

l R
ep

or
t C

h.
 1

2 
w

ks
12

/2
2/

14

2
R

ev
ie

w
 E

xi
st

in
g 

SC
A

D
A

 S
ys

te
m

 a
nd

 P
ro

ce
ss

es
35

 d
ay

s
1/

5/
15

2.
1

W
or

ks
ho

p 
P

re
p

1 
w

k
1/

5/
15

2.
2

W
or

ks
ho

ps
1 

w
k

1/
12

/1
5

2.
3

D
ra

ft 
R

ep
or

t C
h.

 2
2 

w
ks

1/
19

/1
5

2.
4

U
S

D
 R

ev
ie

w
1 

w
k

2/
2/

15

2.
5

Fi
na

l R
ep

or
t C

h.
 2

2 
w

ks
2/

9/
15

3
R

ec
om

m
en

da
tio

ns
10

0 
da

ys
2/

9/
15

3.
1

D
ra

ft 
R

ep
or

t C
h.

 3
5 

w
ks

2/
9/

15

3.
2

U
S

D
 R

ev
ie

w
1 

w
k

3/
16

/1
5

3.
3

Fi
na

l R
ep

or
t C

h.
 3

2 
w

ks
3/

23
/1

5

3.
4

SC
A

D
A

 S
ta

nd
ar

ds
90

 d
ay

s
2/

23
/1

5

3.
4.

1
P

LC
 P

ro
gr

am
m

in
g

6 
w

ks
2/

23
/1

5

3.
4.

2
S

C
A

D
A

 P
ro

gr
am

m
in

g
6 

w
ks

4/
6/

15

3.
4.

3
C

on
tro

l P
an

el
s

3 
w

ks
5/

18
/1

5

3.
4.

4
In

st
ru

m
en

ta
tio

n
3 

w
ks

6/
8/

15

4
Im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

Pl
an

30
 d

ay
s

3/
23

/1
5

4.
1

D
ra

ft 
R

ep
or

t C
h.

 4
3 

w
ks

3/
23

/1
5

4.
2

U
S

D
 R

ev
ie

w
1 

w
k

4/
13

/1
5

4.
3

Fi
na

l R
ep

or
t C

h.
 4

2 
w

ks
4/

20
/1

5

5
R

ep
or

t
39

 d
ay

s
4/

20
/1

5

5.
1

D
ra

ft 
E

xe
cu

tiv
e 

S
um

m
ar

y
9 

da
ys

4/
20

/1
5

5.
2

U
S

D
 R

ev
ie

w
4 

w
ks

5/
1/

15

5.
3

Fi
na

l E
xe

cu
tiv

e 
S

um
m

ar
y 

&
 C

om
pl

et
e 

R
ep

or
t

2 
w

ks
5/

29
/1

5

6
Pr

oj
ec

t M
an

ag
em

en
t

15
5 

da
ys

11
/2

4/
14

6.
1

C
on

tra
ct

 A
w

ar
d

0 
da

ys
11

/2
4/

14

6.
2

P
ro

je
ct

 P
ro

ce
du

re
s 

M
an

ua
l

1 
w

k
11

/2
4/

14

6.
3

S
ub

co
nt

ra
ct

s
1 

w
k

11
/2

4/
14

6.
4

P
ro

je
ct

 M
an

ag
em

en
t, 

R
ev

ie
w

s,
 B

ill
in

g
15

5 
da

ys
11

/2
4/

14

6.
5

B
iw

ee
kl

y 
Te

le
co

nf
er

en
ce

s
14

0 
da

ys
12

/2
/1

4

11
/2

4

1/
1

1/
2

1/
3

12
/7

2/
1

2/
2

2/
2

1/
4

1/
11

1/
18

1/
25

2/
1

2/
8

2/
15

2/
22

3/
1

3/
8

3/
15

3/
22

3/
29

4/
5

4/
12

4/
19

4/
26

5/
3

5/
10

5/
17

5/
24

5/
31

6/
7

6/
14

6/
21

6/
28

Q
1 

'1
5

Q
2 

'1
5

Q

Ta
sk

S
pl

it

P
ro

gr
es

s

M
ile

st
on

e

S
um

m
ar

y

P
ro

je
ct

 S
um

m
ar

y

E
xt

er
na

l T
as

ks

E
xt

er
na

l M
ile

st
on

e

D
ea

dl
in

e

P
ro

je
ct

: U
S

D
 S

C
AD

A
 M

as
te

r P
la

n 
& 

S
C

A
D

A
 S

ta
nd

ar
ds

N
ic

ho
la

s 
J.

 P
er

os
, P

.E
.

D
at

e:
 1

0/
22

/1
4 P
ag

e 
11

9 
of

 1
84



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

G. Sample 
Formats for 
SCADA Master 
Plans and 
SCADA 
Standards 

  

Page 120 of 184



Nicholas J. Peros, P.E. 

 
Union Sanitary District 
SCADA Master Plan 
#S-15-S-202 

 
 

Page 1 
 
 

G. SAMPLE FORMATS FOR SCADA MASTER PLANS AND SCADA  
SCADA Master Plan – Stockton East Water District  
The plan is a confidential document. We have permission, however, to present the table of contents: 

Page 121 of 184



Nicholas J. Peros, P.E. 

 
Union Sanitary District 
SCADA Master Plan 
#S-15-S-202 

 
 

Page 2 
 
 

 

Page 122 of 184



Nicholas J. Peros, P.E. 

 
Union Sanitary District 
SCADA Master Plan 
#S-15-S-202 

 
 

Page 3 
 
 

 

Page 123 of 184



Nicholas J. Peros, P.E. 

 
Union Sanitary District 
SCADA Master Plan 
#S-15-S-202 

 
 

Page 4 
 
 

SCADA STANDARDS 
Within the public sector, SCADA standards can take a variety of forms depending on the type of 
organization, risk aversion, level of staffing, and project bidding strategies of a particular Owner. For 
example, if there are limited resources, open source bidding requirements, and a desire to avoid potential 
blurring of integrator responsibility, a performance based level of standardization may be appropriate. In 
contrast, if internal staffing or close professional relationship with a third party integrator is in place, a high 
degree of self-performance is possible and highly detailed standards should be developed. Clearly, there 
are also numerous gradations of these two extremes as well. 

The specific content, level of detail, and format of the standards will be customized to meet USD 
requirements as established during the early workshops. However, regardless of the details SCADA 
standards will include the following major topic areas 

Equipment Control and Control Hierarchy 

Control hierarchy describes how control is executed and is standardized to assure consistent operational 
schemes throughout the facility. Generally, for safety purposes, the control element closest to the 
equipment takes precedence over more remote control elements.  For example, a local emergency stop 
switch at the motor will override a remote CALL to run from SCADA; a local OFF switch will override a 
remote CALL from SCADA, etc. Critical safety interlocks (low level cutoff, high discharge pressure, etc.) 
may be hardwired directly into the motor control circuit using fail safe logic depending on the preferences 
of operational and maintenance staff. These local critical interlocks may also require a local manual reset 
for safety reasons. 

Standard Control Loop Descriptions 

The purpose of control description standards is to define and document a standard control strategy in text 
format.  The intent is to document control schemes in a manner that simplifies confirmation of the 
approach by operational staff and act as a translation for communicating these control requirements to 
the programmer.  Having a standard control scheme also simplifies designs going forward and provides 
some assurances that all sites with similar features will be consistent and integrate properly into system 
wide controls. If desired, control descriptions can be developed using standard programming block 
modules combined to achieve the ultimate process control requirements as described later in this section. 

Each loop description section should address the following subheadings. 
General - Describe how the physical process works and what its primary operational goals are. 

Control - Indicate point of control (e.g., Local, MCC, and Local SCADA) and control modes (e.g. 
Manual and Automatic).  Address issue of power failure state and manual/automatic restart. 

Alarms and Monitoring - Indicate the logic to generate any alarms or safety interlocks required by 
the process or process equipment. 

 

 

 

Page 124 of 184



Nicholas J. Peros, P.E. 

 
Union Sanitary District 
SCADA Master Plan 
#S-15-S-202 

 
 

Page 5 
 
 

Field Instrumentation 

Instrumentation standards are provided to for requirements to measure and monitor the process. This 
standard may also be used to establish fieldbus network standards if intelligent field instrumentation of 
control valves in use. 

Control Panel Construction 

Control panel construction is often included in standards development to ensure a common level of 
quality with field control panels. Using existing Codes (e.g., National Electrical Code) and fabrication 
standards (UL 508) as the basis, control panel requirement may expand these basic needs to reflect 
particular features experienced by District staff. For example, the marine environment in and around the 
USD facilities combined with the wastewater treatment process results in a highly corrosive and 
aggressive environment. As a result, control panel construction standards can take steps to minimize or 
counteract the effects of the environment to decrease maintenance tasks and improve system reliability. 
Other special features could include internal wire tagging criteria, panel equipment conventions, or 
environmental standards. 

Control Programming 

The purpose of the programming standards section is to establish general programming requirements for 
the District’s PLC, RTU, and Local Operator Panels (LOP).  The intent is for these general guidelines to 
be used by the District’s system integrator to develop standard programming procedures and program 
modules.  These standards would then be used as the basis for programming at all remote sites to 
establish common configurations at remote sites. 

Common programming building blocks could be developed as a programming library for use by the 
District programmers (in-house or third party) to implement future projects. Programming modules would 
be developed for the general case so that all module features may not be used when applied at a 
particular site. 

HMI Configuration 

Similar to the control programming standards, HMI configuration standards establish general 
requirements associated with the Human Machine Interfaces or operator terminals used for viewing the 
process. HMI work is often termed the “look and feel” of the system and standards assist operators in 
making informed and timely decisions during system upsets. Hardware standards would be developed in 
coordination with District IT standards. 

Standard for HMI configuration include: 

 Screen formatting: Define standards for the screen layouts for general system information, alarm 
log, process display, and navigation 

 Color and font 
 Graphics and animation 
 Use and appearance of pop-up displays. 
 Screen naming conventions and nesting hierarchy 
 Presentation of change of state 
 HMI scripting 

Page 125 of 184



Nicholas J. Peros, P.E. 

 
Union Sanitary District 
SCADA Master Plan 
#S-15-S-202 

 
 

Page 6 
 
 

Historian Standards 

Historian standardization defines what data is stored for long term retrieval and the intervals of storage. 
Generally two types of data sets are stored: that data used as part of control and process monitoring 
(real-time data); and data used for asset management, preventive/predictive maintenance, diagnostic or 
forensic tasks (on-demand data). 

Network Interfacing/Data Exchange 

Recent SCADA trends highlight pushing device intelligent to the process floor level. That is, smart 
sensors, valve networks, and fieldbus technologies are rapidly gaining acceptance. Preparation of 
standards for fieldbus interfacing to the SCADA system, defining use of fieldbus or hardwire for control, 
self or externally powered, wired or wireless, and methods for field network bandwidth management 
would be addressed in this discussion. 

Standard Submittal Requirements 

The purpose of the submittal requirements standard is to define and document a standard level of 
documentation required for control system suppliers when developing shop drawings and submittals for 
SCADA system projects. Depending on the preferences of the District, two contractual entities may be 
defined: the Process Control System Supplier (PCSS) and the System Integrator Programmer (SIP). The 
responsibilities of the two entities may also be combined under a single overall integrator, programming 
performed in-house by the District, or other options depending on organizational preferences. 

PCSS Responsibilities: 

1. Provide all materials, equipment, labor and services required to achieve a fully integrated 
and installed system that is operational in local manual mode. 

2. Provide field instrumentation and process control system devices for proper operation 
including field instrumentation, RTU panels, panel components, and interfaces to other, 
intelligent equipment access via system data links. 

3. Provide all communication equipment and establish and verify remote communication 
channels required for the proper operation of the new facility. 

4. Provide installation services for the PCSS provided equipment including installation, setup, 
calibration, factory testing, field acceptance testing, operational testing, and performance 
testing. 

5. Provide training on PCSS equipment provided under the Contract. 
6. Provide O&M documentation on PCSS equipment provided under the Contract. 
7. Provide coordination support for the SIP. 

 
SIP responsibilities: 

1. Provide all materials, equipment, labor and services required to achieve a fully integrated 
and installed system that is operational in automatic and remote manual mode. 

2. Provide all RTU programming, Local Operator Panel (LOP) and Human Machine Interface 
(HMI) configuration including development of control programs, database configuration, 
graphic screens, trending screens, etc. 

3. Make necessary modifications to the existing central station HMI and all other HMI, RTU, 
and LOP programming. Provide suitable configuration software for the LOPs as specified in 
the Contract Documents. 
 
 

Page 126 of 184



Nicholas J. Peros, P.E. 

 
Union Sanitary District 
SCADA Master Plan 
#S-15-S-202 

 
 

Page 7 
 
 

 
4. Provide factory and field testing of developed software and verify process control programs 

developed for the facility.  Install programs and perform field acceptance testing, 
operational testing, and performance testing of the completed system. 

5. Provide training on developed programs. 
6. Develop standard programming approaches and modules for implementing system side 

standards for software development. 
7. Provide documentation for process control programs developed under the Contract. 
8. Provide coordination support for the PCSS. 

 

Testing, Startup, and Commissioning 

Standards for testing, startup, and commissioning assist the District in more reliable operating systems, 
act to establish acceptable warranty conditions, and provide baselines comparisons for subsequent 
predictive/preventive maintenance tasks. Included in this discussion are standard testing procedures 
(e.g., factory testing, operational readiness testing, functional acceptance testing, etc.), testing protocols 
(simulation of failures, calibration checks, control loop verification, etc.) standard testing forms, and 
method for defining acceptable test results. 

Page 127 of 184



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

H. References 

  

 

 
 

Page 128 of 184



  U
ni

on
 S

an
ita

ry
 D

is
tr

ic
t 

SC
A

D
A

 M
as

te
r P

la
n 

#S
-1

5-
S-

20
2 

 
  

 
 

N
IC

H
O

LA
S 

PE
R

O
S’

 P
R

O
JE

C
T 

M
A

N
A

G
EM

EN
T 

PE
R

FO
R

M
A

N
C

E 
A

N
D

 R
EF

ER
EN

C
ES

C
on

ta
ct

 N
am

e,
 P

os
iti

on
, 

an
d 

E-
m

ai
l

A
dd

re
ss

Ph
on

e 
N

um
be

r 
Se

rv
ic

e 
Pr

ov
id

ed
 

D
at

e
To

ta
l H

ou
rs

 
(a

pp
ro

x.
)

C
hr

is
 F

ol
ey

 
C

on
tro

l S
ys

te
m

s 
Sp

ec
ia

lis
t 

ch
ris

@
m

rw
pc

a.
co

m
 

 

 M
on

te
re

y 
R

eg
io

na
l W

at
er

 P
ol

lu
tio

n 
C

on
tro

l A
ge

nc
y 

5 
H

ar
ris

 C
ou

rt,
 B

ld
g.

 D
 

M
on

te
re

y,
 C

A
 9

39
40

 
83

1.
80

9.
62

45
 

S
C

A
D

A 
M

as
te

r P
la

n 

  
N

ov
 2

01
3 

- P
re

se
nt

 

  
1,

20
0 

M
ic

ha
el

 J
oh

ns
on

 
A

ss
is

ta
nt

 G
en

er
al

 M
an

ag
er

 
m

jo
hn

so
n@

se
w

d.
ne

t 

 S
to

ck
to

n 
E

as
t W

at
er

 D
is

tri
ct

 
P

O
 B

ox
 5

15
7 

S
to

ck
to

n 
C

A,
 9

52
15

 

20
9.

44
4.

31
50

 
S

C
A

D
A/

IT
 M

as
te

r P
la

n 

 
Ju

ne
 –

 D
ec

em
be

r 2
01

3 
 

49
0 

K
ris

tin
e 

M
cC

af
fre

y 
M

an
ag

er
 o

f E
ng

in
ee

rin
g 

K
M

cC
af

fre
y@

C
al

le
gu

as
.c

om
 

 C
al

le
gu

as
 M

un
ic

ip
al

 W
at

er
 D

is
tri

ct
 

21
00

 O
ls

en
 R

d.
 

Th
ou

sa
nd

 O
ak

s,
 C

A
 9

13
60

 

80
5.

57
9.

71
73

 
20

11
-2

01
3 

  
20

06
 - 

P
re

se
nt

 

  
10

,0
00

+ 

 D
an

a 
S

tra
ha

n 
O

pe
ra

tio
ns

 M
an

ag
er

, W
at

er
 

S
ys

te
m

s 
ds

tra
ha

n@
ei

d.
or

g  

   El
 D

or
ad

o 
Irr

ig
at

io
n 

D
is

tri
ct

 
28

90
 M

os
qu

ito
 R

oa
d 

P
la

ce
rv

ille
 C

A 
95

66
7 

53
0.

64
2.

40
60

 

P
ro

je
ct

 M
an

ag
em

en
t a

nd
 c

on
su

lta
tio

ns
 fo

r 
m

is
ce

lla
ne

ou
s 

S
C

A
D

A 
up

gr
ad

es
 in

cl
ud

in
g 

th
e 

in
st

al
la

tio
n 

of
 m

ul
ti-

tie
r d

at
ab

as
es

 fo
r 

lo
ss

le
ss

 re
pl

ic
at

io
n 

fro
m

 a
 to

ta
l o

f 9
 p

la
nt

s 
to

 a
 c

en
tra

l d
at

ab
as

e 
co

ve
rin

g 
th

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

sy
st

em
s:

 w
at

er
, w

as
te

w
at

er
, 

hy
dr

oe
le

ct
ric

 p
ow

er
, w

at
er

 d
is

tri
bu

tio
n,

 
w

as
te

w
at

er
 c

ol
le

ct
io

n.
 

    
20

11
 - 

20
12

 

    
57

0 

Je
ff 

W
hi

tm
an

 
C

hi
ef

 P
la

nt
 O

pe
ra

to
r 

je
ff.

w
hi

tm
an

@
ea

rth
lin

k.
ne

t 

   Si
nc

e 
Ap

ril
 2

01
3:

 
C

ity
 o

f D
ur

an
go

 U
til

iti
es

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

94
9 

E
. 2

nd
 A

ve
 

D
ur

an
go

, C
O

 8
13

03
 

97
0.

37
5.

48
96

 

A
C

E
C

 G
ra

nd
 P

riz
e 

w
in

ni
ng

 p
ro

je
ct

 fo
r 

E
ng

in
ee

rin
g 

E
xc

el
le

nc
e,

 P
im

a 
C

o.
 A

Z:
 

Pr
el

im
in

ar
y 

D
es

ig
n,

 B
id

 D
oc

um
en

ts
, C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

S
er

vi
ce

 fo
r r

ad
io

-b
as

ed
 w

as
te

w
at

er
 

co
lle

ct
io

n 
sy

st
em

 S
C

A
D

A 
fo

r 4
0 

si
te

s 

  
  

3,
00

0 

 
 

 
 

P
ag

e 
12

9 
of

 1
84



     
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 U
ni

on
 S

an
ita

ry
 D

is
tr

ic
t 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 S
C

A
D

A
 M

as
te

r P
la

n 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 #

S-
15

-S
-2

02
 

 
  

 

RE
FE

RE
N

CE
S 

FO
R 

TJ
C 

AN
D 

AS
SO

CI
AT

ES
, I

N
C.

     

 

TJ
C

 A
N

D
A

SS
O

C
IA

TE
S 

PR
O

JE
C

T 
M

AN
A

G
EM

EN
T 

PE
R

FO
R

M
A

N
C

E 
A

N
D

 R
EF

ER
EN

C
ES

C
on

ta
ct

 N
am

e,
 

Po
si

tio
n,

 a
nd

 E
-m

ai
l

A
dd

re
ss

Ph
on

e 
N

um
be

r 
Se

rv
ic

e 
Pr

ov
id

ed
 

D
ur

at
io

n 
   

   
   

  
B

ud
ge

t/S
ch

ed
ul

e 
Pe

rf
or

m
an

ce

To
ta

l H
ou

rs
 

(a
pp

ro
x.

)

  Ja
co

b 
Le

so
v 

 
P

ro
je

ct
 M

an
ag

er
  

jle
so

v@
cc

w
at

er
.c

om
 

  

             C
on

tra
 C

os
ta

 W
at

er
 D

is
tri

ct
  

13
31

 C
on

co
rd

 A
ve

nu
e 

C
on

co
rd

, C
A 

94
52

0 
92

5-
68

8-
83

96
 

S
C

A
D

A 
Te

le
m

et
ry

 Im
pr

ov
em

en
t P

ro
je

ct
. 

P
re

pa
re

d 
co

m
pr

eh
en

si
ve

 p
re

de
si

gn
 

an
al

ys
es

 a
nd

 re
po

rt 
fo

r d
ev

el
op

m
en

t o
f 

up
gr

ad
e 

sc
he

m
e 

fo
r t

he
 D

is
tri

ct
’s

 S
C

A
D

A 
an

d 
te

le
m

et
ry

 s
ys

te
m

 w
ith

 th
e 

ob
je

ct
iv

e 
of

 
im

pr
ov

in
g 

ov
er

al
l s

ys
te

m
 re

lia
bi

lit
y.

  
Pr

oj
ec

t i
nc

lu
de

d 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t o
f 

al
te

rn
at

iv
es

 fo
r r

em
ot

e 
si

te
 ra

di
o 

an
d 

P
LC

 
eq

ui
pm

en
t, 

ne
w

 m
ul

tip
le

 a
dd

re
ss

 s
ys

te
m

 
(M

A
S

) r
ad

io
s,

 n
ew

 p
oi

nt
-to

-p
oi

nt
 a

nd
 h

ig
h 

ba
nd

w
id

th
 b

ac
kb

on
e 

co
m

m
un

ic
at

io
n 

lin
ks

.  
Pr

oj
ec

t a
ls

o 
in

cl
ud

ed
 a

ss
es

sm
en

t o
f 

ce
nt

ra
l s

ta
tio

n 
S

C
A

D
A

 fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
st

an
db

y 
po

w
er

 re
lia

bi
lit

y 
an

d 
ca

pa
ci

ty
. A

lte
rn

at
iv

es
 

w
er

e 
an

al
yz

ed
 a

nd
 re

co
m

m
en

da
tio

ns
 

m
ad

e 
to

 u
pg

ra
de

 P
LC

s 
to

 E
th

er
ne

t 
pr

oc
es

so
rs

, i
nc

or
po

ra
te

 G
E/

M
D

S
 S

D
9 

E
th

er
ne

t r
ad

io
s,

 e
st

ab
lis

h 
M

AS
 re

pe
at

er
 

ba
se

d 
to

po
lo

gy
 in

st
al

l d
ua

l r
ad

io
s 

fo
r 

im
pr

ov
ed

 re
lia

bi
lit

y,
 a

nd
 im

pl
em

en
t s

ec
ur

e 
M

P
LS

 s
tra

te
gy

 a
s 

a 
st

an
db

y 
st

ra
te

gy
 fo

r 
ro

ut
in

g 
te

le
m

et
ry

 S
C

A
D

A 
da

ta
 to

 D
is

tri
ct

 
se

rv
er

s.
 

           
12

 M
on

th
s 

O
n 

Ti
m

e:
 M

et
 C

lie
nt

 
S

ch
ed

ul
e 

            
$8

00
,0

00
 

P
ag

e 
13

0 
of

 1
84



     
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 U
ni

on
 S

an
ita

ry
 D

is
tr

ic
t 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 S
C

A
D

A
 M

as
te

r P
la

n 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 #

S-
15

-S
-2

02
 

 
  

 

RE
FE

RE
N

CE
S 

FO
R 

TJ
C 

AN
D 

AS
SO

CI
AT

ES
, I

N
C.

     

S
ea

n 
K

ni
gh

t  
A

ss
is

ta
nt

 E
ng

in
ee

r  
sk

ni
gh

t@
m

cw
d.

or
g 

 

           S
un

ny
sl

op
e 

C
ou

nt
y 

W
at

er
 D

is
tri

ct
 

(M
r. 

Kn
ig

ht
 F

or
m

er
ly

 w
ith

 M
ar

in
a 

C
oa

st
 

W
at

er
 D

is
tri

ct
) 

35
70

 A
irl

in
e 

H
ig

hw
ay

 
H

ol
lis

te
r, 

C
A

  9
50

23
 

83
1-

88
3-

59
30

 

P
er

fo
rm

ed
 S

C
A

D
A

 d
es

ig
n 

se
rv

ic
es

 fo
r t

he
 

D
is

tri
ct

 in
cl

ud
in

g 
re

vi
ew

 o
f e

xi
st

in
g 

sy
st

em
 

de
fic

ie
nc

ie
s;

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t o
f n

ew
 R

TU
 

an
d 

ra
di

o 
st

an
da

rd
 h

ar
dw

ar
e 

sp
ec

ifi
ca

tio
ns

 fo
r n

ew
 c

on
st

ru
ct

io
n;

 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t o
f s

ta
nd

ar
d 

pr
og

ra
m

m
in

g,
 

su
bm

itt
al

, a
nd

 w
el

l c
on

tro
l d

es
cr

ip
tio

ns
; 

an
d 

bi
d 

do
cu

m
en

ts
 fo

r a
n 

in
te

rim
 “q

ui
ck

fix
” 

so
lu

tio
n 

to
 c

hr
on

ic
 fa

ilu
re

s 
w

ith
in

 th
ei

r 
ex

is
tin

g 
ra

di
o 

sy
st

em
.  

 
Ef

fo
rt 

in
cl

ud
ed

 in
te

gr
at

io
n 

of
 li

ce
ns

ed
 

(4
50

M
H

Z)
 a

nd
 u

nl
ic

en
se

d 
(9

00
 M

H
Z)

 
ra

di
os

, s
er

ia
l a

nd
 E

th
er

ne
t r

ad
io

 
m

ig
ra

tio
ns

, i
nt

er
fa

ce
 b

et
w

ee
n 

ne
w

 
(R

oc
kw

el
l A

ut
om

at
io

n 
M

ic
ro

lo
gi

x)
 a

nd
 

ex
is

tin
g 

(In
du

st
ria

l C
on

tro
l L

in
ks

) R
TU

 
pl

at
fo

rm
s,

 a
nd

 p
re

pa
ra

tio
n 

of
 fi

na
l b

id
 

do
cu

m
en

ts
. T

he
 a

pp
ro

ac
h 

al
so

 in
cl

ud
ed

 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t o
f s

to
re

 a
nd

 fo
rw

ar
d 

in
te

rim
 

R
TU

 in
te

rfa
ce

s 
at

 fo
ur

 re
pe

at
er

/h
ub

 s
ite

s 
th

at
 in

co
rp

or
at

ed
 a

n 
up

w
ar

d 
m

ig
ra

tio
n 

pa
th

 fo
r f

ut
ur

e 
sy

st
em

 im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 th
at

 
en

co
m

pa
ss

ed
 p

ee
r-

to
-p

ee
r 

co
m

m
un

ic
at

io
ns

, D
N

P
3/

Et
he

rn
et

 o
pt

io
ns

, 
an

d 
lic

en
se

d 
ra

di
os

 c
om

m
un

ic
at

in
g 

to
 

S
C

A
D

A 
C

en
tra

l f
ea

tu
rin

g 
a 

W
on

de
rw

ar
e 

In
to

uc
h 

H
M

I. 

            
24

 M
on

th
s 

O
n 

Ti
m

e:
 M

et
 C

lie
nt

 
S

ch
ed

ul
e 

             
$2

50
,0

00
 

To
m

 Z
ah

ar
ris

 
Tr

ea
tm

en
t P

la
nt

 S
up

er
in

te
nd

en
t 

tz
ah

ar
ris

@
bv

w
d.

or
g 

 
  

  B
el

la
 V

is
ta

 W
at

er
 D

is
tri

ct
 

11
36

8 
S

til
lw

at
er

 W
ay

 
R

ed
di

ng
, C

A
 9

60
03

 
53

0-
 2

24
-6

50
1 

A
s 

th
e 

D
is

tri
ct

’s
 s

ys
te

m
 in

te
gr

at
or

, T
JC

A
A 

m
ai

nt
ai

ns
 a

nd
 u

pd
at

es
 th

e 
P

LC
 p

ro
gr

am
s 

an
d 

S
C

A
D

A
 s

ys
te

m
 fo

r t
he

 D
is

tri
ct

’s
 w

at
er

 
tre

at
m

en
t a

nd
 d

is
tri

bu
tio

n 
sy

st
em

. T
he

 
sy

st
em

 in
cl

ud
es

 th
e 

m
ai

n 
ra

w
 w

at
er

 
pu

m
pi

ng
 s

ta
tio

n,
 tw

o 
w

el
l p

um
p 

st
at

io
ns

, a
 

16
-fi

lte
r w

at
er

 tr
ea

tm
en

t f
ac

ilit
y,

 a
nd

 
tw

el
ve

 re
m

ot
e 

di
st

rib
ut

io
n 

si
te

s.
 

Si
nc

e 
19

95
, M

ik
e 

Er
w

in
 h

as
 e

xc
lu

si
ve

ly
 

pr
og

ra
m

m
ed

 th
e 

S
C

A
D

A
 s

ys
te

m
 a

nd
 

P
LC

s 
fo

r a
ll 

of
 th

e 
fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

on
 th

e 
D

is
tri

ct
’s

 
S

C
A

D
A 

ne
tw

or
k.

 P
ro

je
ct

s 
ha

ve
 in

cl
ud

ed
 

tw
o 

pl
an

t e
xp

an
si

on
s,

 m
ul

tip
le

 n
ew

 p
um

p 
st

at
io

ns
, u

pg
ra

de
s 

to
 e

xi
st

in
g 

fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
w

hi
le

 in
 o

pe
ra

tio
n,

 a
nd

 im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 to
 

th
e 

D
is

tri
ct

’s
 c

om
m

un
ic

at
io

ns
 s

ys
te

m
s.

 

      
19

 Y
ea

rs
  

O
ng

oi
ng

 s
in

ce
 2

00
5 

A
s 

ne
ed

ed
 p

ro
je

ct
s:

   
   

   
m

et
 C

lie
nt

’s
 s

ch
ed

ul
e 

on
 

tim
e 

an
d 

on
 b

ud
ge

t 
th

ro
ug

ho
ut

 th
e 

re
la

tio
ns

hi
p 

     
 

 
V

ar
ie

d 
de

pe
nd

in
g 

on
 

as
si

gn
m

en
t 

 
 

 
 

P
ag

e 
13

1 
of

 1
84



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

I. Options 

  

 

 
 

Page 132 of 184



Nicholas J. Peros, P.E. 

 
Union Sanitary District 
SCADA Master Plan 
#S-15-S-202 

 
 

Page 1 
 
 

I. OPTIONS 
The following are additions to the Methodology and Approach for this project: 

Option 1: Networking standards development  
Networking standards development would include discussions on wired and wireless systems, the Cisco 
networking equipment now in place, and security. We would also review alternatives to mitigate risks 
imposed by potential off-site users such as 2-factor authentication, workstation virtualization, and the like. 
See paragraph “I” for proposed out-of-scope networking services: Network Peer Review. 

Option 2: Network Peer Review 
Though not required by the Scope of Work, it’s often of great value and we offer the option to peer review 
the existing network - wired and wireless - as part of the Master Plan process. This step often reveals 
latent security issues and administrative lapses. Investigations include electronic probing of all subnets, 
review of network equipment models and firmware, review of router configuration, assessment of 
vulnerabilities at the boundaries, and review of Active Directory Group Policies. The review would also 
include USD’s virtualization implementation to look for departures from best practices. 

This work would be led by Richard Pressler of AllConnected. 

We’ve found that a review of this type informs both SCADA master plans and standards. 

Option 3: Standards for SCADA Design Methodology 
Our approach to the standards for SCADA Design Methodology will focus on working with USD from two 
perspectives:  the process for creation of bid documents and the process for software design and 
implementation. The former will need tools to facilitate compliance with the standards describe above 
such as drawings, software templates, and specification sections to include in bid documents. The latter 
will focus on the process for designing, building, testing, commissioning, and documenting PLC, SCADA, 
and custom software.  

Option 4: HMI Vendor Demonstrations 
USD has a tremendous investment in iFix applications software and there is little incentive to change. It 
may be informative, however, to bring in a couple of vendors of competing products to get contrasting 
views of the capabilities of contemporary HMI implementations.  We propose to bring in two vendors, 
schedule presentations in the morning and afternoon of the same day, and conclude the day with a 
discussion session to assess impact, if any, on the SCADA Master Plan and SCADA Standards. 

Option 5: Develop up to date Plant-wide (or District-wide) P&IDs in AutoCAD format 
We understand that USD has no complete and up-to-date set of P&IDs for the plant. With correct HMI, 
Equipment, and other tags, these drawings could assist with the needed addition of tags to the iFix 
screens and facilitate coordination of USD’s planned Integrated Solution Architecture. Tasks to develop 
the P&IDs are: 

1. Field investigations 
2. Research existing documentation 
3. Draft set of P&IDs  
4. Research existing asset tagging conventions to determine the extent they can be utilized. 

Coordinate possible requirements with CMMS, Accounting, ODMS, etc. 

Page 133 of 184



Nicholas J. Peros, P.E. 

 
Union Sanitary District 
SCADA Master Plan 
#S-15-S-202 

 
 

Page 2 
 
 

 
5. Coordinate with the tagging standard described as part of the proposed scope of work 
6. Workshop to review draft documents 
7. Final set of P&IDs 

Option 6: Additional Presentations  
It is not at all uncommon for consultants to make master plan presentations to the Board or other groups 
and would enjoy the opportunities to do so. It’s hard to ascertain at this time, however, the needed level of 
effort for a firm proposal. Perhaps an allowance can be set aside using part of the unspent budget as 
shown in sealed Attachment D. 
 

Page 134 of 184



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Appendices 
Attachment B:
Non-Collusion Affidavit 

  

 
 

Page 135 of 184



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Attachment B: 
Non-Collusion Affidavit 

  

 
 

Page 136 of 184



Nicholas J. Peros, P.E. 

 
Union Sanitary District 
SCADA Master Plan 
#S-15-S-202 

 
 

Page 1 
 
 

Union Sanitary District 
SCADA Master Plan 

 

Page 137 of 184



 
Union Sanitary District
SCADA Master Plan
#S-15-S-202

J. BILLING RATE AND STRUCTURE
Cost Proposal 
We understand that the tasks relating to SCADA Standards involve capturing existing standards rather 
than starting with a new piece of paper and developing all-new standards. The extent to which work is 
already done and there is consensus, the amount of work needed is reduced. To the extent it’s not done 
or there is no consensus, more work is needed. These facts are unknown at this time.

One approach to solve this dilemma is by an allowance i.e. to tailor the work to a specific budget and this 
we propose to do. The allowance we propose is 400 hours for the standards and will work with USD 
during negotiations to tailor the scope to match this budget.

Cost Proposal Attachment D is detailed, highlighted, and attached on the next page.

Nicholas J. Peros, P.E. 
 

Page 1 

Page 138 of 184



 U
ni

on
 S

an
ita

ry
 D

is
tr

ic
t

SC
A

D
A

M
as

te
r P

la
n

#S
-1

5-
S-

20
2

N
ot

e:
 T

he
 p

ro
po

se
d 

co
st

 m
us

t b
e 

N
TE

 (N
ot

 to
 E

xc
ee

d)
 d

ol
la

r a
m

ou
nt

 fo
r t

hi
s 

pr
oj

ec
t w

ith
 p

ay
m

en
ts

 b
as

ed
 o

n 
co

m
pl

et
io

n 
an

d 
ac

ce
pt

an
ce

 o
f e

ac
h 

m
ile

st
on

e.

N
ic

ho
la

s J
. P

er
os

, P
.E

. 
 

P
ag

e 
1 

P
ag

e 
13

9 
of

 1
84



 
Union Sanitary District
SCADA Master Plan
#S-15-S-202

Schedule of Hourly Rates and Costs – 2015

Nicholas J. Peros, P.E.

Labor

Nicholas J. Peros $205.00/hour

Subcontractors with markup:

Richard Pressler (AllConnected) $270.00/hour

Ron Moeller (Kennedy/Jenks Consultants) $210.00/hour

Steve Pallad (Independent Consultant) $170.00/hour

Paul Giorsetto (TJCAA) $230.00/hour

Mike Erwin (TJCAA) $220.00/hour

Paul Rahilly (Mtell) $226.00/hour

Reimbursable Expenses

Auto Mileage: Standard set by IRS
Outside Services: Cost + 10%
Materials and Other Expenses: Cost + 10%

Notes
1. All hourly rates and costs are subject to change without notice.
2. Schedule shall be subject to adjustments annually to reflect current staff

Nicholas J. Peros, P.E. 
 

Page 1 

Page 140 of 184



Directors
Manny Fernandez
Tom Handley
Pat Kite
Anjali Lathi
Jennifer Toy

Officers
Paul R. Eldredge
General Manager/
District Engineer

David M. O’Hara
Attorney

DATE: November 17, 2014

MEMO TO: Board of Directors - Union Sanitary District

FROM: Paul R. Eldredge, General Manager / District Engineer
Sami E. Ghossain, Manager of Technical Services
Raymond Chau, CIP Coach

SUBJECT: Agenda Item No. 9 – Meeting of November 24, 2014
Authorizing the General Manager to Approve Contract Change 
Order No. 57 with D. W. Nicholson Corporation for the 
Cogeneration Project

Recommendation

Staff recommends the Board authorize the General Manager to approve Contract 
Change Order (CCO) No. 57 in the credit amount of $186,791 with D. W. Nicholson 
Corporation (DWN) for the Cogeneration Project (Project). 

Background

The Board awarded the construction contract for the Project to DWN in the amount of 
$10,566,358 on March 11, 2013.  The Project will consist of the construction of two new 
850-kilowatt engine generators housed within a new metal building, a new digester gas
conditioning system, and modifications to the existing electrical, digester gas piping, 
and hot water systems. 

The engine generators will utilize digester gas produced at the primary and secondary 
digesters to generate electrical power that will be used within the wastewater treatment 
plant.  Additionally, the engine generators will produce waste heat that will be captured 
and used to heat the primary sludge within the primary digesters.

Staff issued the Notice to Proceed to DWN on April 5, 2013.  The Project's construction 
period was 525 calendar days with an original completion date of September 11, 2014.  
However, due to construction and equipment startup delays, staff anticipates the 
completion of the Project by February 2015. 

The Project was designed by Carollo Engineers and construction management is being 
provided by The Covello Group.

Page 141 of 184



Agenda Item No. 9 
Meeting of November 24, 2014
Page 2 

Proposed Contract Change Order No. 57

Staff submitted an application to the Self-Generation Incentive Program (SGIP), which 
provides financial incentives for the installation of new, qualifying self-generation 
equipment installed to meet all or a portion of the electric energy needs of a facility.
Pacific Gas and Electric (PG&E), who administrates the program, approved the 
District’s application.  Staff anticipates an SGIP grant of approximately $3.5 million that 
will be paid out over the first five years of operation. The final grant amount will be 
dependent on how much energy the cogeneration system will generate and how much 
of that energy was produced by the engines using digester gas as the primary fuel.

One of the requirements of the SGIP is that all of the major components of the 
cogeneration system carry a minimum ten-year warranty.  The warranty would cover the 
full cost of repair or replacement of defective components or systems, including 
coverage for labor costs to remove and reinstall defective components or systems.  The 
SGIP requires system owners to fulfill the warranty requirements by acquiring standard 
and extended warranties from the equipment manufacturers or suppliers.

The SGIP’s warranty requirements applied to the engine generators and digester gas 
conditioning system (DGCS), which are the major components in this Project.  During 
design, USD requested PG&E to allow us to self-perform the warranty/maintenance on 
the engine generators.  Since the maintenance staff has experience working on existing 
engine generators, staff made the decision to have USD maintenance staff make
repairs on the engine generators after the standard two-year warranty expires.  The 
District received PG&E’s approval to “self-perform” the warranty of the engine 
generators.  At the time, staff did not pursue the self-perform the warranty of the DGCS.
The Project’s final bid documents included a two-year warranty requirement for the 
engine generators and a ten-year warranty for the DGCS equipment.

The bid documents also included a requirement for the contractor to acquire a 
maintenance bond for the DGCS equipment.  The maintenance bond will cover the first 
five years of the warranty period and will ensure that the bond surety will be financially 
responsible should major problems occur with the equipment and the contractor 
defaults on his warranty responsibilities. With the warranty removed, there will be no 
need for the maintenance bond.  The bond is not a requirement of the SGIP.

During the construction phase, staff discovered that the cost of the ten-year warranty 
for the DGCS equipment was significant.  The equipment consists of two blowers, two 
chillers, a motorized valve actuator, a control panel, and media tanks.  Since the 
equipment isn’t too difficult to maintain, staff decided to pursue deleting this warranty 
requirement.

In October 2014, the District received PG&E’s approval to “self-perform” the warranty of 
the DGCS equipment.

Page 142 of 184



Agenda Item No. 9 
Meeting of November 24, 2014
Page 3 

The breakdown of CCO No. 57 is as follows:

Item Cost
Delete DGCS Ten-Year Warranty ($177,000)
Delete Maintenance Bond ($9,791)

Total ($186,791)

Staff recommends the Board authorize the General Manager to approve Contract 
Change Order No. 57 in the credit amount of $186,791 with D. W. Nicholson 
Corporation for the Cogeneration Project.

Change Order Summary

The table below highlights the executed contract change orders, including CCO No. 57,
valued above $25,000 for the Project. 

CCO No. Description Amount
9 Foundation Re-design for Metal Building System $35,827

10 12kV Switchgear Modifications $175,919
11 Digester Gas Back Pressure Control Valve $25,335
27 High Temperature Jacket Water Decoupling Exchanger $98,500
28 Oxidation Catalyst Installation $249,367
32 Engine Generator Exhaust Stack Support Structure $39,517
51 Modifications to Thickener Control Building Interim Piping $65,717
57 DGCS Warranty Modifications ($186,791)

Remainder of Other CCOs $306,059
Total $809,450

The total change order amount of $809,450 is 7.7% of the construction contract 
amount.

PRE/SEG/RC;ks 

Attachment: CCO No. 57

Page 143 of 184



CONTRACT CHANGE ORDER No. 057
Union Sanitary District 
Cogeneration Project 
Project No. 800-359

ITEM:  Digester Gas Conditioning System (DGCS) Warranty Modifications 

Contractor is hereby directed to make the herein described changes from the plans and specifications or do the 
following work not included in the plans and specifications of this contract.  All new work herein described shall be 
done in accordance with the applicable provisions of the plans and specifications, except as specifically modified by 
this Contract Change Order.

DESCRIPTION OF CHANGE:   

Delete both the DGCS 10-year warranty and maintenance bond as required by Specification Section 
11501-1.09.B and provide a standard 1-year warranty per Specification Section 00700.

REFERENCES: Request for Quotation (RFQ) No. 42
Potential Change Order (PCO) No. 67      

          
COST OF CHANGE: ($186,791.00) Deduct

CONTRACT TIME ADJUSTMENT: none  
     
We, the undersigned Contractor, have given careful consideration to all aspects of the change proposed and hereby 
agree.  This Contract Change Order constitutes full and complete compensation for all labor, equipment, materials, 
overhead, profit, any and all indirect costs and time adjustment, including any delay and rescheduling, required to 
perform the above described change and will accept this Contract Change Order as full and final payment. 

This document supplements the Contract Documents and all provisions of the Contract Documents will apply 
thereto.  It is understood that the Contract Change Order shall be effective when fully executed by the District.
_____________________________________________________________________________________________

ACCEPTED:      RECOMMENDED FOR ACCEPTANCE:  
D.W. Nicholson Corporation    The COVELLO GROUP, Inc.
Project Manager:     Construction Manager:

By:          By:         
Phillip Grove       Mike Redig, P.E.

Date:          Date:       

AUTHORIZED STAFF APPROVAL:
The Contractor shall not commence with the above-described work of this change order prior to the approval by the 
District's Authorized Staff. 

Union Sanitary District
District's Authorized Staff:

By:          
Paul R. Eldredge, P.E.

General Manager/District Engineer

Date :___________________

2013.008.57.057   
2013.008.56.107Page 144 of 184



DATE: November 17, 2014

MEMO TO: Board of Directors - Union Sanitary District

FROM: Paul R. Eldredge, General Manager / District Engineer
Sami E. Ghossain, Manager of Technical Services
Raymond Chau, CIP Coach
Rollie Arbolante, Customer Service Coach
Thomas Lam, Associate Engineer

SUBJECT: Agenda Item No. 10 - Meeting of November 24, 2014
Resolution No. ______, Accepting the Construction of the Sodium 
Hypochlorite Tank A and B Replacement Project from Anderson 
Pacific Engineering Construction, Inc. and Authorizing the Attorney 
for the District to Record a Notice of Completion

Recommendation

Staff recommends the Board accept the construction of the Sodium Hypochlorite Tank 
A and B Replacement Project (Project) from Anderson Pacific Engineering 
Construction, Inc. by resolution, and authorize the Attorney for the District to record a 
Notice of Completion at the Alameda County Recorder’s Office.

Background

On March 24, 2014, the Board awarded the Project’s construction contract to Anderson 
Pacific Engineering Construction, Inc. in the amount of $220,100.  The purpose of the 
Project was to replace two sodium hypochlorite tanks at the Alvarado Wastewater 
Treatment Plant and the ferrous chloride tank at the Irvington Pump Station. 

The sodium hypochlorite stored in Tanks A and B is used in the disinfection process at 
the Plant.  The secondary effluent is disinfected using sodium hypochlorite from these 
tanks in the Chlorine Contact Chamber prior to being discharged into the EBDA force 
main.

Directors
Manny Fernandez
Tom Handley
Pat Kite
Anjali Lathi
Jennifer Toy
  
Officers
Paul R. Eldredge
General Manager/
District Engineer
  
David M. O’Hara
Attorney

Page 145 of 184



Agenda Item No. 10
Meeting of November 24, 2014
Page 2 

At the end of September 2013, plant staff discovered a pinhole leak on Tank A above 
the outlet nozzle of the polyethylene tank. A temporary patch was placed over the leak 
and the tank was placed back into operation. Since Tanks A and B were both installed 
in 2000 and are at the end of their useful life, staff anticipated that Tank B could fail 
similarly and decided to include it in the project. 
  
At the Irvington Pump Station, ferrous chloride is injected into the District’s force mains
to reduce hydrogen sulfide concentrations during transport of the wastewater to the 
Plant.  The ferrous chloride tank is also made of polyethylene and was installed in 
1998. Similarly, the ferrous chloride tank has reached the end of its useful life and was 
included in the project.

The Project scope included the following tasks: 
  

Removing the two existing 7,700-gallon sodium hypochlorite tanks located at the 
Maintenance Shop in the Plant and replacing them with two new 8,100-gallon
fiberglass reinforced plastic (FRP) tanks. 

Removing the existing 12,000-gallon ferrous chloride tank located at the 
Irvington Pump Station and replacing it with a new 12,000-gallon FRP tank.

Carollo Engineers completed the design of the Project in February 2014.

Construction Contract

Staff issued the Notice to Proceed to Anderson Pacific Engineering Construction, Inc.
on April 22, 2014 with a scheduled completion date of August 5, 2014. Anderson 
Pacific Engineering Construction, Inc. substantially completed all contract work on 
October 10, 2014. The delay in substantial completion is attributed to the contractor’s 
efforts to obtain approval for an alternate method of manufacturing the FRP tanks that 
resulted in multiple submittal reviews.  Carollo rejected the contractor’s request due to 
the lower expected life of the alternate tanks.  The tank submittal review process 
delayed the delivery and installation of the replacement tanks which led to the delay in 
completing the Project.  Staff provided construction management services for the 
project.

Change Orders

After removal of the existing Tanks A and B, the contractor discovered existing coatings 
on the concrete tank pads.  Staff directed the contractor to remove the coatings in order 
for the contractor to proceed with preparing the pads for the replacement tanks.  
Additionally, after removal of the ferrous chloride tank, the contractor discovered the 
existing concrete tank pad was not level.  Staff directed the contractor to apply a 

Page 146 of 184



Agenda Item No. 10
Meeting of November 24, 2014
Page 3 

cementitious material to level the pad prior to setting the replacement tank.  Staff also 
directed the contractor to make modifications to the discharge piping and to add tank 
level indicators on all three tanks.

In exchange for this extra work, the District negotiated with the contractor under 
Contract Change Order No.1 to perform the extra work at no cost to the District in 
exchange for extending the substantial completion date from August 5, 2014 to 
October 10, 2014.

The contractor has completed most of the punch list items and the District has assumed
beneficial use of the Project.

Staff recommends the Board accept the Sodium Hypochlorite Tank A and B 
Replacement Project from Anderson Pacific Engineering Construction, Inc. and
authorize the Attorney for the District to record a Notice of Completion at the Alameda 
County Recorder’s Office.

PRE/SEG/RC/RA/TL;ks 

Attachments: Resolution
Notice of Completion
Figure 1 – Alvarado WWTP Site Plan
Figure 2 – Irvington Pump Station Site Plan
Construction Photos

Page 147 of 184



RESOLUTION NO. ____

ACCEPTING CONSTRUCTION OF  
THE SODIUM HYPOCHLORITE TANK A AND B REPLACEMENT 

PROJECT 
FROM ANDERSON PACIFIC ENGINEERING CONSTRUCTION, INC. 

LOCATED IN FREMONT AND UNION CITY, CALIFORNIA

RESOLVED:  That the Board of Directors of the UNION SANITARY 
DISTRICT hereby accepts the Sodium Hypochlorite Tank A and B Replacement 
Project from Anderson Pacific Engineering Construction, Inc., effective 
November 24, 2014; and be it

FURTHER RESOLVED:  That the Attorney for the District is authorized to 
file a “Notice of Completion” for the project.

On motion duly made and seconded, this resolution was adopted by the 
following vote on November 24, 2014: 

AYES:

NOES:

ABSENT:

ABSTAIN:

      MANNY FERNANDEZ 
President, Board of Directors
Union Sanitary District

Attest:

TOM HANDLEY
Secretary, Board of Directors
Union Sanitary District

Page 148 of 184



RECORDING REQUESTED BY
AND WHEN RECORDED
RETURN TO:

DAVID M. O’HARA
Attorney at Law
975 Centennial Drive
Brentwood, CA 94513

NO RECORDING FEE - PER GOVERNMENT CODE SECTIONS 6103 & 27283

NOTICE OF COMPLETION

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN by UNION SANITARY DISTRICT, Alameda County, California, 
that the work hereinafter described, the contract for the construction of which was entered into 
on March 26, 2014, by said District and ANDERSON PACIFIC ENGINEERING 
CONSTRUCTION, INC., Contractor for the Project, “SODIUM HYPOCHLORITE TANK A AND 
B REPLACEMENT PROJECT,” was substantially completed on October 10, 2014 and 
accepted by said District on November 24, 2014. 

The name and address of the owner is UNION SANITARY DISTRICT, at 5072 Benson Road, 
Union City, CA 94587.

The estate or interest of the owner is:  FEE SIMPLE ABSOLUTE.

The description of the site where said work was performed and completed is Union Sanitary 
District’s Wastewater Treatment Plant, located at 5072 Benson Road, Union City, CA 94587; 
and Irvington Pump Station, located at 46525 Fremont Boulevard, Fremont, CA 94539, County 
of Alameda, State of California.

The undersigned declares under penalty of perjury that the foregoing is true and correct.

Executed on ____________________________ at UNION CITY, CALIFORNIA.

_________________________
DAVID M. O’HARA,
Agent of UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

Page 149 of 184



D
ig

es
te

r G
as

 
Tr

ea
tm

en
t

So
la

r C
ar

po
rt

Fi
el

d 
O

pe
ra

tio
ns

 
B

ld
g

A
dm

in
is

tr
at

io
n 

B
ld

g

W
A

S
 T

hi
ck

en
er

 
B

ld
g

rit
te

r B
ld

g

EB
D

A 
PS

Se
co

nd
ar

y 
C

la
rif

ie
rs

5 
- 6

C
ov

er
ed

 
Ve

hi
cl

e 
St

or
ag

e

C
on

tr
ol

 B
ld

g

IN
K

A

C
hl

or
in

e 
C

on
ta

ct
 

Ta
nk

A
er

at
io

n 
B

as
in

s
5 

- 7

M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 
Sh

op

A
er

at
io

n 
B

as
in

s
1 

- 4

Se
co

nd
ar

y 
C

la
rif

ie
rs

1 
- 4

Pr
im

ar
y 

D
ig

es
te

r #
6

Pr
i

D
ig

 4

Pr
i 

D
ig

 5

H
/M

#4

Li
ft 

S
ta

tio
n 

#1

t at
io

n 
#2

Pa
in

t 
Sh

op
Pr

i 
D

ig
 3

Pr
i 

D
ig

 2
Pr

i 
D

ig
 1

Th
ic

k 
2

Th
ic

k 
4

Th
ic

k 
1

Th
ic

k 
3

G
en

er
at

or
 

B
ld

g 
#3

H
/M

#3

H
/M

#1

G
en

er
at

or
 

B
ld

g 
#1

A
lv

ar
ad

o 
PS

Se
c 

D
ig

 2

Se
c 

D
ig

 1
Th

ic
ke

ne
r 

C
on

to
l B

ld
g

H
/M #2

Su
bs

ta
tio

n 
#2

Si
te

 W
as

te
 

PS
Su

bs
ta

tio
n 

#1

³

Lo
ca

tio
n

of
E

xi
st

in
g

S
od

iu
m

H
yp

oc
hl

or
ite

Ta
nk

A
an

d
B



 

P
ag

e 
15

1 
of

 1
84

Fi
gu

re
2.

Irv
in

gt
on

P
um

p
S

ta
tio

n
S

ite
P

la
n

Lo
ca

tio
n

of
Fe

rr
ou

s
C

hl
or

id
e

Ta
nk



Sodium Hypochlorite Tanks A and B at Alvarado Wastewater Treatment Plant

Page 152 of 184



Ferrous Chloride Tank at Irvington Pump Station

Page 153 of 184



Directors
Manny Fernandez
Tom Handley
Pat Kite
Anjali Lathi
Jennifer Toy

Officers
Paul R. Eldredge
General Manager/ 
District Engineer

David M. O'Hara
Attorney

DATE: November 17, 2014

MEMO TO: Board of Directors - Union Sanitary District

FROM: Paul R. Eldredge, General Manager / District Engineer
Sami E. Ghossain, Manager of Technical Services
Raymond Chau, CIP Coach
Chris Elliott, Associate Engineer

SUBJECT: Agenda Item No. 11 - Meeting of November 24, 2014
Resolution No. _____, Accepting the Construction of the Jarvis 
Avenue Sanitary Sewer Replacement Project from D’Arcy & Harty 
Construction, Inc. and Authorizing the Attorney for the District to 
Record a Notice of Completion

Recommendation

Staff recommends the Board accept the construction of the Jarvis Avenue Sanitary 
Sewer Replacement Project from D’Arcy & Harty Construction, Inc. by resolution, and 
authorize the Attorney for the District to file a “Notice of Completion” with the Alameda 
County Recorder’s Office.  

Background

On June 23, 2014, the Board awarded a construction contract to D’Arcy & Harty
Construction, Inc. for the construction of the Jarvis Avenue Sanitary Sewer 
Replacement Project in the amount of $1,034,736.80. The project’s purpose was to 
replace 2,456 feet of existing 10-inch diameter gravity sewer which runs along Jarvis 
Avenue from Lake Boulevard to Newark Boulevard in Newark.  The sewer was in poor 
structural condition with extensive defects that required immediate attention. Please 
see the location map provided in Exhibit A. The project scope of work also included 
abandonment of 836 feet of existing 10-inch sanitary sewer, removal or abandonment of 
4 existing manholes, construction of 7 new manholes, extension of existing sewer 
laterals to new sewer mains and installation of cleanouts, sewage flow control, and 
traffic control. The project was designed by West Yost & Associates. 

Page 154 of 184



Agenda Item No. 11
Meeting of November 24, 2014
Page 2 

Construction Contract

Staff issued the Notice to Proceed to D’Arcy & Harty Construction, Inc. on July 31, 
2014.  The 120-day project was scheduled to be completed on November 27, 2014, and 
D’Arcy & Harty Construction, Inc. substantially completed the project on November 7, 
2014. Harris & Associates provided construction management services for the project.

Change Orders

The project includes four (4) change orders at a total cost of $10,897, which is 
approximately 1.1% of the original contract amount. All negotiations have been 
finalized and the change orders are being executed.  A description of the significant
change orders follows.

Change Order No. 1

Contract Change Order No. 1 is in the amount of $4,699.43, and is for making 
repairs to an unmarked Caltrans lighting conduit and electrical cable that the 
contractor encountered and damaged during pipeline excavation activities. 

Change Order No. 2

Contract Change Order No. 2 is in the amount of $7,250, and is for replacing the 
front yard lawns at 5323, 5335, 5347, and 5359 Jarvis Ave.  The project requires 
the Contractor to replace only the portions of the lawn removed in order to 
construct the laterals and the lawn areas damaged due to the construction work.  
However, this would have left the front yard lawns in an inconsistent condition,
and staff decided to order the replacement of the entire lawn areas in front of the 
four homes to address the homeowners’ concerns. 

Change Order No. 3

Contract Change Order No. 3 is in the amount of $3,650, and is for realigning the 
newly constructed lateral at 5311 Jarvis Ave. such that it would not cross through 
the corner of the property at 5323 Jarvis Ave.  

Change Order No. 4 

Contract Change Order No. 4 is in the credit amount of ($4,800) and is for 
balancing the final pay item quantities.  The difference between the estimated
quantity and the final quantity (either increased or decreased) is multiplied by the 
unit price to determine the total change in cost.  This amount is primarily 

Page 155 of 184



Agenda Item No. 11
Meeting of November 24, 2014
Page 3 

attributed to not needing to exercise the full quantity of bid items associated with 
pavement, irrigation system replacement, and trench over-excavation.

A summary of the change orders is shown in Table 1:

Table 1
Change Order Summary

No. Description Amount
1 Caltrans Lighting Conduit $4,797.00
2 Lawn Restoration At 4 Properties $7,250.00
3 5311 Jarvis Ave. Lateral Relocation $3,650.00
4 Balancing Change Order ($4,800.00)

Change Order Total (Approx. 1.1% of Contract Amount) $10,897.00

Punchlist work is nearly completed and the District has assumed beneficial use of the 
Project. 

Staff recommends the Board accept the construction of the Jarvis Avenue Sanitary 
Sewer Replacement Project from D’Arcy & Harty Construction, Inc. by resolution, and 
authorize the Attorney for the District to file a “Notice of Completion” with the Alameda 
County Recorder’s Office.  

PRE/SEG/RC/CE;ks 

Attachments: Resolution
Notice of Completion
Exhibit A – Location Map

Page 156 of 184



RESOLUTION NO. ____

ACCEPTING CONSTRUCTION OF
JARVIS AVENUE SANITARY SEWER REPLACEMENT PROJECT

FROM D’ARCY & HARTY CONSTRUCTION, INC.
LOCATED IN NEWARK, CALIFORNIA

RESOLVED:  That the Board of Directors of the UNION SANITARY 
DISTRICT hereby accepts the Jarvis Avenue Sanitary Sewer Replacement
Project from D’Arcy & Harty Construction, Inc., effective November 24, 2014, and 
be it

FURTHER RESOLVED:  That the Attorney for the District is authorized to 
file a “Notice of Completion” for the project.

On motion duly made and seconded, this resolution was adopted by the 
following vote on November 24, 2014: 

AYES:

NOES:

ABSENT:

ABSTAIN:

MANNY FERNANDEZ
President, Board of Directors
Union Sanitary District 

Attest:

TOM HANDLEY
Secretary, Board of Directors
Union Sanitary District

Page 157 of 184



RECORDING REQUESTED BY
AND WHEN RECORDED
RETURN TO:

DAVID M. O’HARA
Attorney at Law
975 Centennial Drive
Brentwood, CA 94513

NO RECORDING FEE - PER GOVERNMENT CODE SECTIONS 6103 & 27283

NOTICE OF COMPLETION

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN by the UNION SANITARY DISTRICT, Alameda County, 
California, that the work hereinafter described, the contract for the construction of which 
was entered into on June 25, 2014, by said District and D’ARCY & HARTY 
CONSTRUCTION, INC., 1300 Carroll Ave., San Francisco, CA 94124, Contractor for the 
Project, “JARVIS AVENUE SANITARY SEWER REPLACEMENT PROJECT,” was 
substantially completed on November 7, 2014, and accepted by said District on 
November 24, 2014. 

The name and address of the owner is the UNION SANITARY DISTRICT, at 5072 
Benson Road, Union City, CA  94587. 

The estate or interest of the owner is:  BENEFICIARY OF RECORDED PUBLIC 
UTILITY EASEMENTS. 

The description of the site where said work was performed and completed is along
Jarvis Avenue in the City of Newark, County of Alameda, State of California.

The undersigned declares under penalty of perjury that the foregoing is true and correct.

Executed on __________________________ at UNION CITY, CALIFORNIA.

________________________
DAVID M. O’HARA, 
Agent of UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

Page 158 of 184



P
ag

e 
15

9 
of

 1
84



P
ag

e 
16

0 
of

 1
84



P
ag

e 
16

1 
of

 1
84



P
ag

e 
16

2 
of

 1
84



P
ag

e 
16

3 
of

 1
84



P
ag

e 
16

4 
of

 1
84



P
ag

e 
16

5 
of

 1
84



P
ag

e 
16

6 
of

 1
84



P
ag

e 
16

7 
of

 1
84



P
ag

e 
16

8 
of

 1
84



P
ag

e 
16

9 
of

 1
84



P
ag

e 
17

0 
of

 1
84



P
ag

e 
17

1 
of

 1
84



P
ag

e 
17

2 
of

 1
84



P
ag

e 
17

3 
of

 1
84



12b 

 

A report summarizing the EBDA Meeting of  

November 20, 2014, will be provided at the Board Meeting. 

Page 174 of 184



Page 175 of 184



Page 176 of 184



Page 177 of 184



Page 178 of 184



Page 179 of 184



Page 180 of 184



Page 181 of 184



Page 182 of 184



Page 183 of 184



Page 184 of 184



ODOR REPORT
October 2014

During the recording period from October 01, 2014 through October 31, 2014, there were ten
odor related service requests received by the District.
City:  Fremont

1. Complaint Details:
Date: 10/1/2014 Time:  9:15 am
Location: DIEGO DR Reported By: Arlene Ohm
Wind (from): N/A Wind Speed: N/A mph
Temperature:  70 Degrees F Weather: Fair

Response and Follow-up:
Inspected USD main and storm drain inlet due to a complaint from resident about a bad odor. 
We dye tested sewer main with a TV camera in the storm drain. We found a very small leak 
from the sewer main into the storm drain.  USD crews used three trenchless point repairs in the 
sewer main to stop the leak and cleaned up the storm drain.

2. Complaint Details:
Date: 10/2/2014 Time:  8:25 pm
Location: FREMONT BL Reported By: Hilary
Wind (from): West Wind Speed: 1 mph
Temperature:  75 Degrees F Weather: Clear

Response and Follow-up:
Inspected USD manholes and storm drain inlets in the area.  We found no odors coming 
from our mains or drain inlets. We did detect a smell coming from a roll away dumpster in front of the 
property

3. Complaint Details:
Date: 10/8/2014 Time:  8:08 pm
Location: GRANVILLE DR Reported By: Rob Culbertson
Wind (from): East Wind Speed: 9 mph
Temperature:  68 Degrees F Weather: Clear

Response and Follow-up:
Inspected USD manholes and storm drain inlets.  We did not detect any odor.  We relayed our 
findings to the complainant and told him to call us back should the odor return.

4. Complaint Details:
Date: 10/8/2014 Time:  10:04 pm
Location: PERALTA BL Reported By: Lin Hall
Wind (from): N/A Wind Speed: 5 mph
Temperature:  64 Degrees F Weather: Clear

Response and Follow-up:
Inspected USD manholes and storm drain inlets.  No odor was detected.  I checked the 
grease trap and when I opened it, the complainant said that may be the source of the odor.  
We let the complainant know that he should inform his management and that I would pass on 
our findings to our Environmental Compliance Team.



City:  Fremont

5. Complaint Details:
Date: 10/9/2014 Time:  12:05 am
Location: RIDGEWOOD DR Reported By: Ashoka Upadhya
Wind (from): N/A Wind Speed: 5 mph
Temperature:  64 Degrees F Weather: Clear

Response and Follow-up:
Inspected USD manholes and storm drain inlets.  We found no odor from our manholes.  
We did detect a very strong smell of a dead animal on the complainant's street.  We told him he 
could try talking with the Ardenwood Farm property people because it seemed like 
the smell of the dead animal may be on their property.

6. Complaint Details:
Date: 10/21/2014 Time:  3:40 pm
Location: MONTROSE AV Reported By: N/A
Wind (from): N/A Wind Speed: 5 mph
Temperature:  73 Degrees F Weather: Warm

Response and Follow-up:
Inspected USD manholes and storm drain inlets in the area.  We found no odors in the area. 
We told them to call us back should the odor return.

7. Complaint Details:
Date: 10/31/2014 Time:  1:30 pm
Location: BLACOW RD Reported By: Sandy Leonardt
Wind (from): North West Wind Speed: 9 mph
Temperature:  59 Degrees F Weather: Rain & Showers

Response and Follow-up:
Inspected USD manholes and drain inlets in the surrounding area.  We used a gas detector
to locate any odors and no odors detected.  We relayed our findings to Mrs. Leonardt 
and gave her a USD brochure.  We told her to call us back should the odor return and to note the 
time of day.



City:  Newark

8. Complaint Details:
Date: 10/6/2014 Time:  3:45 pm
Location: LA SALLE AV Reported By: Diana Farias
Wind (from): North West Wind Speed: 9 mph
Temperature:  89 Degrees F Weather: Hot

Response and Follow-up:
Inspected the sewer manholes, storm drain inlets and surrounding areas using our gas detector.
We did not find any odors.  We gave the complainant a USD brochure and told her to call us back 
should the odor return.

9. Complaint Details:
Date: 10/8/2014 Time:  7:15 pm
Location: DAIRY AV Reported By: Janette Johnson
Wind (from): North Wind Speed: 5 mph
Temperature:  68 Degrees F Weather: Clear

Response and Follow-up:
Inspected USD manholes, storm manholes and drain inlets and found no odors outside 
of the residence.  We did detect a musty mildew odor inside the house.  The homeowner did call 
the Fire Department and they did not find any odors.  We told her to air out the house 
and run water in all sinks and showers.  We told her to call us back should the odor return.

City:  Union City

10. Complaint Details:
Date: 10/4/2014 Time:  9:45 pm
Location: COMPTON CT Reported By: Chelsea
Wind (from): N/A Wind Speed: 5 mph
Temperature: 85 Degrees F Weather: Clear

Response and Follow-up:
Inspected USD manholes and storm drain inlets and found no odors.  We gave the 
complainant a brochure and told them to call us back should the odor return.



Summary of the EBDA Commission Meeting
Thursday, November 20, 2014 at 9:30 a.m.

Prepared by: P. Eldredge

Commissioners Handley, Dias, Johnson, Peixoto and Prola were all present.

The Consent Calendar was approved unanimously and included the Commission Meeting
Minutes, the List of Disbursements, the Treasurer’s Report, and the final adjusted Treasurers
Report for June, July, August, and September 2014.

The Commission unanimously approved the reports from the Regulatory Affairs, Operation &
Maintenance, Financial Management, Personnel, and Management Advisory Committees. The
following items were discussed:

Managers Advisory Committee had a brief discussion on the Ebola virus and potential
impacts on wastewater industry personnel. Currently, most of the information available is
conflicting and the CDC has yet to issue any findings or guidelines. Some agencies are reaching
out to hospitals directly to discuss solid waste and fluid handling protocols. In addition, the
MAC discussed proposed language changes to the JPA pursuant to a letter received from
Castro Valley Sanitary District’s attorney regarding the voting authority of EBDA (unanimous
vote vs. affirmative vote of all 5 members).

Financial Management Committee had the auditor present the Financial Audit for the Fiscal
Year ending June 30, 2014. The auditor’s report indicated there were no findings for said FY,
and all controls and required systems were in place and operating as expected. It was
mentioned that the professional services budget was over by about $33k due to accelerated
work on the outfall pipe study and spending on the State Coastal Conservancy grant which is
expected to be reimbursed next month. The Commission discussed whether or not it still
made sense for EBDA to remain a member of CASA. This issue was forwarded to the next
committee meeting for further discussion. It was briefly mentioned that the Special Districts
Financial Transactions and Compensation Report was completed and submitted to the State.

Regulatory Affairs Committee reviewed the status report (informational only, no action
required) for the NPDES permit. EBDA staff did not determine any violations of the combined
effluent in October of 2014. EBDA has not had any permit violations since April of 2006. There
was a brief discussion on the Water Board nitrogen discussions taking place regarding the
watershed permit coming due in four years and possible nutrients limits. It is anticipated the
watershed will have some limit on nutrients included in the next permit renewal. There was
a brief discussion regarding the positive attention reclaimed water seems to be getting in the
State right now and public perception seems to be changing toward the use of this resource.
Residential water usage by person per day comparison charts for the State of California and
the Bay Area were included in the agenda. In general, Northern California is using less water
per person than Southern California.

Desk Item
12b 

11/24/14



O&M Committee reviewed several videos of the manhole rehabilitation work that was done
in the last few months, and also showed a video of the pump being replaced at the Hayward
pump station. There was a discussion regarding minor chlorine spiking at the marina decholr
facility and the need for some analysis to identify and correct the issue. There was no concern
that chlorinated wastewater was being discharged as a mass balance was conducted to
ensure that enough sodium bisulfite was being injected to remove the chlorine. The starter
for the San Leandro emergency generator failed and was replaced. There was a brief
discussion regarding the amount of inflow and infiltration EBMUD and a few other agencies
are experiencing and how well the collection system of the member agencies is performing.

Personnel Committee reviewed the employment contract for the General Manager. The
current GM indicated he may only be able to commit through June or July of 2015 due to
uncertainty regarding future commitments which will not be resolved until January of 2015.
The MAC will be meeting in the next few weeks to discuss possible options and succession
planning.

Joint Powers Agreement Ad Hoc Committee reviewed the final edits to the JPA as well as a
few clean up items that were identified at the meeting. It was agreed the term of the
agreement (expiring on January 1, 2020) will not be amended at this point and will be
addressed with the next amendment since this clean up is to remove information no longer
relevant and start with a clean copy for the more formal update (financial issues). A draft
cover letter was passed out (attached) to accompany the final draft of the agreement to
each agency for their final review and hopefully adoption by each agency by January of
2015.

The Commission unanimously passed the following resolutions:

o Resolution approving FY 2014/15 Budget Modification No. 1 to create new account codes
for the Transport System Inspection, Hayward Pump and Ponds, SCC Wetlands Grant and
the EPA Sidestream Grant.

o Resolution approving amendments to the General Mangers Employment Agreement
December 1, 2014 to July 1, 2015.

Desk Item
12b 

11/24/14



Desk Item
12b 

11/24/14


